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Information Memorandum for issue of Debentures on a private placement basis on
Dated: September 25, 2020

Issue of 700 (Seven Hundred) Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Transferable, Non-
convertible Debentures of face value of Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakhs only) each,
aggregating up to Rs. 70,00,00,000/- (Rupeces Seventy Crores only) on a private placement
basis (the “Issue™).

Background

This Information Memorandum is related to the Debentures to be issued by Ess Kay Fincorp Limited
(the “Issuer” or “Company™) on a private placement basis and contains relevant information and
disclosures required for the purpose of issuing of the Debentures. The issue of the Debentures
comprised in the Issue and described under this Information Memorandurn has been authorised by the
Issuer through resolutions passed by the sharcholders of the Issuer on May 21, 2020 and the Board of
Directors of the Issuer on June 3, 2020 read with the resolution passed by the Executive Committec of
the Board of Directors dated September 23, 2020 and the Memorandum and Articles of Association of
the Company. Pursuant to the resolution passed by the Company’s sharcholders dated May 21, 2020
in accordance with provisions of the Companics Act, 2013, the Company has been authorised to
borrow, upon such terms and conditions as the Board may think fit, for amounts up to INR
4500,00,00,000/- (Rupees Four Thousand and Five Hundred Crores only). The present issuc of
Debentures in terms of this Information Memorandum is within the overall powers of the Board as per
the above sharcholder resolution(s).

General Risks

Investment in debt and debt rclated sccurities involve a degree of risk and Investors should not invest
any funds in the debt instruments, unless they can afford to take the risks attached to such investments
and only after reading the information carefully. For taking an investment decision, the Investors must
rely on their own cxamination of the Company and the Issue including the risks involved. The
Debentures have not been recommended or approved by Securitics and Exchange Board of India
(“SEBI") nor does SEBI guarantee the accuracy or adequacy of this document. Specific atiention of
Investors is invited to the statement of Risk Factors at SECTION 3: of this memorandum of private
placement for issue of Debentures on a private placement basis (“Information Memorandum™ or
“Disclosure Document”). This Information Memorandum has not been submitted, cleared or
approved by SEBL
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Issuer’s Absolute Responsibility

The Issuer, having made all reasonable inquirics, confirms and represents that the information
contained in this Information Memorandum/ Disclosure Document is true and correet in all material
respects and is not misleading in any material respect, that the opinions and intentions expressed
herein are honestly held and that there are no other facts, the omission of which makes this document
as a whole or any of such information or the expression of any such opinions or intentions misleading
in any material respect. The Issuer is solely responsible for the correctness, adequacy and disclosure
of all relevant information herein.

Credit Rating

The Debentures proposed to be issucd by the Issuer have been rated by CRISIL Ratings. The Rating
Agency has, vide its letter dated August 18, 2020 assigned a rating of “CRISIL A/Stable”
(pronounced as “CRISIL A Rating”) with “Stable” outlook in respect of the Debentures. The above
rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and Investors should take their own
decision. The ratings may be subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the rating agency and
should be evaluated independently of any other ratings. Please refer to Annexure II of this
Information Memorandum for the letter dated August 18, 2020 from the Rating Agency assigning the
credit rating above mentioned.

Issue Schedule

Issuc Opening on: September 25, 2020
Issue Closing on: Scptember 25, 2020
Deemed Date of Allotment: September 29, 2020

The Issuer reserves the right to change the Issue Schedule including the Deemed Date of Allotment at
its sole discretion, without giving any reasons or prior notice. The Issue shall be open for subscription
during the banking hours on cach day during the period covered by the Issue Schedule.

The Debentures arc proposed to be listed on the wholesale debt market of the Bombay Stock
Exchange (“BSE").

‘Registrar and Transfer Agent -~ - : " Debenture Trustce
IEINTEZCH
Kfin Technologies Private Limited IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited
46, Avenue, 4th Street, No. 1, Banjara Hills, Asian Building, Ground Floor, 17, R.Kamani
Hyderabad-500034 Marg, Ballard Estate, Mumbai- 400001
Tel: +91 40 33211000, 67162222 Tel: +91 22 40807000
Email: rakesh.santhalia@karvy.com Email: deepak.avasthi@idbitrustec.com
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SECTION 1: DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Unless the context otherwisc indicates or requires, the following terms shall have the
meanings given below in this Information Memorandum.

Allot/Allotment/Allotted

Unless the context otherwise requires or implics, the allotment
of the Debentures pursuant to this Issue,

Application Form

The form used by the recipient of this Disclosure Document
and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter, to
apply for subscription to the Debentures, which is annexed to
this Information Memorandum and marked as Annexure IV,

Board/Board of
Directors

The Board of Directors of the Issuer.

Business Day

Any day of the week (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and any
other day which is a ‘public holiday’ for the purpose of Section
25 of the Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881 (26 of 1881)) on
which banks are normally open for business in Mumbai, India
and New York, United States of America and “Business Days™
shall be construed accordingly.

CDSL

Central Depository Services Limited

Client Loan

Each loan made by the Issuer as a lender, and “Client Loans”
shall refer to the aggregate of such loans.

Debentures / NCDs

700 (Seven Hundred) Sccured Rated Listed Redeemable
Transferable Non-Convertible Debentures bearing a face value
of Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakhs only) each, aggregating to
Rs. 70,00,00,000/- (Rupces Seventy crores only).

Debenture Holders /
Investors

The holders of the Debentures issucd by the Issuer and shall
include the registered transferces of the Debentures from time to
time.

Deemed Date of September 29, 2020.

Aliotment

Debenture Trustee IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited

Debenture Trustee Agreement execuied by and between the Debenture Trustee and
Agrecment the Company inter alia for the purposes of appointment of the

Debenture Trustee to act as debenture trustee in connection with
the issvance of the Debentures.

Debenture Trust Deed

Shall mean the debenture trust deed executed/to be executed by
and between the Debenture Trustee and the Company inter alia
setting out the terms upon which the Debentures are being issued
and shall include the representations and warrantics and the
covenants to be provided by the Issucr,

Deed of Hypothecation

The deed of hypothecation entered/to be entered into between
the Issuer and the Debenture Trustee, pursuant to which the
hypothecation over the Secured Property shall be created by the
Issucr in favour of the Debenture Trustee (acting for and on
behalf of the Debenture Holders).

Demat

Refers to dematerialized securities which are securities that are
in electronic form, and not in physical form, with the entries
noted by the Depository.

Depositories Act

The Depositories Act, 1996, as amended from time to time.

Depository A  Depository registered with SEBI under the SEBI
{Depositories and Participant) Regulations, 2018, as amended
e KAP S, from time to time.
,"J/j Depository Participant / | A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act
Lo ‘C&; N
> vl
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DP

Director(s) Board of Director(s) of the Issuer.

Disclosure Document/ | This document which sets out the information regarding the

Information Debentures being issued on a private placement basis.

Memorandum

DP ID Depository Participant Identification Number. )

Duc Date Any date on which the holders of the Debentures are entitled to
any payments, whether on maturity or carlier (upon any Event of
Default or upon the exercise of the Put Option or Call Option),
prior to the scheduled Maturity Date or acceleration.

EBP Guidelines The guidelines issued by SEBI with respect to electronic book
mechanism under the terms of the SEBI Circular dated January
5, 2018 (bearing reference number
SEBI/HO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/05) read with the SEBI Circular
dated August 16, 2018 (bearing reference number
SEBI/HO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/122) and the  opcrational
guidelines issucd by the relevant Electronic Book Provider, as
may be amended, clarified or updated from time to time.

EFT Electronic Fund Transfer.

Electronic Book shall have the meaning assigned to such term under the EBP

Provider / EBP Guidelines.

Financial Year/ FY Twelve months period commencing from April 1 of a particular

calendar year and ending on March 31 of the subsequent
calendar year.

Final Settlement Date

shall mean the date on which the payments to be made by the
Company in relation to the Issuc have been irrevocably
discharged in full and/or the Dcbentures have been redecmed by
the Company in full in accordance with the terms of the
Transaction Documents.

GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles prescribed by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India from time to time
and consistently applicd by the Issuer.

IBC shall mean the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016, and the
rules and regulations made thereunder which are in effect from
time to time and shall include any other statutory amendment or
re-enactment thercof;

ICCL Indian Clearing Corporation Limited

Issue Private Placement of the Debentures.

Issue Closing Date Scptember 25, 2020.

Issue Opening Date Scptember 25, 2020,

Issuer/ Company Ess Kay Fincorp Limited

Debenture Holders whose participation or share in the principal
amount(s) outstanding with respect to the Debentures aggregale
to morc than 51% (Fifty One Percent) of the value of the
nominal amount of the Debentures for the time being
outstanding.

Majority Dcbenture
Holders
Material Adverse Effect

The effect or consequence of an event, circumstance, occurrence
or condition which has caused, as of any date of determination, a
material and adverse effect on (i) the financial condition,
business or operation of the Issucr; (ii) the ability of the Issuer to
perform their obligations under the Transaction Documents; or
(iii) the validity or enforceability of any of the Transaction
Documents (including the ability of any party to enforce any of
its remedies thercunder).
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Maturity Date

September 29, 2026 being 72 (Seventy Two) months from the
Decmed Date of Allotment, subject to a Put Option or Call
Option or, such other date on which the final payment of the
principal amount of the Debentures becomes due and payable as
therein or herein provided, whether at such stated maturity dale,
by declaration of acceleration, or otherwise.

Net Assets

Net Assets shall mean the total assets on the balance sheet of the
Issuer excluding any sccuritised assets and managed (non-
owned) loan portfolio.

N.A.

Not Applicable.

NBFC Dircctions

RBI Master Direction on Non- Banking Financial Company-
Systemically Important Non- Deposit taking Company and
Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016
{Master Direction DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17)

NSDL

National Securities Depository Limited.

PAN

Permanent Aceount Number,

Private Placement Offer
cum Application Letter

Shall mean the private placement offer cum application letter
prepared in compliance with Scction 42 of the Companies Act,
2013 rcad with the Companics (Prospectus and Allotment of
Securitics) Rules, 2014,

RBI

Reserve Bank of India.

Rating Agency

CRISIL Ratings, being a credit rating agency registered with
SEBI pursuant to SEBI (Credit Rating Agencics) Regulations
1999, as amended from time to time.

Record Date

The date which will be used for determining the Debenture
Holders who shall be entitled to receive the amounts due on any
Due Date, which shall be the date falling 15 (Fifteen) calendar
days prior to any Due Date.

R&T Agent

Registrar and Transfer Agent to the Issue, in this case being Kfin
Technologies Private Limited.

ROC

Registrar of Companies.

Rs./INR

Indian Rupee.

RTGS

Real Time Gross Settlement,

SEBI

Securitics and Exchange Board of India constituted under the
Sccurities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (as amended
from time to timce).

SEBI Debt Listing
Regulations

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing
of Debt Seccurities) Regulation, 2008 issued by SEBI, as
amended from time to time.

Security

The sccurity for the Debentures as specified in Annexure 1.

Tax or Taxes

shall mean any and all present or future, direct or indirect, claims
for tax, withholding tax, surcharge, levy, impost, duty, cess,
statutory due or other charge of a similar nature (including any
penalty or interest payable in connection with any failure to pay
or any delay in paying any of the same) including on gross
receipts, sales, turn-over, value addition, use, consumption,
property, service, income, franchise, capital, occupation, license,
excise, documents (such as stamp duties) and customs and other
taxes, dutics, assessments, or fees, however imposed, withheld,
levied, or assessed by any Government;

TDS

Tax Deducted at Source.

The Companics Act/ the
Act -

The Companies Act, 2013 or where applicable, the provisions of
the Companics Act, 1956, still in force.
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Terms & Conditions Shall mean the terms and conditions pertaining to the Issuc as
outlined in the Transaction Documents.

Transaction Documents | Shall mean the documents cxecuted or to be executed in relation
to the issuance of the Debentures as more particularly sct out in

Annexure L
WDM Wholesale Debt Market.
Wilful Defaulter Shall mean an Issuer who is categorized as a wilful defaulter by

any Bank or financial institution or consortium thereof, in
accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the
Reserve Bank of India and includes an issucr whose director or
promoter is categorized as such in accordance with Regulation
2{n) of SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008.
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SECTION 2: NOTICE TO INVESTORS AND DISCLAIMERS

2.1 ISSUER’S DISCLAIMER

This Information Memorandum is neither a prospectus nor a statement in licu of a prospectus and
should not be construed to be a prospectus or a statement in licu of a prospectus under the Companics
Act. The issue of the Debentures to be listed on the WDM segment of the BSE is being made strictly on
a private placement basis. Multiple copies hereof given to the same entity shall be deemed to be given to
the same person and shall be treated as such. This Information Memorandum docs not constitute and
shall not be deemed to constitute an offer or invitation to subscribe to the Debentures to the public in
general,

As per the applicable provisions, it is not necessary for a copy of this Information Memorandum /
Disclosurc Document to be filed or submitted to the SEBI for its review and/or approval. This
Information Memorandum has been prepared in conformity with the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations as
amenided from time to time and the applicable RBI Circulars governing private placements of
debentures by NBFCs. This Information Memorandum has been prepared solely to provide gencral
information about the Issuer to the eligible investors to whom it is addressed and who are willing and
eligible to subscribe to the Debentures. This Information Memorandum doces not purport to contain all
the information that any eligible investor may require. Further, this Information Memorandum has been
prepared for informational purposes relating to this transaction only and upon the express understanding
that it will be used only for the purposes set forth hercin.

Neither this Information Memorandum nor any other information supplied in conncction with the
Dcbentures is intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation and any rccipient of this
Information Memorandum should not consider such receipt as a recommendation to subscribe to any
Debentures. Each potential Investor contemplating subscription to any Debentures should make its own
independent investigation of the financial condition and affairs of the Issuer, and its own appraisal of the
creditworthiness of the Issucr. Potential Investors should consult their own financial, legal, tax and other
professional advisors as to the risks and investment considerations arising from an investment in the
Debentures and should possess the appropriate resources to analyze such investment and the suitability
of such investment to such potential Investor’s particular circumstances.

The Issuer confirms that, as of the date hereof, this Information Memorandum (including the documenis
incorporated by reference herein, if any) contains all the information that is material in the context of the
Issue and regulatory requirements in relation to the Issuc and is accurate in all such material respects.
No person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representation not contained or
incorporated by reference in this Information Memorandum or in any material made available by the
Issuer to any potential Investor pursuant hereto and, if given or made, such information or
representation must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the Issuer. The Issuer certifies that
the disclosures made in this Information Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer cum
Application Letter are adequate and in conformity with the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations. Further, the
Issuer accepts no responsibility for statements made otherwise than in the Information Memorandum or
any other material issued by or at the instance of the Issuer and anyone placing reliance on any source of
information other than this Information Memorandum would be doing so at its own risk.

This Information Mcmorandum, the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter and the
contents hercof are restricted only for the intended recipient(s) whe have been addressed directly
and ‘specifically through a communication by the Issuer and only such recipients are eligible to
apply for the Decbenturcs, All Investors are required to comply with the relevant
regulations/guidelines applicable to them for investing in this Issue. The contents of this
Information Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter are
intended to be used only by those potential Investors to whom it is distributed. It is not intended

Mi‘or distribution to any other person and should not be reproduced by the recipient.
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No invitation is being made to any person other than those to whom Application Forms along with this
Information Memorandum and the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter being issucd have
been scnt. Any application by a person to whom the Information Memorandum and/or the Private
Placement Offer cum Application Letter has not been sent by the Issuer shall be rejected without
assigning any reason.

The person who is in receipt of this Information Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer cum
Application Letter shall not reproduce or distribute in whole or part or make any announcement in
public or to a third party regarding the contents hereof without the consent of the Issuer. The recipient
agrees to keep confidential all information provided (or made available hereafter), including, without
limitation, the cxistence and terms of the Issue, any specific pricing information related to the Issuc or
the amount or terms of any fees payable to us or other partics in connection with the Issuc. This
Information Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter may not be
photocopied, reproduced, or distributed to others at any time without the prior written consent of the
Issuer. Upon request, the recipients will promptly return all material received from the Issuer (including
this Information Memorandum) without retaining any copies hereof. If any recipient of this Information
Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter decides not to participale in
the Issuc, that recipient must promptly return this Information Memorandum andfor the Private
Placement Offer cum Application Letter and all reproductions whether in whole or in part and any other
information statement, notice, opinion, memorandum, expression or forecast made or supplied at any
time in relation thereto or received in connection with the Issue to the Issucr.

The Issuer docs not undertake to update the Information Memorandum and/or the Private Placement
Offer cum Application Letter to reflect subsequent events after the date of Information Memorandum
and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter and thus it should not be relied upon with
respect to such subscquent events without first confirming its accuracy with the Issuer.

Neither the delivery of this Information Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer cum
Application Letter nor any sale of Debentures made hereafier shall, under any circumstances, constitute
a representation or create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Issuer since
the date hereof.

This Information Mcmorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter does not
constitute, nor may it be used for or in connection with, an offer or solicitation by anyone in any
jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorized or to any person to whom it is unlawful
to make such an offer or solicitation. No action is being taken to permit an offering of the Debentures or
the distribution of this Information Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application
Letier in any jurisdiction where such action is required. Persons into whose possession this Information
Memorandum comes are required to inform themsclves about and to observe any such restrictions. The
Information Mecmorandum is made available to potential Investors in the Issue on the strict
understanding that it is confidential.

2.2 DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF STOCK EXCHANGES

As required, a copy of this Information Memorandum has been filed with the BSE in terms of the SEBI
Debt Listing Regulations. It is to be distinctly understood that submission of this Information
Memorandum to the BSE should not in any way be deemed or construed to mean that this Information
Memorandum has been reviewed, cleared, or approved by the BSE; nor docs the BSE in any manner
warrant, certify or endorse the comrcctness or completeness of any of the contents of this Information
Memorandum, nor does the BSE warrant that the Issuer’s Debentures will be listed or will continue to
be listed on the BSE; nor does the BSE take any responsibility for the soundness of the financial and

other conditions of the Issucr, its promoters, its management or any scheme or project of the Issucr.
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2.3 DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF SEBI

As per the provisions of the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations, it is not stipulated that a copy of this
Information Memorandum has to be filed with or submitted to the SEBI for its revicw / approval. It is to
be distinctly understood that this Information Memorandum should not in any way be deemed or
construed to have been approved or vetted by SEBI and that this Issuc is not recommended or approved
by SEBI. SEBI docs not take any responsibility either for the financial soundness of any proposal for
which the Debentures issued thercof is proposed to be made or for the comrectness of the statements
made or opinions expressed in this Information Memorandum.

24 - DISCLAIMER IN RESPECT OF RBI

The Issuer is having a valid certificate of registration issued by the Reserve Bank of India under Section
45 1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Howevcer, the RBI does not accept any responsibility or
guarantce about the present position as to the financial soundness of the company or for the correctness
of any of the statements or representations made or opinions expressed by the company and for
rcpayment of deposits/ discharge of liability by the company.

25 DISCLAIMER IN RESPECT OF JURISDICTION

This Issuc is made in India to Investors as specified under the clause titled “Eligible Investors™ of this
Information Memorandum, who shall be/have been identified upfront by the Issuer. This Information
Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter does not constitute an offer to
scll or an invitation to subscribe to Debentures offered hereby to any person to whom it is not
specifically addressed. Any disputes arising out of this Issue will be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction
of the courts and tribunals at New Delhi. This Information Memorandum and/or the Private Placcment
Offer cum Application Letter does not constitute an offer to sell or an invitation to subscribe to the
Debentures herein, in any other jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make an offer or
invitation in such jurisdiction.

2.6 DISCLAIMER IN RESPECT OF RATING AGENCIES

Ratings arc opinions on credit quality and are not recommendations to sanction, renew, disburse or
recall the concerned bank facilitics or to buy, sell or hold any security. The Rating Agency has based its
ratings on information obtained from sources belicved by it to be accurate and reliable. The Rating
Agency does not, however, guarantee the accuracy, adequacy or completeness of any information and is
not responsible for any errors or omissions or for the results obtained from the use of such information.
Most entities whose bank facilitics/instruments are rated by the Rating Agency have paid a credit rating
fee, based on the amount and type of bank facilitics/instruments.

2.7 ISSUE OF DEBENTURES IN DEMATERIALISED FORM

The Debentures will be issued in dematerialised form. The Issucr has made arrangements with the
Depositories for the issue of the Debentures in dematerialised form. Investors will have to hold the
Debentures in dematerialised form as per the provisions of Depositories Act. The Issuer shall take
neccessary steps to credit the Debentures allotted to the beneficiary account maintained by the Investor
with its depositary participant. The Issuer will make the Allotment to Investors on the Deemed Date of
Allotment after verification of the Application Form, the accompanying documents and on realisation of
the application money.

10
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SECTION 3: RISK FACTORS

The following arc the risks relating to the Company, the Debentures and the market in general
envisaged by the management of the Company. Potential Investors should carcfully consider all the nsk
factors in this Information Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter for
evaluating the Company and its business and the Debentures before making any investment decision
rclating to the Debentures. The Company believes that the factors described below represent the
principal risks inhcrent in investing in the Debentures but does not represent that the statements below
regarding risks of holding the Debentures are exhaustive, The ordering of the risk factors is intended to
facilitate case of reading and reference and does not in any manner indicate the importance of one risk
factor over another. Investors should also read the detailed information set out clsewhere in this
Information Memorandum and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter and reach their
own views prior to making any investment decision.

3.1 REPAYMENT IS SUBJECT TO THE CREDIT RISK OF THE ISSUER.

Potential Investors should be aware that receipt of the principal amount, (i.e. the redemption amount)
and any other amounts that may be due in respect of the Debentures is subject to the credit risk of the
Issucr. Potential Investors assume the risk that the Issucr will not be able to satisfy their obligations
under the Debentures. In the event that bankruptcy proceedings or composition, scheme of arrangement
or similar proceedings to avert bankruptcy are instituted by or against the Issuer, the payment of sums
due on the Debentures may not be made or may be substantially reduced or delayed.

3.2 THE SECONDARY MARKET FOR DEBENTURES MAY BE ILLIQUID.

The Debentures may be very illiquid and no secondary market may develop in respect thereof. Even if
there is a secondary market for the Debentures, it is not likely to provide significant liquidity. Potential
Investors may have to hold the Debentures until redemption to realize any value.

33 CREDIT RISK & RATING DOWNGRADE RISK

The Rating Agency has assigned the credit ratings to the Debentures. In the ¢vent of deterioration in the
financial health of the Issuer, there is a possibility that the Rating Agency may downgrade the rating of
the Debentures. In such cases, potential investors may incur losses on revaluation of their investment or
make provisions towards sub-standard/ non-performing investment as per their usual norms.

3.4 CHANGES IN INTEREST RATES MAY AFFECT THE PRICE OF NCDS.

All securitics where a fixed rate of interest is offered, such as this Issue, are subject to price risk. The
price of such securitics will vary inversely with changes in prevailing interest rates, i.c. when interest
rates rise, prices of fixed income securities fall and when interest rates drop, the prices increase. The
extent of fall or rise in the prices is a function of the existing coupon, days to maturily and the increase
or decrease in the level of prevailing interest rates. Increased rates of interest, which frequently
accompany inflation and/or a growing cconomy, are likely to have a negative effect on the pricing of the
Debentures.

3.5 TAX CONSIDERATIONS AND LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS

Special tax considerations and legal considerations may apply to certain types of investors. Potential
Investors are urged to consult with their own financial, legal, tax and other advisors to determine any
financial, legal, tax and other implications of this investment.

3.6 ACCOUNTING CONSIDERATIONS

Special accohythlgé;gnsidcmlions may apply 1o certain types of taxpayers. Potential Investors are urged
; 7 -
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to consult with their own accounting advisors to determine implications of this investment.

3.7 SECURITY MAYBE INSUFFICIENT TO REDEEM THE DEBENTURES

In the event that the Company is unable to meet its payment and other obligations towards Investors
under the terms of the Debentures, the Debenture Trustee may enforce the Security as per the terms of
security documents, and other related documents. The Investor’s recovery in relation to the Debentures
will be subject to (i) the market value of such secured property, (ii) finding willing buyers for the
Sccurity at a price sufficient to repay the potential Investors amounts outstanding under the Debentures.
The value realised from the enforcement of the Security may be insufficient to redeem the Debentures.

3.8 MATERIAL CHANGES IN REGULATIONS TO WHICH THE ISSUER IS SUBJECT
COULD IMPAIR THE ISSUER’S ABILITY TO MEET PAYMENT OR OTHER
OBLIGATIONS.

The Issuer is subject gencrally to changes in Indian law, as well as to changes in government regulations
and policies and accounting principles. Any changes in the regulatory framework could adversely affect
the profitability of the Issuer or its future financial performance, by requiring a restructuring of its
activitics, increasing costs or othenwise.

3.9 LEGALITY OF PURCHASE

Potential Investors of the Debentures will be responsible for the lawfulness of the acquisition of the
Debentures, whether under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation or the jurisdiction in which it
operates or for compliance by that potential Investor with any law, regulation or regulatory policy
applicable to it.

3.10 POLITICAL AND ECONOMIC RISK IN INDIA

The Issuer operates only within India and, accordingly, all of its revenues are derived from the domestic
markel. As a result, it is highly dependent on prevailing economic conditions in India and its results of
operations are significantly affected by factors influencing the Indian economy. An uncertain economic
situation, in India and globally, could result in a further slowdown in economic growth, investment and
consumption. A slowdown in the rate of growth in the Indian economy could result in lower demand for
credit and other financial products and scrvices and higher defaults. Any slowdown in the growth or
negative growth of sectors where the Issuer has a relatively higher exposure could adversely impact its
performance. Any such slowdown could adversely affect its business, prospects, results of operations
and financial condition.

3.11. RISKS RELATED TO THE BUSINESS OF THE ISSUER

A, Muajority of the Issuer’s loans are unsectired and the clients of these unsecured loans are of
the high risk category and if the Issuer is unable to control the level of non-performing loans
(“NPAs”) in the future, or if the Issuer’s loan loss reserves are instufficient to cover futire
loan losses, the financial condition and results of operations muay be materially amd adversely
affected.

The vehicle loans provided by the Issucr are sccured and if the Issuer is unable to control the
level of NPAs in the future, or if the loan loss reserves are insufficient to cover future loan
losses, the financial condition of the Issucr and results of operations may be materially and
adverscly affected.

As on Junc 30, 2020, the gross NPA was Rs. 108 Cr on a gross portfolio of Rs. 2847 Cr
(including managed / seeuritized portfolio of Rs. 114 Cr.

*PTCs arc treated as part of own books.
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The Issuer cannot assure that the Issuer will be able to cffectively control and reduce the level of
the impaired loans in its total loan portfolio. The amount of the Issuer’s reportcd non-
performing loans may increase in the future as a result of growth in the total loan portfolio, and
also duc to factors beyond the Issuer’s control, such as over-extended member credit that we are
unaware of. Failure to manage NPAs or cffect recoverics will result in operations being
adverscly affected.

The Issuer’s current loan loss reserves may not be adequate to cover an increase in the amount
of NPAs or any future dcterioration in the overall credit quality of the Issuer's total loan
portfolio. As a result, if the quality of the Issuer’s total loan portfolio deteriorates the Issuer may
be required to increase the loan loss reserves, which will adversely affect the Issuer’s financial
condition and results of operations. The Issuer’s members largely belong to low-income
scgment and, as a result, might be vulnerable if economic conditions worsen or growth rates
decelerate in India, or if there are natural disasters such as floods and droughts in areas where
the Issuer's members live. Morcover, there is no precise method for predicting loan and credit
losses, and the Issuer cannot assure that the Issuer’s monitoring and risk management
procedures will effectively predict such losses or that loan loss reserves will be sufficient to
cover actual losses. If the Issucr is unable to control or reduce the level of its NPAs or poor
credit quality loans, the Issucr’s financial condition and results of the Issuer's operations could
be materially and adversely affected.

B. The Issucer’s business operates through a large number af rural and semi nrban branches
and is exposed to operational risks including fraud

The Issucr is cxposcd to operational risks, including fraud, petty theft and embezzlement, as it
handles a large amount of cash due to high velume of small transactions. This could harm its
operations and its financial position.

As the Issucr handles a large amount of cash through a high volume of small transactions taking
place in its network, the Issuer is exposed to the risk of fraud or other misconduct by its
cmployees or outsiders. Thesce risks are further compounded due to the high level of delegation
of power and responsibilities that the Issuer’s business model requires. Given the high volume
of transactions processed by the Issucr, certain instances of fraud and misconduct may go
unnoticed before they are discovered and successfully rectified. Even when the Issuer discovers
such instances of fraud or theft and pursue them to the full extent of the law or with its
insurance carriers, there can be no assurance that the Issuer will recover any such amounts. In
addition, the Issuer's dependence upon automated systems to record and process transactions
may further increase the risk that technical system flaws or employee tampering or manipulation
of those systems will result in losses that are difficult to detect,

The Issuer maintains an internal audit process to ensure the operations team follows the defined
procedures and reports any deviations to the operations staff and management team. The Issucr
also has a strong MIS system that has a wide range of data that can be used to monitor financial
and operational performance.

To mitigate the above risk, the Issuer maintains an internal audit process to ensure the
operations team follows the defined procedures and reports any deviations to the operations
staff and management team. The Issuer also has a MIS system able to generate data analysis that
can be used to monitor financial and operational performance.

C. Loans due within two years account for almost all of the Issuer’s interest income, and «
significant reduction in short term loans may result in a corresponding decrease in ifs
interest income

13
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All of the loans the Issuer issucs are due within approximately two years of disbursement. The
rclatively short-term nature of the Issuer’s loans means that the Issuer’s long-term inicrest
income stream is less certain than if & portion of its loans were for a longer term. In addition, the
Issuer’s customers may not obtain new loans from the Issuer upon maturity of their cxisting
loans, particularly if competition increases. The potential instability of the Issuer’s interest
income could materially and adversely affect the Issuer’s results of operations and financial

position.

The loans given by the issuer arc at fixed interest rate, and the tenor of the underlying asset has
increased from onc year to two year which has provided stability to the portfolio and interest
income and has also smoothened operating expense.

D. The Issuer is exposed to certain political, regulatory and concentration of risks

Due to the nature of its operations, the Issuer is exposcd to political, regulatory and
concentration risks. The Issuer belicves a mitigate to this is to expand its geographical reach and
may consequently expand its operations other states. If it is not effectively able to manage such
operations and expansion, it may lose money invested in such expansion, which could adverscly
affect its business and results of operations.

Large scale attrition, especially at the senior management level, can make it difficult for the
Issucr to manage its business.

If the Issuer is not able to attract, motivate, integrate or retain qualified personnel at levels of
cxperience that are necessary to maintain the Issuer’s quality and reputation, it will be difficult
for the Issucr to manage its business and growth. The Issuer depends on the services of its
exccutive officers and key employees for its continued operations and growth. In particular, the
Issuer’s senior management has significant cxperience in the microfinance, banking and
financial services industries. The loss of any of the Issuer’s exccutive officers, key employeces or
senior managers could negatively affect its ability to execute its business strategy, including its
ability to manage its rapid growth. The Issucr’s business is also dependent on its tcam of
personnel who directly manage its relationships with its members. The Issuer’s business and
profits would suffer adversely if a substantial number of such personnel left the Issuer or
became ineffective in servicing its members over a period of time. The Issuer’s future success
will depend in large part on its ability to identify, attract and retain highly skilled managerial
and other personnel. Competition for individuals with such specialized knowledge and
experience is intensc in this industry, and the Issucr may be unable to attract, motivate, intcgrate
or retain qualified personnel at levels of experience that arc necessary to maintain its quality and
reputation or to sustain or expand its operations. The loss of the services of such personnel or
the inability to identify, attract and retain qualified personnel in the future would make it
difficult for the Issuer to manage its business and growth and to meet key objectives.

E. The Issuer’s business and resulls of operations would be adversely affected by strikes, work
stoppages or increased wage demands by employees

The employees are not currently unionized. However, there can be no assurance that they will
not unionize in the future. If the employeces unionize, it may become difficult to maintain
flexible labour policics, and could result in high labour costs, which would adversely affect the
Issuer’s business and results of operations.

F. The Issuer’s insurance coverage may not adequately protect it against losses. Successful
claims that exceed its insurance coverage could harm the Issuer’s results of operations and
diminish its financial position

- The Issucr maintains insurance coverage of the type and in the amounts that it believes are
AP

e S . commensurate with its operations and other general liability insurances. The Issuer’s insurance
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policies, however, may not provide adcquate coverage in certain circumstances and may be
subject to certain deductibles, exclusions and limits on coverage.

In addition, there are various types of risks and losses for which the Issuer does not maintain
insurance, such as losses due to business interruption and natural disasters, because they are
cither uninsurable or becausc insurance is not available to the Issuer on acceptable terms. A
successful assertion of one or more large claims against the Issuer that exceeds it’s available
insurance coverage or results in changes in its insurance policies, including premium incrcascs
or the imposition of a larger deductible or co-insurance requirement, could adversely affect the
Issuer’s business, financial condition and results of operations,

Issuer requires certain statutory and regulatory approvals for conducting business and
faflure to obtain or retain them in a timely manner, or at afl, may sdrersc{r affect
operations.

NBFCs in India are subject to strict regulation and supervision by the RBI. The Issuer requires
certain approvals, licenscs, registrations and permissions for operating, including registration
with the RBI as a non-deposit taking NBFC (NBFC-ND). Further, such approvals, licenses,
registrations and permissions must be maintained/rencwed over time, applicable requirements
may change and the Issuer may not be aware of or comply with all requirements all of the time.
Additionally, the Issuer may nced additional approvals from regulators to introduce new
insurance and other fee bascd products to its members. In particular, the Issuer is required to
obtain a certificate of registration for carrying on business as a NBFC that is subject to
numerous conditions. In addition, branches are required to be registered under the relevant
shops and cstablishments laws of the states in which they are located. The shops and
cstablishment laws regulate various employment conditions, including working hours, holidays
and leave and overtime compensation. If the Issuer fails to obtain or retain any of these
approvals or licenses, or renewals thercof, in a timely manner, or at all, business may be
adversely affected. If the Issuer fails to comply, or a regulator claims that the Issuer has not
complied with any of these conditions, its certificate of registration may’ be suspended or
cancelled and the Issuer shall not be able to carry on such activitics.

The economic fallont from the spread of the COVID-19 virus may impact the Issuer's
business prospects, financial condition, resilt of operations and credit risk

The spread of the COVID-19 virus has affected millions across the globe and the same coupled
with measures taken by the governments including lockdowns/ curfew has not only affected day
to day lives of pcople but has also given a hard blow to the supply chain of factories, with trade
routes being disturbed and slowing down of the industry, trade, commerce and business
activities across all sectors.

The COVID-19 virus pandemic is adversely affecting, and is expected to continue to adversely
affect, our operations, business, liquidity and cashflows, and we have experienced and expect to
continue to cxperience unpredictable reductions in demand for certain of our products and
services. Further, since a good fraction of our borrowers are small transport road operators, the
disruption duc to COVID-19 virus will also have an impact on their business as well as
repayment capacity of the loans taken from us.

Howecver, the extent of negative financial impact cannot be reasonably cstimated at this time but
a sustained cconomic slowdown may significantly affect our business, financial condition,
liquidity, cashflows and results of operations and the same will depend on future developments,
which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted, including new information which may
cmerge conccming the scverity of the COVID-19 virus and the actions to contain the COVID-
m }»“‘*
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19 virus or treat its impact, among others. Conscquently, there may be a negative effect on the
Company’s ability to service the obligations in relation to the Debentures.
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SECTION 4: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audited financial statements of the Issuer for the FY ended 31* March 2020 are sct out in Annexure
V hereto.
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SECTION 5: REGULATORY DISCLOSURES

The Information Memorandum is prepared in accordance with the provisions of SEBI Debt Listing
Regulations and in this scction, the Issucr has set out the details required as per Schedule I of the SEBI
Debt Listing Regulations.

5.1

Documents Submitted to the Exchanges

The following documents have been / shall be submitted to the BSE:

A,

B.
C.
D

5.2

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer and nccessary resolution(s) for the
allotment of the Debentures;

Copy of last 3 (Three) years audited Annual Reports;

Statement containing particulars of, dates of, and parties to all material contracts and
agreements;

Copy of the resolution passed by the sharcholders of the Company at the Extra-Ordinary
General Meccting held on May 21, 2020, authorizing the issue/offer of non-convertible
debentures by the Company upto an aggregate limit of INR 3000,00,00,000/- (Rupces Three
Thousand Crores only);

Copy of the resolution passed by the Board of Directors authorizing the issuance of the
Debentures and the list of authorized signatorics;

Copy of the resolution passed by the Company at the Extra-Ordinary General Mecting held on
May 21, 2020, authorising the Company to borrow, upon such terms as the Board may think fit,
upto an aggregate limit of INR 4500,00,00,000/- (Rupees Four Thousand Five Hundred Crores
only);

An undertaking from the Issucr stating that the necessary documents for the creation of the
charge, including the Debenture Trust Deed would be executed within the time frame prescribed
in the relevant regulations/acts/rulcs ete. and the same would be uploaded on the website of the
BSE, where the debt sceurities have been listed, within 5 (Five) working days of exccution of
the same;

Where applicable, an undertaking that permission / consent from the prior creditor for a second
or pari passu charge being created, in favour of the trustees to the proposed issuc has becn
obtained; and

Any other particulars or documents that the recognized stock exchange may call for as it deems
fit.

Documents Submitted to Debenture Trustee

The following documents have been/shall be submitted to the Debenture Trustee in electronic form (soft
copy) on or before the allotment of the Debentures:

A,

B.
C.

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer and necessary resolution(s) for the
allotment of the Debentures;

Copy of last 3 (Three) years audited Annual Reports;

Statement containing particulars of, dates of, and parties to all material contracts and
agrecments;

Latest audited / limited review half yearly consolidated (wherever available) and standalone
financial information (profit & loss statement, balance sheet and cash flow statement) and
auditor qualifications, if any.

An undertaking to the effect that the Issuer would, until the redemption of the debt securities,
submit the details mentioned in point (D) above to the Debenture Trustee within the timelines as
mentioned in  Simplified Listing Agreement issued by SEBI vide circular No.
SEBI/IMD/BOND/1/2009/11/05 dated May 11, 2009 as amended from time to time, for
furnishing / publishing its half yearly/ annual result. Further, the Issucr shall within 180 (Onc
Hundred and Eighty) calendar days from the end of the financial year, submit a copy of the
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latest annual report to the Debenture Trustec and the Debenture Trustee shall be obliged to
share the details submitted under this clause with all *Qualified Institutional Buyers’ and other
existing debenture-holders within 2 (two) Business Days of their specific request.

53 Name and Address of Registered Office of the Issuer:

Name of the Issuer:

Registered Office of Issuer:

Corporate Office of Issuer:

Compliance Officer of Issuer:

CFO of Issuer:

Ess Kay Fincorp Limited

G1 & G2 New Market,
Khasa Koti Circle, Jaipur, Rajasthan-302001

G182, Adarsh Plaza,
Khasa Kothi Circle, Jaipur, Rajasthan - 302001

Ms. Anagha Bangur,

Company Secretary

G1&2, Adarsh Plaza,

Klhasa Kothi Circle, Jaipur, Rajasthan - 302001

Mr. Atul Arora,

Phone No: 0141-4734016

Address: G1&2, Adarsh Plaza, Khtasa Kothi Circle,
Jaipur, Rajasthan — 302001 '

Corporate Identification Number: U65923RJ1994PLC009051

Phone No.:
Fax No.:

Contact Person:

Email:
Website of Issuer:

Auditors of the Issuer:

Trustee to the Issue:

Registrar to the Issue:

+91 141 4734016

Mr. Vivek Singh,
G1&2, Adarsh Plaza,
Khasa Kothi Circle, Jaipur, Rajasthan - 302006

anagha.bangur@skfin.in

www.skfin.in

BSR & Co.LLP .

Address: 5th Floor, Lodha Excelus, Apollo Mills Compournd
N.M Joshi Marg Mahalaxmi Mumbai-4000 11

Tel: +91-97727-09002

E-mail: anandvijav(@bsraffiliates.com

IDBI Trusteeship Scrvices Limited
Address: Asian Building, Ground Floor, 17, R.Kamani Marg,
Ballard Estate, Mumbai- 400001

Email: deepak.avasthi@jdbitrustee.com

Kfin Technologies Private Limited
46, Avenue, 4th Strect, No. 1, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad-500034

Tel: +91 40 6716 1602
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E-mail: hanumantha.patri@kfintech.com

Credit Rating Agency: CRISIL Ratings
Address: Central Avenue, Hiranandani Business Park, Powai,
Mumbai 400 076, India
Tel: +0124 5722123
E-mail; sunanda.agarwal{@crisil.com

A brief summary of business / activities of the Issuer and its line of business:

Overview:

Ess Kay Fincorp Limited is registered as an Asset Financing Non-Banking Financial
Corporation (NBFC-AFC) with the RBI. It was incorporated in 1994 and is primarily cngaged
in financing of commercial vchicles — mostly light commercial vehicles and multi utility
vehicles. Its corporate and registered office is in Jaipur, Rajasthan.

It provides loans primarily to first time buyers and small transporters for purchase of used
vehicles, The Issuer's expericnced management team, knowledge of local market, good
franchise in Rajasthan, good systems and processes, control on asset quality indicators and
adequate profitability are credit the positives for the company.

Corporate Structure/Organization Structure:

Current Corporate Status:

The Issuer was incorporated as a private limited company under the Companics Act of 1956 on
November 21, 1994 and is registered with the Reserve Bank of India as a non-deposit accepting
NBFC and converied from a private limited to public limited company under the Companies
Act of 2013 on September 04, 2017. The Issuer derives the following benefits of being
registered as an NBFC.

o  Access to Funds: Commercial lenders have greater comfort lending to a regulated NBFC
with transparent ownership. As an Issucr, Ess Kay can raise equity and offer commercial
returns.

e Diverse Funding Sources: An NBFC can access commercial investors and international
capital markets, diversifying away from donors or members as cquity funders.

e Commoercialisation: Classifying Ess Kay as an NBFC increases its commercial credibility
and integrates it and its clients into the formal financial sector which ultimately increases
its outrcach potential.

e  Mainstrenm Resources: As a for-profit commercial NBFC, Ess Kay will be morc likely to
attract mainstrcam capital resources which Socicties or Trusts would find difficult to
attract.

s  Regulatory Coverage: As Ess Kay grows in size, operating as an NBFC within the
regulatory framework mitigates risks from political and regulatory intervention.

»  Stakeholder Involvement: As an NBFC, Ess Kay can bring a variety of stakeholders to
the table, including clients, management, employces and investors.
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Ess Kay lends financial assistance in the form of loans, to help meet customers’ needs in the
transportation life cycle from end-to-end. We finance Medium Commercial Vehicles (MCV),
Light Commercial Vehicles (LCV), Multi-Utility Vehicle (MUV), Cars, Two — Wheclers and
MSME financing. Apart from financing new vehicles, we have Refinancing loans available for
usced and pre-owned vehicles of all kinds and brands.

PRODUCT DETAILS
Product . - | Features . -~ - Purposc . .| Eligibility
Vehicles loans 'S-ccure-d.by B Purchasc of vehlclc Sclf-obcupicd
hypothecation of individuals
vehicle
MSME Seccured by mortgage of | Expansion of business | Self~occupied
property residential and
commercial property
Individuals
ii, Corporate Structure
| Chel Erancal Offcer . . Cempaey Sevneiay

[l-’.;.s N kﬁ,
|

;. Rakiesm l . CeftTon
I o

1 cﬂ{t Fed
| Emthe lk.\'t:i;'-ﬂ:ﬁ:

(c) Key Operational and Financial Parameters for the last 3 audited years on a consolidated
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Parameters L Audited | -Audited Audited Audited
N o 31.Mar-17 | 31-Mar-18 | 31-Mar-19 { 31-Mar-20
(in Lakhs) (in Lakhs) (in Lakhs) | (in Lakhs)
Net Worth 8,627 20,630 55,518 87,873
Total Debt 61462 89763 129917 2,56,178
- Non-current maturities of long 20262 *
term Borrowings 30198 42815 Bifurcation
- short term bo;rT)wings__ 4597 8523 6505 not
- Current maturities of long term 43150 available
Borrowings 26667 38425
Net Fixed Assets 1016 1230 1704 4210
Non-Current Assets 38367 69175 102226
Cash and Cash equivalents 5543 2937 27761 6,237
Current investments - - 1100 13,837
Current Assets 37714 51696 66525 -
Current liabilities 37811 56944 59369 -
Asscts Under Management 82449 128198 200184 3.07,665
Off balance sheet assels 24931 27155 47216 12,832
Interest Income 12056 16931 28901 54,545
Interest Expense 6570 8479 13096 23,248
Provisioning & write offs 674 1206 2059 4777
PAT 1230 2195 5223 7,854
Gross NPA (%) 4.22% 3.37% 3.83% 4.04%
Net NPA (%) 3.41% 2.57% 2.87% 2.42%
Recognition of NPA 120 days 90 days 90 days 90 days
Tier I Capital Adequacy Ratio 31.17% 30.62%
(%) 11.56% 16.72% ‘
Tier I Capital Adequacy Ratio 1.85% 1.04%
{%) 6.20% 3.52% )

(Rs. Crores)
(d) Grass Debt: Equity Ratio of the Company (As on June 30, 2020):

Before the issue of debt securitics 2.67
After the issue of debt securities 2.75
Calculations

As on June 30, 2020, debt-to-cquity ratio is calculated as follows:

Debt 2,410.13
Equity 903.21
Debt/Equity 2.67

/
L
71

e

@ % Subsequent to the issue, debt-to-equity ratio shall be calculated as follows:
RV
',..-'*

Debt | 2,480.13
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Equity 903.21
Dcbt/Equity 2.75
*Equity includes Tier I and Tier I Capital
#Dcebt Includes Subordinated Debt

A. Project cost and means of financing, in case of funding new projects:

Nil / Not applicable

A. Details of Share Capital as on last quarter end i.e. June 30, 2020:

A Brief history of Issuer since ifs incorporation giving details of its following activities:

‘Share Capital " Rs.
Authorised . ‘In INR Lakhs
Equity share capital 575.00
Preference share capual Nil
TOTAL. 575,00
Issucd, Subscribed and Fully Paid- up 503.90
Equity share capital 503.90
Preference Shares Nil
TOTAL 503.90

B. Changes in its capital structure as on last quarter end i.c. June 30, 2020, for the last five
years:
. ' .. "Change in Authorised Share - |’
‘ Clnngcs in “5 C"Imal Capltﬂl (l'.‘.qu:ty and Prci‘ercnce) .
' structure as on Iast _ (Rs) - -+, Particulars
quarter end . =
- Date ofChange I EE. e B . Change in
(AGM/EGM). . |+ fasting |-, Revised: capital (Rs.)
T 31.12.2010 12,500,000 25,000,000 +12,500,000
31.12.2011 25,000,000 25,000,000 -
45,000,000(E.S.) +20,000,000
31.12.2012 25,000,000 12,500,000(P.S) +12,500,000
31129013 45,000,000(E.S.) | 45,000,000(E.S.) ]
o 12,500,000(P.S) 12,500,000(P.S5)
45,000,000(E.S.) 45,000,000(E.S.) )
31.12.2014 12,500,000(P.S) | 12,500,000(P.S)
45,000,000(E.S.) 45,000,000(E.5.) .
31.12.2015 12,500,000(P.5) | 12,500,000(P.S)
45,000,000(E.S.} 45,000,000(E.S.) )
31.03.2017 12,500,000(P.S) | 12,500,000(P.S)
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45,000,000(E.S) | 5,75,00,000(E.S.)

>12.2017 12,500,000(P.S) :
Each ES of Rs. 100
11.09.2018 575,00,000E.8) | > 200000ES) | Lo splitted into 50
ES of Rs. 02 each,

C. Equity Share Capital History of the Company as on last quarter end i.e. June 30, 2020, for
the last five years:
- - | Fac L ‘
| Nameof | No e | - { Consider | Natur | -
Date of | equity - .shal:e Val | Issue “ation cof | Cumulative paid-up capital Remark
allotment | sharcholde | ™ ue | price. | Amount | Allotm | : (Rs.) )
e (Rs (Rs.) ent
:) o
No. of Equity
(No. of equit Equity Share
shares * .
y share Premi
Issue . .
. share | Capital | um (in
price) s Rs.)
Share
Ash transferr
.KS a 3650 | 100 | 500 | 1,825,000 | Equity don
othari 15.1.20
2
Share
Mantra transferr
Trading 2000 | 100 500 1,000,000 | Equity don
Company 22.12.21
11
123,1 | 12,315,00 Sharc
31.03.2010 Vajra 50 0 transferr
Trading 2000 | 100 500 1,000,000 | Equity don
Company 22.12.2
11
Share
Ess Kay transferr
Finserve 3200 | 100 500 1,600,000 { Equity d on
Pwvt. Ltd. 22122
: 1
Total 1085 V10| 500 | 5425000 | Equity
apabni 00 |100| soo | 400000 | Equity
Shared
. 164,7 | 16,472,00 Transfer
31032011 AunDas | 350 |100| 500 | 160,000 | Equity | 90 0 cd on
07.07.2i
14
Ao KAY Rajendra 40520 | 100 500 20,260,00 | Equity
EAUAY
%M\/‘ 24
i
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Kumar 0
Sctia
Total 41664 100 | 500 20'830’00 Equity
Rajendra
27.12.2011 | Kumar 1962 1100 s00 | 8810000 | Equity “ﬁ]’“ 18,241,00
Setia
BanyanTre
e Growth . 1824 | 18,247,00
05.03.2012 Capital 60 100 1500 90,000 | Equity 70 0
LLC
Shalini 2368 | 100 | 2000 | 1,184,000 | Equity
Sciia e
Shares
Ariun Das transferr
Sc:}; 1200 | 100 2000 600,000 | Equity don
' 1995 | 19,951,80 16.08.2(
31.03.2012 18 0 14
Rajendra
Kumar 13480 | 100 2000 6,740,000 | Equity
Setia
Total ”é"“ 100} 2000 34’036'00 Equity
Rajendra
Kumar 190 | 100 2632 500,080 | Equity
Setia
Ladder Up
26.03.2014 | Corporate 2%4 2”31*5“
Advisory 2707 | 100 2632 7,124,824 | Equity
Private
Limited
Total 2,897 | 100 2632 7,624,904 | Equity
BanyanTre
¢ Growth 119,9 100 100 179,910,0 | Prefere | 119,9 | 11,994,00
Capital 40 00 nce 40 0
LLC
31.03.2014 32525’3 32'235-’50
31.03.2015 §§2,3 32'235'50
322,3 | 32,235,50
31.03.2016 55 0
Share
receives
Yash Setia 13 100 NA NA Equity on
12.11.21
16
3223 | 32,235,50 Share
12.11.2016 Shalini 55 0 received
atmt 13 100 NA Na Equity on
Setia 12.11.21
16
] She
AwlArora | 13 | 100 | 3790.68 | 49278.84 | Equity pur:]‘]':&
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d from
cxisting
sharchol
cr on
12.11.2
16
68294
Equity
share
Banyan issued
Tree lieu of
27.03.2017 | Growth | 68294 [ 100 | 175.623 | NA | Equity | 277 | 27070900 Compul
Capital ory
LLC Convert
ble
preferen
¢ share:
Total 68333 | - 3790.68 | 49278.84 | Equity
Norwest Fresh
Venture Allotmic
Partners X | 44,46 12,467.2 | 55,43,94,1 .
— Mauritius | 8 100 | 6 17.68 Equity
g;:::f} Fresh
Equity 15,96 12,467.2 | 19,90,14,8 15091 001677 Allotme
30.12.2017 | India AIF 31100 6 71.38 | Equity 9 35091900 924.6
Karma . Fresh
Holdings Allotnte
Mauritius 12,467.2 | 6,00,54,79 :
Limited 4,817 | 100 6 1.42 | Equity
Evolvence Fresh
India Fund 14,96 12,467.2 | 18,65,35,] Allotme
INLTD 2| 100 6 44.12 | Equity t
Transfer
from
Banyan
Tree
Growth
Capital
Rajendr
Kumar
Sctia &
Norwest Ladder
30.12.2017 | Venture 23091 1 35091900 | %0777 | Up
Partners X | 41,35 12,467.2 | 51,55,96,0 ’ Finance
— Mauritius | 6 100 | 6 04.56 Equity Limiteg
Transfer
from
Banyan
Tree
Baring Growth
Private Capital
Equity 14,84 12,467.2 | 18,50,76,4 Rajendr
. India AIF 51100 6 74.70 | Equity Kumar
<ﬂﬁb’i~‘” .

Py
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Setia &
Ladder
Up
Finance
Limitec
Transfer
from
Banyan
Tree
Growth
Capital.
Rajendr
Kumar
Setia &
Karma Ladder
Holdings Up
Mauritius 12,467.2 | 5,58,53,32 Finance
Limited 4,480 | 100 6 4.80 | Equity Limiteg
Transfer
from
Banyan
Tree
Growth
Capital
Rajendr
Kumar
Setia &
Ladder
Evolvence Up
India Fund 13,91 12,467.2 | 17,34,694 Finance
INLTD 4| 100 6 55.64 | Equity Limitec
Evolvence 28,87 12,467.2 | 36,00,04,5 35091 35091900 091977 Transf
23.02.2018 | Coinvest 1 6 | 100 6 99.76 | Equity | 9 924.6 | M
Rajendra
Kumar 20,000.0 | 2,50,00,00 22091 | 35091900 | 0177 | Transter
26.02.2018 | Setia HUF 1,250 | 100 0 0.00 | Equity '
Splited into
50 Equity
11.09.2018 ﬁgjl‘tfgw NA |02 |NA NA Equity [ 100 | 35091900 |NA | Spli
02 Per
Share
Rajendra Convers
13102018 [ Kumar | %% |02 |{NA NA Equity | 13300 | 36601200 {NA [ onof
) 0 600
Sectia Warrant: .
TPG
Purchasc
31.102018 | SOV IV | 16770 ) | 5659 | 99999621 | p ey | 18968 | 36036606 [NA | from
SF Pte 3 87 303 RKS
Limited
Growih IV | 29048 17321240 18756 280239 | -"o%F
31.10.2018 | oo 3s 02 |59629 |57 Equity | g0- | 37512804 [120% :\llolmcl
Limited 1 __
31.10.2018 | Evolvence | 45584 | 02 | 596.29 27181700 | Equity | 21661 | 43322564 Fresh

& :
R b
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Coinvest |7 7.63 282 Allotme:
t
Norwest Fresh
Venture 13548 80788171 . 23016
31.10.2018 Partners X | 47 02 |596.29 7.63 Equity 129 46032258 :Mlotmel
— Mauritius
Growih1v | 1316 1,419,999 24332 Fresh
21.11.2019 SF Pic 497 02 | 1078.62 994,14 Equity 626 48665252 ;Allolmc:
Limited
Norwest
234564 | Fresh
Venture 630,4 679,999,7 . 24963
21.11.2019 Partners X | 35 02 | 1078.62 99.70 Equity 061 49026122 | 2760.2 :ﬂullolmm
— Mauritius I
Evolvence Fresh
21.11.2019 | India Fund | 27 |02 |107862 | 230003 | Equity {23194 | 50389678 Allotmes
78 86.36 839
111 Ltd t
D. Details of any Acquisition or Amalgamation in the Iast 1 (one) ycar:
There has been no acquisition or amalgamation in the Jast 1 (one) year.
E. Details of any Reorganization or Reconstruction in the last I {one) year:
There has been no rcorganization or reconstruction in the last 1 (one) year.
5.6 Details of the sharcholding of the Company as on June 30, 2020:
A. Sharcholding pattern of the Company as on June 30, 2020:
S, Name of Sharcholder | Naturc of | Face Value per | No. of shares | % of paid-up
No. _ - ‘Shayes - - |shareinRs. - | share capital
I Rajendra Kumar Sctia | Equity 02 1,03,27,547 40.99
2 Shalini Setia Equity 02 650 0.00
3 Yash Sctia Equity 02 650 0.00
4 Bhajan Devi Setia Equity 02 650 0.00
5 Rajendra Kumar Sctia | Equity 02 62,500 0.25
(HUF)
6 Nonwest Venture Equity 02 62,76,482 2491
Partners X-Mauritius
7 Baring Private Equity Equity 02 15,40,400 6.11
India AIF
8 Karma Holdings Equity 02 4,64,850 1.85
Mauritius Limited
9 Evolvence Coinvest | Equity g2 18,99,647 7.54
o KhT N\ | TPG Growth IV SF Pre | Equity 02 43,39,035 17.42
2 ""'"\,(\
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Limited

Il Evolvence India Fund Equity 02 2,31,678 0.92
II1 Ltd.

i2 Atul Arora Equity 02 650 0.00

Total 2,51,94,839 100.00

Notes: Details of shares pledged or encumbered by the promoters (if any): NIL

B. List of top 10 holders of equity shares of the Company as on June 30, 2020:

S. Name of Sharcholder | Naturcof | Face Value per ' | No. of shares | % of paid-up

No. _ " | Shares _ sh_ar'c_ inRs. _ . | share enpital

I Rajendra Kumar Setia | Equity 02 1,03,27,547 | 40.99

2 Shalini Setia Equity 02 650 0.00

3 Yash Setia Equity 02 650 0.00

4 Bhajan Devi Sctia Equity 02 650 0.00

5 Rajendra Kumar Sctia | Equity 02 62,500 0.25
(HUF)

6 Norwest Venture Equity 02 62,76,482 24.91
Partners X-Mauritius

7 Baring Private Equity Equity 02 15,40,400 6.11
India ATF

8 Karma Holdings Equity 02 4,64,850 1.85
Mauritius Limited

9 Evolvence Coinvest | Equity 02 18,99,647 7.54

10 TPG Growth IV SF Pte | Equity 02 43,89,035 17.42
Limited

11 Evolvence India Fund | Equity 02 2,31,678 0.92
IH1 Ltd.

12 Atul Arora Equity 02 650 0.00

Total 2,51,94,839 100.00

5.7 Following details regarding the directors of the Company:

A Details of current dircctors of the Company:

This table scts out the details regarding the Company’s Board of Dircctors:

Sr. Dircctor | Date'of -| - Age | 'PAN. | Director. | DIN" |"-Address | - Details of
No ’s name Birth * }. ot of the v ' other
' * company directorships
< AR - since- -
’ N
S 29
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1. Rajendra | 01.07.19 49 { AGWP | 21.11.199 | 009573 ] 2Chal2 Nil
Kumar 69 Years | S0094 | 4 74 Jawahar
Sctia A Nagar,
Jaipur
2. Shalini | 04.06.19 47 ABXP | 01.01.201 | 028176 | 2Chal2 Nil
Setia 72 Years | S3855 | 0 24 Jawahar
K Nagar,
Jaipur
3. | AmarLal | 13.03.19 64 AKDP | 01.04.201 | 052281 | 703, Dev | L. Deveni
- | Daultani 55 Years | D8573 | 6 56 Plaza, Near [ ©  Optimus
G Tcjaswani | Advisors
Hospital | Private
Kadri, Limited;
Temple
Road, |2 Ativir
Mangalore, | Stock
Karnataka. | Broking
Private
Limited;
3. Viraj
Profiles
Limited
4, Munish | 03.04.19 53 AAFP | 26.02.201 | 016838 H.N. 1. IvC
Dayal 66 Years | D7954 {8 36 LCG804A, | Association
D Sushant
Lok- | %
1, Laburnu Manappu.ram
m Hlorr'lc Finance
Apartment Limited
Gurgaon,T | 3. Starkarma
ch- Realty
Gurgaon | Holdings India
Private
Director
Limited
4, Proactive
Data Systems
Private Limited
5. RMZ
Infotech
Private Limited
RMZ
Infrastech
Private Limited
Infrasofi
N+ Technologics
\&\j
HyYW 30
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Limited

Infrasoft
Technologics
Pte. Lid.,
Singapore

Infrasoft
Technologies
Sdn. Bhd.,
Malaysialll.
Infrasoft
Technologics
Inc., USA

Infrasoft
Technologics
Limited,UK

Anand
Raghvan

04.06.19
61

58
Years

AACP
Al877

07.04.20]
8

002434
85

22/1,
Warren
Road,
Mylapore,
Chennai
600004

1. MMTC
Limited

2. Sterling
Holiday
Resorts
Limited

3 Five-Star
Business
Finance
Limited

4, Five-Star
Housing
Finance Private
Limited

5. Chennai
International
Centre

6. Nani
Palkhivala
Arbitration
Centre

Akshay
Tanna

20/11/19
82

38 yrs

ADQP
T5302

03.06.202
0

029670
21

A2,
Darshan
Apts,
Mount
Pleasant
Road,

Malabar .

Hill, Near

-Dodla
Limited

Dairy

-Big Tree
Entertainment
Private Limited

-Landmark
Insurance
Brokers Private
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Chief Limited
Ministers
Bungalow -Lenskart
" | Solutions
Mumbai- | Private Limited
400006,
Maharashtr -Automark_
a Motors Private
Limited
-Landmark
Commercial
Vchicles
Private Limited
-FSN E-
Commerce
Ventures
Private Limited

*Company to disclose name of the current directors who are appearing in the RBI defaulter list and/or ECGC
default list, if any: None

B. * Details of change in directors since last three years as on June 30, 2020:
B o _ ]?n_tc.of
Name Designation DIN ; -Da.t‘e of ‘R!:mgnatmn Remarks
: _ Appointment | (in case of
_ resignation)
Naval .
Jawaharlal | 1odependent | 5 o0ces | 05032012 | 20052014 | Appointment and
Dircctor Resignation

Totla
Anshuman | Independent | 7715 | 50052014 25032015 | Appointmentand
Goenka Director Resignation
Samiv Nomince | 07408616 | 25.03.2015 30.12.2017 | APpointmentand
Singhal Director Resignation
Govind Independent | 004172 [ 29.12.2014 01.04.201¢ | Appointment and
Saboo Director Resignation
Amar Independent 08.05.2018 | Appointment and
Chand Chug | Director 07144359 1 25.03.2015 Resignation
AgunDas | ocior | 00469127 | 21.11.1994 20.09.2015 | AAppointment and
Setia Resignation
Amar Lal Independent - .
Daultani Director 05228156 | 01.04.2016 Appointment
Rahu.1 N?mmcc 30.12.2017 05.09.2018 App.omlr_ncnl and
Bhasin Director Resignation
Munish Nominee 01683836 | 26.02.2018 Appointment
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Dayal Director

R Anand | fdependent | oo i3485 | 07.04.2018 Appointment
Director

Gaurav Nf)mmcc 03467781 | 31.10.2018 20.05.2020 App‘omn?lem and

Trehan Director Resignation

Akshay Nomince | 55967021 | 03.06.2020 Appointment

Tanna Director

5.8 Tollowing details regarding the auditors of the Company:

A.  Details of the auditor of the Company:

Name Address Auditor since Remark

BSR & Co. LLP 5th Floor, Lodha Excelus | 11.09.2018 NA
Apollo Mills Compound
N.M Joshi Marg
Malalaxmi Mumbai-
400011

B.  Details of change in auditors since last three years:

Name: "' .| © . Address . |- " Dateof . | Auditorsince :| Remark
_ D S+ - .07 | nppointment| - '
SS Kothari Mchta . 146-148 Tribhuvan 30.09.2014' 30.09.2014 to | NIL
Complex, Ishwar Nagar, 1.09.2018

Mathura road, Necw
Delhi 110017

M/sBSR&Co.LLP |5th  Floor, Lodha|11.09.2018 11.09.2018 to | NIL
Excelus Apollo Mills 01.09.2023
Compound N.M. Joshi
Marg, Mahalaxmi,
Mumbai, Maharashtra-
400011

5.9 Details of borrowings of the Company, as on latest quarter end i.c. June 30, 2020:

A.  Details of Secured Loan Facilitics as on June 30, 2020:

(Rs. InCr.)
o AT S N N | Security
S Lo Dageofl [T Lo [ Ofsasont] | Margin
Name of the Bank /", . | TYRGOT- Ly yoyyo °| Sanetione.| g 4629 | Maturity | on
Institution ... . | Facility - | .0 -{dAmount |- o . _ o,
- SRRl RN U SUNTESIE S 0. e 'rcccwnblc
RBL Bank Limitcd Tems | 16-Feb- | 22.90 579 | 28Feb2l | 133%
33
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Loan 18
RBL Bank Limited Term 05-Mar- 40.00 24.00 08-Mar-22 133%
2 Loan 19
HDFC Bank Limited Term 14-Feb- | 1000 313 07-Apr-21 133%
3 Loan 18
HDFC Bank Limited Term 30-Aug- | 1500 922 | 078cp22 | a5,
4 Loan 18
HDFC Bank Limited Term 07-Mar- | 9500 1620 | 07-Apr-22 133%
5 Loan 19
HDFC Bank Limited Term 27-Aug- | 5509 1948 | 07-Sep-22 133%
6 Loan 19
The South Indian Bank Term 25-Aug- 2.34 25-Aug-20 0
7 | Limited Loan 16 12.00 125%
The South Indian Bank Term 16-Mar- 10.00 31-Mar-23 o
$ | Limited Loan 20 10.00 120%
Oricntal Bank of Term 03-Apr- 15.00 12.85 03-Apr-23 118%
9 | Commerce Loan 19
Dcb Bank Limited Term 09-Oct- 13.00 1.48 31-Oct-20 133%
10 Loan 17
Bank of Baroda (carlicr Term 03-Apr- 2.04 01-Apr-22 0
11 | Vijaya Bank) Loan 17 500 125%
Indusind Bank Limited | 1™ 16-Nov- | 55 00 6.28 | 30Nov-20 | )54,
12 Loan 17
Indusind Bank Limited | 107" 01-Oct- | 1500 1086 | 30-Nov-22 |54,
13 Loan 18
Utkarsh Small Finance Term 19-Dec- 5.00 31-Mar-21
14 | Bank Loan 17 20.00 110%
Ujjivan Small Finance Term 05-Dec- 5.00 31-Dec-20
15 | Bank Ltd Loan 18 20.00 120%
Ujjivan Small Finance Term 24-Dec- 16.67 31-Dec-22
16 | Bank Lid Loan 19 20.00 120%
Kotak Mahindra Bank Term 27-Mar- 25.56 09-May-22
17 | Limited Loan 19 40.00 120%
Term 11-Jun- 15.00 29-Jun-23
18 Bank of Maharashtra Loan 19 15.00 133%
Federal Bank Limited Term 25-Jun- | 4509 200 | 28-Dec-2l | 550,
19 Loan 19
20 | IDFC First Bank Limited | Term 24-Jun- | 100.00 7692 | 28-Dec-22 | 120%
N
’ k]
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Loan 19
Capital Small Finance Term 16-Sep- 8.60 01-Dee-22 o
21 | Bank Ltd Loan 19 10.00 125%
Axis Bank 2nd Term 23-Sep- 15.00 11.25 30.09.2022 120%
22 Loan 19
Federal Bank Limited Term 21-Dee- 11500 1200 | 21-Jun-22 |0,
23 Loan 19
Utkarsh Small Finance Term 25-Nov- 12.08 30-Nov-22 o
24 | Bank Loan 19 15.00 ‘ 5%
Dcb Bank Limited Term 08-Jan- 15.00 13.37 01-Feb-23 133%
25 Loan 20
Indusind Bank Limited Term 06-Jan- 35.00 32.81 31-Mar-24 125%
26 Loan 20
SBM Term 04-Mar- 17.50 28-Feb-22 0
27 Loan 20 20.00 115%
ICICI Bank Term 25-Feb- 9.58 28-Feb-22 o
28 Loan |20 10.00 133%
State Bank of India Term 15-Jun- 4.50 4.50 15-Jun-22 133%
29 Loan 20
Small Industries Term 19-Sep- 5.75 10-May-22
Development Bank of Loan 16 P 15.00 133%
30 | India II
Small Industries Term 50.00 10-Apr-21
Development Bank of Loan 12-Jun- 50.00 133%
31 | India Il 20
Hinduja Leyland Finance | Term 30-Jun- 0.23 30-Jun-20 o
32 | Limited Loan 17 7.00 110%
Hinduja Leyland Finance | Term 09-Oct- 1.19 31-Oct-20
. 110%
33 | Limited Loan 17 7.30 ’
Hinduja Leyland Finance | Term 28-Mar- 5.62 31-Mar-21 120%
34 | Limited Loan 18 20.00 0
Hinduja Leyland Finance | Term 21-Feb- 20.44 04-Mar-23 o
22, 110%
35 | Limited Loan 20 90 ’
e o Term 28-Scp- 262 | 31-Mar-2l
. 20%
36 Bajaj Finance Limited Loan 17 20.00 1
Term 26-Feb- 13.89 28-Fcb-22
jaj Fi imited- 120%
37 Bajaj Finance Limited-Il Loan 19 25.00 )
Term 27-Feb- 22,22 31-Mar-23
jaj Fi imited - . 120%
18 Bajaj Finance Limited -I1I Loan 20 25.00 o
—
Lo 35
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39 Nabkisan Finance Limited Loan 17 15.00 110%
40 | Nabkisan Finance Limited IE:: ?S-Jan— 7.75 >81 22-Apr-24 110%
. E?[Eis:c]:mddhi Finance Iz;r: ;g-Mar- 20.00 18.75 29-Feb-24 110%
- Pidiizz:sgumm Finance Eg:: :g-Nov- 25.00 7.14 3i-May-21 110%
“ ﬁiza:fg-lgam Finance ;I-'gr;: L:S-F eb- 50.00 31.32 31-Mar-22 110%
s S ;ilxmi(::\gital India Zg:: ?;-Nov- 30.00 476 30-Nov-20 133%
. E::it::tc::ik Financtial Service E‘::: ?g-Dcc- 15.00 3.0 01-Aug-22 110%
46 | Magma Fincorp Limited | /70 130D y009 | 2% 28-Feb-21 1 500
. it:il::}ctzlk Financial Service Egz: ?;-Jul- 5.00 2.26 01-Jan-22 110%
w0 L/todl.lz-sr\'v[z’l)gcn Finance Pvt Eg;r: ;z-Scp- 20.00 10.23 01-Nov-21 110%
“ Eii:;itt:dCapilal Private E‘zr:: ?g-Mar- 10.00 6.86 30-Sep-22 110%
5 | Bank of Maharashtra ECMCD :;-Om- 15.00 1500 | On Demand 133%
5, | State Bank of India ECAVCD :f-Nov- 6.00 6.00 | On Demand 133%
5 i}‘g‘gﬁ““k of India - EC"W b ?E'A"g' 3000 | 3900 |OnDemand | 133%
54 | RBL Bank Limited ECAVCD fg's"p' 5.00 500 |OnDemand | 133%
HDFC Bank Limited CC/WCD | i4-Feb- 10.00 10.00 133%
55 L 18 On Demand
5¢ | Au Small Finance Bank ECN"CD ?E'M‘“' 32.85 32.85 |OnDemand | 110%
57 | Axis B?}&N (I‘:‘CIWCD ﬁ-Mar— 5.00 500 | OnDemand 120%
&% .
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Tata Capital Finance CCwCD | 28- .
. . . X 0 Demand 120%
58 | Service Limited-WCDL | L May-18 | 1000 10.00 | On Dem °
. CC/WCD | 06-Jan-
Indusind Bank 10.00 10.00 On Demand 125%
59 L 20
B. Details of Unsecured Loan Facilities as on June 30, 2020:
. Type of Date of | Sanctioned | Ofsason | Maturity
Name of the Bank / Institution o - . :
' - “facility Sanction | -Amount | 30.06.2020 | Date
IDFC First Bank Ltd (Capital | 21-Scp- X 23-S¢p-
: (Cap Tier-1I P 20.00 20.00 P
First) 15 21
C.  Details of Non-Convertible Debentures as on June 30, 2020:
(Rs. In Cr.)
Debenture” [" Tenor/ | *Coufion” | -Amio | “Dateof *| Redemption | - .Credit .- |“Secured/ |- *. Including Securlty.
Series © | Périod | ‘(Rateof | unt | alletment [ Date/ .| Ratlng | Uasectire |- . - <. - P
Lol s |ilnterest) | (Rs )T T L[ Sehedule | 5wy T de T o
Maturd | B I T | e e *
L - t)' L T e ‘CI‘OI’ .., ‘:.-‘ % . . ?ﬁI: X
3751-3230 | Sycars | 14.75% | 48.00 | 28/05/201 | 533.33 Lacs | CARE | Secured | 120% of the aggregate of the
4 each at BBB outstanding principal amount
30.05.20135, of the Debentures or 100% of
30.11.2015, the aggregate of the
30.05.2016, outstanding principal amount
30.11.2016, of the Debentures and the
30.05.2017, value of all future intcrest
30.11.2017, payments on those
30.05.2018, outstanding Debenturcs.
30.11.2018, whichever is greater.
30.05.2019 .
3231- 3.37 12.05% | 944.7 | 211127201 | 05/0222019 CARE Secured Secured by way of
192185 years P.A 75 5 BBB hypothecation of book debt
05/05/2019 which shall be maintained at
110% of debenture
outstanding.
192186- 6 Years 13.00% | 2000. | 29/09/201 | 29/09/2022 CARE Unsecured NIL
192385 00 6 BBB-
192586- 1.5 11.50% 15.00 1 20-Mar- 20-Sep-18 CARE Secured Nil
194085 Years 17 BBB
Quarterly
instalments
aftera
period of @
months
195586- 42 Market 2500 12707117 124017221 [CARE] { Unsccured NIL
195835 months Linked aooo BBB+
0
195836- 15 11.00% 1500 { 16/08118 16/02/18 [CARE] Secured And first exclusive charge
197335 months - 0000 BBB+ with 1.33 times (133%)
’ security cover over the book
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0 16/05/18 debts of the company.
16/08/18
16/1118
197336- i6 Market 1500 | 18/08/17 18/08/2020 [CARE] Secured | Exclusive charge via a deed of
204835 Months Linked 0000 BBB+ hypothecation over specific
0 standard asset portfolio of
receivables covering sccurity
of 1.1X at all times & Pari
passu charge over the
immovable property of the
Company.
2014836- 24 10.85% | 20,00 27 31.01.2018 IND A Sccured | Exclusive charge via a deed of
205035 Months | Monthly | 00,0 | December (50 hypothecation over specific
0o 2017 28.02.2018 standard assct portfolio of
reccivables covering security
30.03.2018 of 1.2X at all times & Pari
30.04.2018 passu charge over the
itnmovable property of the
31.05.2018 Company.
29.06.2018
31.07.2018
31.08.2018
28.09.2018
31.10.2018
30.11.2018
31.12.2018
31.01.2019
28.02.2019
20.03.2019
30.04.2019
31.05.2019
28.06.2019
31.07.2019
30.08.2019
30.09.2019
31.10.2019
29.11.2019
27.12.2019
205036~ 24 10.85% 30,00 28 31.01.2018 IND A Secured Exclusive charge via a deed of
205335 Months | Monthly | 00,0 | Dec2017 ) {50) hypothecation over specific
00 28.02.2018 standard asset portiolio of
el 10,03.2018 receivables covering seeurity
g "I_&'\bj:\\\: of 1.2X at all times & Pari
e N 30.04.2018 passu charge over the
D810 immovable property of the
A\
(\\9 Y iy »
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31.05.2018 Company.
29.06.2018
31.07.2018
31.08.2018
28.09.2018
31.10.2018
30.11.2018
31.12.2018
31.01.2019
28.02.2019
29.03.2019
30.04.2019
31.05.2019
28.06.2019
31.07.2019
30.08.2019
30.09.2019
31.10.2019
29.11.2019
27.12.2019

205336 24 10.60% 3500 18th 16.02.2018 IND Sccured | Exclusive charge vin a deed of

205685 Months 0000 | Januvary, A(SO) hiypothecation over specific
0 2018 16.03.2018 standard assct portfolio of !
receivables covering security
18.04.2018 of 1.2X at all times & Pari
18.05.2018 passu charge over the
immovable property of the
18.06.2018 Company.

18.07.2018
17.08.2018
18.09.2018
18.10.2018
16.11.2018
18.12.2018
18.01.2019
18.02.2019
18.03.2019
S 18.04.2019

ﬂf/\’ N 17.05.2019
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18.06.2019
18.07.2019
16.08.2019
18.09.2019
18.10.2019
18.11.2019
18.12.2019
17.01.2020

205686-
205935

22
tMonths

10.60%

25,00
vo 0.0
00

27th
February,
2018

30.03.2018
30.04.2018
31.05.2018
29.06.2018
31.07.2018
J1.08.2018
28.09.2018
31.10.2018
30.11.2018
31.12.2018
31.01.2019
28.02.2019
29.03.2019
30.04.2019
31.05.2019
28.06.2019
31.07.2019
30.08.2019
30.09.2019
31.10.2019
29.11.20i9
27.12.2019

IND
A(SO)

Secured

Exclusive charge vin a deed of
hypothecation over specific
standard assct portfolio of

receivables covering security
of 1.2X at all times & Pari

passu charge over the
immovable property of the
Company.

205926
207935

Month

AN Vs

9.75%

20,00
00,0
0o

12th
March,
2018

12.09.20181

2.10.201812.

11.2018

12.12.20181
2.01.2019

12.02.2019

[CARE]
BBB+

Secured

Exclusive charpe via a decd of
hypothecation over specific
standard assct portfolio of

receivables covering security
of 1.2X at al! times & Pari

passu charge aver the
immovable property of the
Company.

= e R
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12.03.2019
12.04.2019
12.05.2019
12.06.2019
12.07.2019
12.08.2019
12.09.2019
207916- 1277 Linked to | 25,00 | 15th May Bullct CARE Sceured First ranking, exclusive and
210435 Days Reference | ,00,0 2018 Payment PP-MLD continuing charge on
Index 00 BBB+ identified receivables
covering security of110.0%
{Onec Hundred and Ten
Percent) the aggregate amount
of principal outstanding of the
NCDs
210436- 36 11.23% { 75,00 | 24thMay | 26.11.2018 CARE Seceured The Debenture shall be first
211935 Months pa 00,0 2018 BBB+ ranking exclusive charge on
00 24.05.2019 Hypothecated Asscts of
25.11.2019 Receivables which shall be
o maintained at 1.20x times of
25.05.2020 debentures outstanding,
24.11.2020
24.05.2021
211936- 36 10.9007% | 50,00 | 14th Junc | 31.05.2019 BWR A Secured First ranking, exclusive and
212435 Months p.a ,00,0 2018 continuing charge on
00 29.05.2020 identified receivables
11.06.2021 covering security of 105.0%
o the aggregate amount of
principal aumtstanding of the
NCDs
212436- 15 10.85% | 75,00 | 29th Junc | 28-09-2018 BWR A Secured | Exclusive charge via a deed of
213185 months XIRR 00,0 2018 hypothecation over specific
Qo 28-12-2018 standard asset portfolio of
2019 receivables covering sccurity
203 of 105% aggregate amount of
28-06-2019 principal outstanding at all
times &-Pari passu charpe
27-09-2019 over the immovable propesty
of the Company.
213186- 36 10.9007% | 75.00 | 27th July 31 May Brickwork | Seccured First ranking, exclusive and
213935 months | monthly | ,00,0 2018 2019 Ratings continuing charge on
coupon, 00 {A Stable) tdentificd receivables
compound 29 May covering sceurity of105.0%
ed 2020 the aggregate amount of
monthly principal outstanding of the
inJ
and 2021 NCDs
payable
%. annually
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213936- 24 11.14% | 25,00 3lst 01 March CARE A~ | Sccured first ranking exclusive charge
214185 Months pa 00,0 August 2019 by way of hypothecation in
00 2018 favour of the Debenture
02 Trustee on behalf of and for
September the benefit of the Debenture
2019 Holders over the
02 March Hypothecated Assels
2020
31 August
2020
214436 24 11.14% | 75,00 | 26th Sept 22 March first ranking cxclusive charge
215185 Maonths p.a 00,0 2018 2019 by way of hypothecation in
00 favour of the Debenture
22 Trustee on behalf of and for
September the benefit of the Debenture
2019 Holders over the
22 March Hypothecated Assets
2020
22 August
2020
22
September
2020
215186- 36 10.9007% | 75,00 28th 31 May Brickwork | Secured First ranking, exclusive and
215935 months | monthly | ,00,0 | September 2019 Ratings continuing charge on
coupon, 00 2018 (A Stable) identified receivables
compound 29 May covering security of105.0%
ed 2020 the appregate
monthly 11 Junc
and 2021
payable
annually
215936~ .63 11.1610% | 50,00 21st Sth March | CARE A- Securcd Secured by way of
5215935 | Months | coupon 00,0 | December 2024 hypothecation of book debts
{cquivalen | 00 2018 which shall be maintained at
tto 100% of debentures
11.75% outstanding.
XIRR)
5215936~ 731 PPMLD | 36.65 | 07.06.201 | 04.06.2021 | CRISILA | Seceured Sccured by way of
5219935 days 9 Stable hiypothecation of book debts
which shall be maintained at
120% of debentures
outstanding.
5219916- 23 11.50 25 14.06.201 14.05.2021 | CRISILA | Sccured Sccured by way of
5220185 9 Smble hypothceation of book debis
which shall be maintained at
105.0% of debentures
outstanding.
L. KRR
: /l ;\f(\
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5220186- 24 11.50 25 14.06.201 14.06.2021 | CRISILA | Sccured Sccurcd by way of
5220435 9 Stable hypothecation of book debis
which shall be maintained at
105.0% of debentures
outstanding.
5220436- 25 11.50 25 14.06.201 14.07.2021 | CRISILA | Sccured Secured by way of
5220685 9 Stable hypathecation of book debts
which shall be maintained at
105.0% of debentures
outstanding.
5220686- 26 11.85 75 14.06.201 14.08.202] | CRISILA | Secured Sccured by way of
5221435 9 Stable hypothecation of book debts
which shall be maintained at
105.0% of debentures
outstanding.
5221436- 48 12.00% 3e0 | 01.08.201 | 01.08.2023 | CRISILA | Secured Sccurcd by way of
5224435 months 9 Stable hypothecation of book debts
which shall be maintained at
120.0% of debentures
outstanding,
5224436- 36 0-12 50 13.08.20] 13.08.2022 | CRISILA | Secured Sccured by way of
5229435 | months | months- 9 hypothccation of book debis
11.00% which shall be maintained at
120.0% of debentures
13-18 outstanding.
months- '
11.50%
19-24
months-
11.75%
23-30
months-
12.00%
31-36
months-
12.25%
KAP
S\
i« [Dcsw
L.
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5229436~ 36 0-6 25 16.08.201 16.08.2022 | CRISILA | Seccured Sccured by way of
5231935 | months | months. 9 Stable hypothccation of book debis
11.00% which shall be maintained at
120.0% of debentures
7-12 outstanding.
months-
11.25%
13-18
months-
11.50%
19-24
months-
11.75%
25-30
months-
12.00%
31-36
Months-
12.25%
5231936- 36 11.94% 35 13.09.201 13.09.2022 | CRISILA | Sccured Secured by way of
5232285 maonths P.a 9 Stable hypothecation of book debis
Payable which shall be maintained at
Quartcrly 105.0% of debentures
outstanding.
5232286- 36 11.94% 15 19.09.201 13.09.2022 | CRISIL A | Secured Sccured by way of
5232435 months Pa 9 Stable hypothecation of book debis
Payable which shall be maintained at
Quarterly 105.0% of debentures
outstanding.
5232436- 1857 10435% | 290.0 | 11.12.201 10.01.2025 NA Secured Secured by way of
5235335 Days 0 9 hypothecation of book debts
which shall be maintained at
115.0% of debentures
oulstanding.
5235336- 72 12.05% 86 23.12.201 23.122025 | CRISILA | Secured Secured by way of
5236195 Months | p.anetof 9 Stable hypothecation of book debis
withholdi which shall be maintained at
ng tax and 110.0% of debentures
payable outstanding.
semi-
annually
5236196- 24 Market 33.60 0%th 09th CRISIL Sccured The value of security at all
5236595 Months Linked January, January, PP-MLD times equal to 1.10x times of
Debenture 2020 2022 Ar/Stable security cover over the book
5 debts and Pan passu charge
over the immovaeble property
in the form of land located in
Chennai
5236596~ 36 RBlrepo | 50.00 | 02/067202 | 02/06/2023 | CRISIL A Senior, The value of sccurity at all
5237095 months | rate plus 0 Secured times equal to 1.10x times of
6.85% sccurity cover over the book

-

O\
\\9-"?:7.--'\
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debts.
5237096- io 11.25% | 10.00 | 08/06/202 | 08/06/2023 | CRISILA | Senior, The value of sccurity at all
5237195 | Months 0 Scecured | times equal to 1.20x times of
security cover over the book
debis.
NA 36 11.25% | 20.00 | 1206202 | 12/06/2023 CRISIL Scnior, As per Vivriti Omega Trust
Months 0 AA Sccured
5237596~ 36 11.00% | 50.00 | 16/06/202 | 16/06/2623 | CRISILA | Senior, The valuc of security at all
5238095 Months 0 Secured times equal to 1.25x times of
security cover over the book
debis.
36 11.00% | 25.00 | 18/067202 | 18/06/2023 | CRISILA | Senior, The value of security at all
Months 0 Sccured | times equal to 1.25x times of
security cover aver the book
debis,
5238346- 36 11.00% | 25.00 | 22/06/202 | 22/06/2023 | CRISIL A Senior, The value of security at all
5238595 | Months 0 Secured | times equal to 1.25x times of
security cover over the book
debis.
523859¢6- 18 9.50% 50.00 | 26/06/202 | 26/12/2021 | CRISILA | Senior, The value of security at all
5239095 Months 0 Sceured | times equal to 1.10x times of
security cover over the book
debis.
D. List of Top 10 Debenture Holders (as on June 30, 2020):
_S.No.,|.<" - = -Name of Debenture Holders - == - ;7| . Amount (Rs: in
| - L ' Crores)
1 | Franklin Tempelton 300.00
2 | FMO 290.00
3 | ResponsAbility 86.00
4 | Karvy Capital . 50.00
5. | Bank of India 50.00
6. | Punjab and Sindh Bank 50.00
7. | Avendus PPMLD 36.65
8. | Avendus PPMLD-2 33.60
9. | Northern Arc Capital (Ifimr Fimpact Income Bu) & 25.00
A.K.Capital Scrvices Limited
10. | Indian Bank 25.00

Note: Top 10 holders® (in value terms, on cumulative basis for all outstanding debentures issucs) details should be
provided.

E. The amount of corperate guarantee issued by the Issucr along with name of the
counterparty (like name of the subsidiary, JV entity, group-company, ctc} on behalf of
whom it has been issued. (if any):

Nil

F. Details of Commercial Paper:
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Details of rest of the borrowing (if any including hybrid debt like FCCB, Optionally
Convertible Debentures / Preference Shares) as on June 30, 2020:

Party Name | Type.of |- Amount |- Prineipal Repayment | Cre | Sccure | Securit
.H.(.I.E.EEEEE.E_ EQEWL Sanctioned !" Amount W_;’_Datc! dit df | ¥y
T Fadiiityy | Instrum | - Issucd - | Outstanding | -Schedule | Rati | Unscen
Instrument’. |  ent ' : ng red
 Name - | .. ]
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Details of all default/s and/or delay in payments of intercst and principal of any kind of
term loans, debt securities and other financial indehtedness including corporate guarantee
issued by the Company, in the past 5 years:

Nil

Details of any cutstanding borrowings taken / debt securities issued where taken / issued
(i) for consideration other than cash, whether in whole or part, (i) at a premium or
discount, or (iii} in pursuance of an option:

Nil

Details of Promoters of the Company:

Details of Promoter Holding in Company as on Iatest quarter end, i.e, June 30, 2620:

] | Total No
. Coo e ez | No.o . of | shareholdin | of | % -of .shares
8. |Name - of = the Eggluﬁ; shares'in | g as % of | shar | pledged  with
No | sharcholders sinr?:s' -Demat total no of | es | respeect to
: e 1T form equity . Pled | shares'owned
. S | ) | shares acd '
Rajendra Kumar 1,03,27.5 | 1,03,27.5 40.99% Nil | NA
I | setia 47 47
5 Shalini Sctia 650 650 0.003% Nil | NA
3 | Yash Setia 650 650 0.003% Nil | NA
4 | Bhajan Devi Sctia 650 650 0.003% Nil | NA
5 Rajendra Kumar 62,500 62,500 0.25% Nil { NA
Setia HUF

Abridged version of the Audited Consolidated and Standalone Financial Information (like
Profit and Loss statement, Balance Sheet and Cash Flow statement) for at least last three
years and auditor qualifications, il any,

[Note: Financial information submitted must be in line with the timelines specified in the
Simplified Listing Agreememnt, issued vide Circular no. SEBI/IMD/BOND/1/2009/11/05, dated

May 11, 2009]
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Profit and Loss Statement| . 31032017 - 31032018 31032019  31.03.2020
(INR) [ Audited| . Audited|  Audited Audited
Tntorcst Income 1305646 | 1856943 | 3134041 54,544.50
Less: Interest Expenses 6,569.91 8,945.06 13,846.22 23,248.45
Net Interest Income - 5,486.56 o _T,_Q',G"Zfi.a?' . 17,394.19 31,296.05
Other Income ~3.664.14 H16356 | 525305 3,695.77
Total Income - 9,150.70 - | 13,787.93 22,647.24 34,991.82
Operating Expenses 654122 | 888562 11,858.89 14,625.4
Provisions & Write Offs 559.93 1,376.24 2,918.00 8,997.98
Operating Profit T 204355 | 352607 | 787035 11,368.00
Depreciation 6132 W6 | 2 817,53
Profit Be_fq.rc Tax ' . 1,88223 . | . 329245 . |- '7,54_9.10 ' 10,550.47
Provisions for tax G237 | 109722 | 233608 2,696.80
Profit After Tax 1,229.86 2,195.23 5,223.02 7,853.07
Bal“a__néc'.Sl_ii:’et (INR) R 3103201'3’1 31032018 ~3];032019 ' 31.03.2020
Tauity capital —ar | 35092 | 46032 | 50390
Reserve & Surplus 8,356.41 20,279.16 55,058.14 87,368.85
TNW (A) 8,627.12 20,630.08 55,518.46 87,872.75
Total Non-Current Liabilities 31,114.64 44,802.90 84,427.05 2,64,771.24
Current Liabilitics+ Provisions 37,810.60 56,667.23 59,369.47 -

Total Qutside Liabilities ( B ) 31,114.64 44,802.90 84,427.05 2,64,771.24
Total Liabilitics (A + B} 39,741.776 65,432.99 1,39,945.51 3,52,643.99
Fixed asscts (Net) 1,016.25 1,326.73 1,710.06 4,559.70
Investments 1,650.50 466.67 466.67 13,836.90
Gross Advances 63,830.28 1,11,025.76 1,63,796.53 2,96,760.51
Less: Loan Loss Reserve - - - 11,759.47
Net Loan Qutstanding 63,830.28 1,11,025.76 1,63,796.53 2.85,001.04
Cash / Liquid Investments A =F{\E.SM.SS 2,937.15 27,760.67 43,281.83

S
g
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Deferred Tax Assets 432,72 623.64 824.23 1,931.92
Intangible Assets 21.7] 27.04 5943 50.55
Other current assets 3,651.54 4,722.70 3,001.30 3,982.05
Other Non-Current Assets 1,406.77 970.51 1,6946.10 -
Total Assets 76,145.59 1,21,129.70 1,97,618.88 3,52,643.99

5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

Abridged version of Latest Audited/ Limited Review Half Yearly Consolidated and
Standalone Firancial Information and auditors’ qualifications, if any:

[Note: Financial information submitted must be in line with the timelines specified in the
Simplified Listing Agreement, issued vide Circular no. SEBVIMD/BOND/1/2009/11/03, dated

May 11, 2009]
As per Annexure V

Any material event/ development or change having implications on the financials/credit
quality (c.g. any material regulatory proceedings against the Issuer/promoters, tax
litigations resulting in material liabilitics, corporate restructuring event etc) at the time of
Issue which may affeet the issue or the Investor’s decision to invest / confinue to invest in
the debt securities,

The Issuer hereby declares that there has been no material event, development or change at the
time of issuc from the position as on the date of the last audited financial statements of the
Issuer, which may affect the Issue or the Investor’s decision to invest/ continue to invest in the
debt sccurities of the Issuer.

Names of the Debentures Trustees and Consenis thercol

The Debenture Trustee of the proposed Debentures is IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited. IDBI
Trusteeship Scrvices Limited has given its written consent for its appointment as debenture
trustee to the Issue and inclusion of its name in the form and context in which it appears in this
Information Memorandum and in all the subscquent periodical communications sent to the
Debenture Holders. The consent letter from Debenture Trustee is provided in Annexure III of
this Information Memorandum.

Rating Rationale(s) adopted (not older than one ycar on the date of opening of the Issuce)/
credit rating letter issucd (not older than one month on the date of opening of the Issuc).

The Rating Agency has assigned ratings of “CRISIL A™ (pronounced as “CRISIL A Rating”)
with “Stable™ outlook to the Debentures. Instruments with this rating are considered to have
moderate degree of safety regarding timely servicing of financial obligations. Such instruments
carry moderate credit risk.

If the sccurity is backed by a guarantec or letter of comfort or any ether document / letter

with similar intent, a copy of the same shall be disclosed. In ease such document does not
contain detailed payment structure (procedure of invocation of guarantee and receipt of
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payment by the investor along with timclines), the same shall be disclosed in the offer
document.

Not Applicable.

Names of all the recognized stock cxchanges where the debt securities are proposed to be
listed:

The Debentures are proposed to be listed on the WDM segment of the BSE. The Issuer shall
comply with the requircments of the listing agreement for debt sccurities to the extent
applicable to it on a continuous basis. The in-principle approval of the BSE has been obtained in
this regard.

Other details:
Debenture Redemption Reserve Creation:

As per Scction 71 of the Act, any company that intends to issue debentures must create a
debenture redemption reserve to which adequate amounts shall be credited out of the profits of
the company until the redemption of the debentures, However, at present under the Companies
(Issuance of Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, non-banking financial companics are
exempt from this requirement in respect of privately placed debentures. Pursuant to this
exemption, the Company docs not presently intend to create any reserve funds for the
redemption of the Debentures.

Issue / instrument specific regulations:

The Issue of Debentures shall be in conformity with the applicable provisions of the Companics
Act including the notified rules thereunder, the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations, the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requircments) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations™)
and the applicable RBI guidclines.

Application process:

The application process for the Issue is as provided in SECTION 8: of this Information
Memorandum.

A statement containing particulars of the dates of, and parties to all material contracts,
agreements:

The contracts and documents referred to hereunder are material to the Issue, may be inspected at
the Registered Office of the Company between 10.00 am to 4.00 pm on working days.

[ .

[k T T e e N e el
s " Naturcof Confract,, =~ .~ ...

A O . . . A
. . : s U e b LT
- NO- t - L .

=
-

1 Certified true copy of the Memorandum & Articles of Association of the Issuer.

Board Resolution dated June 3, 2020 rcad together with the resolution passed by the
2 Exccutive Committec of the Board of Directors on September 23, 2020 authorizing
the issue of Debentures offered under terms of this Disclosure Document

Shareholder Resolution dated May 21, 2020 authorizing the issue of non-convertible
debentures by the Company.
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Sharcholder Resolution dated May 21, 2020 authorizing the borrowing limits of the
Company and the creation of security in respect of such borrowings.

Copics of Annual Reports of the Company for the last three financial years.

Credit rating Icticr from the Rating Agency dated August 18, 2020.

Letter from IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited dated Scptember 10, 2020 giving its
consent to act as Debenture Trustee.

Letter for Register and Transfer Agent.

Certified true copy of the certificate of incorporation of the Company.

Certified true copy of the tripartite agreement between the Company, the Registrar &
Transfer Agent and NSDL.

Copy of application made to BSE for grant of in-principle approval for listing of
Dcbeatures

Mo |eo] - S |vh] &

11

520  Details of Debt Securitics Sought to be Issued

Under the purview of the current document, the Issuer intends to raisc an amount of up to Rs.
70,00,00,000/- {Rupees Seventy Crores only) by issue of Sccured Rated Listed Redeemable
Transferable Non-Convertible Debentures, on a private placement basis. For further details of the
Dcbentures, please refer to the terms and conditions of the debentures sct out in Section 5.23 of this
Information Memorandum.

521  Issue Size

The aggregate issue size for the Debentures is upto Rs, 70,00,00,000/- (Rupees Seventy Crores only).

5.22  Utilization of the Issue Proceeds

The Issuer undertakes that the proceeds of this Issue shall be used for loan portfolio growth of the
company and shall be utilized for the deployment of funds on its own balance sheet and not to facilitate
resource requests of its group entities/parent company/associates,

The Issue shall not be utilised towards acquisition financing: viz buyback of shares/securitics, purchase
of shares of other companies and/or promoter contribution towards the equity capital of a company or as
a bridge loan

The Company undertakes that proceeds of this Issue shall not be utilized for the following purposes as
specified in the RBI Master Circular No. DBOD.BP.BC.No0.5/21.04.172/2015-16 dated July 1, 2015
including inter alia:

1}  Bills discounted / rediscounted by NBFCs, except for rediscounting of bills discounted by NBFCs
arising out of: Commercial vehicles (including light commercial vehicles) and two wheeler and
three wheeler vehicles, subject to the following conditions: The bills should have been drawn by
the manufacturer on dealers only; The bills should represent genuine sale transactions as may be
ascertained from the chassis / engine number and; Before rediscounting the bills, the bona fides
and track record of NBFCs which have discounted the bills would be verified.

2) . Investments of NBFCs both of current and long-term nature, in any company / entity by way of
shares, debentures, ctc. However, Stock Broking Companies may be provided need-based credit
against shares and debentures held by them as stock-in-trade.

3) Unsccured loans / inter-corporate deposits by NBFCs to / in any company.

e 4) All types of loans and advances by NBFCs to their subsidiarics, group companics / entitics.
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5)  Finance to NBFCs for further lending to individuals for subscribing to Initial Public Offerings
(IPQ) and for purchase of shares from secondary market.

5.23  Issuc Details

Security Name 11.40%EFL2026

Issucr Ess Kay Fincorp Limited

Type of Instrument Non-Convertible Debentures

Nature of Instrument Sccured Rated Listed Redeemable Transferable Non-Convertible
Debentures

Seniority Senior

Mode of Issue Private placement

Eligible/Identified Investors As provided in Clausc 8.14 below '

Listing The Debentures are proposed to be listed on the WDM segment of

the BSE within a maximum period of 15 (Fifteen) calendar days
from the Deemed Date of Allotment.

In the event of the Issuer’s failure to do so, to the extent that any
Debenture Holders are Forcign Institutional Investors/Qualified
Foreign Investors/Foreign Portfolio Investors, the Issuer shall
immediately redeem any and all Debentures which are held by such
Foreign Institutional Investors/Qualified Forcign Investors/Foreign
Portfolio Investor(s).

In case of delay in listing of the debt securities beyond 20 (Twenty)
calendar days from the Deemed Date of Allotment, the Issuer will
pay penal interest of at least 1% (One Percent) over the Coupon
Rate from the expiry of 30 (Thirty) days from the Deemed Date of
Allotment till the listing of such Debentures

Rating of Instrument “CRISIL A/Stable” (pronounced as “CRISIL A Rating” with
“Stable” outlook)

Issue Size Rs. 70,00,00,000/- (Rupecs Scventy Crores only).

Option to retain | NLA.

oversubscription

Objeets of the Issue To raise senior securcd debt to the extent up to Rs. 70,00,00,000/-

(Rupees Seventy Crores only).

Details of the utilization of the | The procceds of the Issuance will be utilized for the following
Proceeds purposcs:

» General corporate purposes
= for the ordinary coursc of business of the Issuer including

repayment/re-financing of existing debt

The Issuer shall not use the proceeds of the Issue towards:

= any capital market instrument such as cquity, debt, debt linked
and equity linked instruments or any other capital market
related activities; or

»  any speculative purposcs; or
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* any activity on the Exclusion List; or

= investment in the real estate sector;

* any purpose, that is prohibited for bank finance to non-banking
financial companics, or, which results in a breach of the RBI's
master circular no. DBR.BP.BC.No0.5/21.04.172/2015-16 dated
July 1, 2015 on "Bank Finance to Non-Banking Financial
Companies (NBFCs)"; or

* in contravention of any Applicable law {including but not
limited to the guideclines, rules or regulations of the RBI
applicable to non-banking financial companics)

The Issuer shall be entitled to temporarily invest the funds raised by
the Issue in liquid mutual funds and deposits held with scheduled
commercial banks for a period not exceeding 90 (ninety) calendar
days from the Deemed Date of Allotment.

Coupon Rate

11.40% (Eleven Decimal Point Four Zero Percent) per annum, net
of Taxes, payable scmi-annually from the Deemed Date of
Allotment until the Maturity Date and subject to the obligation of
the Issuer as provided for in Scction 8.25 below of this Information
Memorandum. The Coupon Rate shall be subject to reset as per the
mechanism set out in the Section on “Coupon Reset Process™ and
paragraph 2.3 (Coupon Rate Reset) of Schedule 11 of the Debenture
Trust Deed.

For the period between the Coupon Reset Date and the Maturity
Date, the Coupon Rate, shall, in the absence of any communication
on the rcevised Coupon Rate between the Majority Debenture
Holders and the Company, be the existing Coupon Rate until the
Maturity Date.

Step Up Coupon Rate / Step
Down Coupon Rate

N.A.

Coupon Payment Frequency

Semi-annually

Coupon Payment Dates

Scmi-annually on September 29 and March 29 of every calendar
yecar until Maturity Date (subject to adjustments on account of
Business Day Convention).

Coupon Type

Fixed Coupon rate subject to reset as per Coupon Reset Process.

Coupon Reset Date

Shall mean the date falling at the end of 36 (Thirty Six) months
from the Deemed Date of Allotment.

Coupon Reset Process

(a) Coupon shall be payable at the rate of 11.40% (Eleven Decimal
Point Four Zero Percent) (net of Taxes) per annum payable
semi-annually from the Dcemed Date of Allotment until the
Maturity Date and shall be subject to reset as set out under this
paragraph.

(b) The Coupon Rate may be reset on the Coupon Reset Date,
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{¢) The Majority Decbenture Holders shall decide the revised
Coupon Rate which shall be applicable on and from the Coupon
Reset Rate. The revised Coupon Rate so approved by the
Majority Dcbenture Holders, shall be communicated to the
Dcbenture Trustee no later than 12 (Twelve) Business Days
prior to the Coupon Reset Date.

{(d) The Debenture Trustee shall communicate the revised Coupon
Rate to the Issuer, by way of a written notice, no later than 11
(Eleven) Business Days prior to the Coupon Reset Date
(“Coupon Reset Notice™).

{e) Upon receiving the Coupon Reset Notice, the Issuer shall
communicate their written acceptance or rejection of the revised
Coupon Rate to the Debenture Holders and the Debenture
Trustee, no later than 9 (Nine) Business Days prior to the
Coupon Reset Date.

(f) Without prejudice to the foregoing, the Majority Debenture
Holders reserve the right to further amend the Coupon Rate and
communicate the same via a written notice to the Issuer, with a
copy marked to the Debenture Trustee, at any time on or before
§ (Five) Business Days prior to the Coupon Reset Date, the
written acceptance or rejection of which reviscd Coupon Rate,
in such cvent, shall have to be communicated by the Issuer
directly to the Majority Dcbenture Holders on the samce
Business Day, on which it is communicated by the Majority
Debenture Holders to the Issuer.

{g) If the Issuer accepts the revised Coupon Rate pursuant to the
written acceptance notice, as provided for herein above, the
revised Coupon Rate shall be applicable on and from the
Coupon Reset Date until the Maturity date.

(h) If the Issuer rejects the revised Coupon Rate by way of the
written rejection notice, then (i) the Issuer shall have the option
to buy back all or any of the Debentures on the Call Option
Date, by issuing a written notice to such Debenture Holders with
a copy marked to the Debenture Trustee (“Call Notice™), which
shall be no later than 4 (Four) Business Days prior to the
Coupon Resct Date as mentioned above; or (ii) all the Debenture
Holders and/or any Debenture Holder shall have the option to
require the Issuer to purchase any and/or all of the Debentures
as may be held by such Debenture Holder, on the Put Option
Date, by issuing a written notice to the Issucr with a copy
marked to the Debenture Trustee (“Put Notice™), which shall be
no later than 4 (Four) Business Days prior to the Coupon Reset
Date as mentioned above.

(1) Upon issuance of the Call Notice / Put Notice, the Issuer shall
compulsorily redeem the Dcbentures, as set out in the Call
Notice / Put Nolice, by making payment to the rclevant
Debenture Holders, the outstanding face value of the said
Debentures and accrued Coupon in relation thereto, on the Put
Option Date or the Call Option Date, as the case may be.
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{(j) It is hereby clarified that if the Issuer fails in communicating
their acceptance or rejection of the revised Coupon Rate in the
manner stated herein above, then the revised Coupon Rate as
communicated by the Debenture Trustee and/or the Debenture
Holder to the Issuer, in the Coupon Reset Notice, shall be
applicable on and from the Coupon Reset Date until the
Maturity Date.

Day Count Basis

Actual/Actual

Interest on Application Money

Interest shall be payable on the application monies received at the
Coupon Rate of 11.40% (Eleven Decimal Point Four Zero Percent)
per annum, net of Taxes. Such interest shall be payable from the
date of realisation of application monics in the account of ICCL in
relation to the Debentures by the Issuer until the Deemed Date of
Allotment and the same shall be paid to the relevant Investors
within 7 (Seven) Business Days from the Deemed Date of
Allotment.

Default Interest Rate

In the event of a payment default of the amounts due under this
Issue or any other Event of Default (whether by way of acceleration,
at maturity or otherwise), the Issuer shall pay an additional 2%
(Two Percent) per annum over and above the applicable Coupon
Rate on the outstanding principal amount of the Debentures,
calculated from the date of the occurrence of the default until such
default is cured or the Debentures are redeemed pursuant to such
default, as applicable.

Delay Penalty

In the case of a delay in the cxccution of Debenture Trust Deed and
the Sceurity documents, the Issuer shall refund the subseription with
the agreed rate of interest or shall pay penal interest of 2% (Two
Percent) per annum over the and above the applicable Coupon Rate
until such time the conditions have been complied with at the option
of the Investor.

No Early Payments

Any carly redemption of the Debentures can only be pursuant to the
applicable SEBI, RBI Regulations and subject to the prior writien
consent of the Majority Dcbenture Holder(s). The Majority
Debenture Holder(s) at its sole discretion may permit an carly
redemption, under the condition that the Company shall hold the
Debenture Holder(s) harmless from all costs, expenses, losses or
liability incurred due to the prepayment in accordance with Clause
28 (Indemnity) of the Debenture Trust Deed.

Tenor

72 (Scventy Two) months from the Deemed Date of Allotment.

Maturity Date

September 29, 2026 being 72 (Seventy Twe) months from the
Deemed Date of Allotment.

Principal Payment Datc(s)

The principal amount of the Debentures shall be payable by the
Company on Scptember 29, 2021, September 29, 2022 and
September 29, 2026 (or carlicr upon the exercise of the Put Option
or Call Option), subject to adjustments on account of business day
convention, in the manner set out in Annexure VI (Hlustration of
Bond Cashflows) of this Information Memorandum.

| Redemption Amount Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rs. Ten Lakhs only) per Debenture on the Principal
T KJ?JN Payment Date(s) plus accrued Coupon along with the Default
' ;;—"‘“\Q b Interest (if any), and other such costs, charges and expenses if any,
-
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payable on the Due Date(s) under the Transaction Documents.

Redemption Premiumy/

Discount

N.A,

Issue Price

Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rs. Ten Lakhs only) per Debenture

Discount at which sccurity is
issued and the cffective yield
as a result of such discount

N.A.

Put Option Date

Shall be the date falling on the completion of 36 (Thirty Six)
months from the Deemed Date of Allotment being September 29,
2023.

Put Option

Any Dcbenture Holder and/or all Debenture Holder(s) desirous of
exercising the Put Option shall send a notice to the Company in
writing (with a copy marked to thc Decbenture Trustee), to be
received at least 4 (Four) Business Days prior to the Put Option
Date, communicating the intent of such Debenture Holder(s} to
exercise the Put Option (“Put Option™). Upon issuance of such
notice, the Company shall, on or before the Put Option Date,
redeem the relevant Debentures as set out in the notice thereto.

Put Option Price

Amount equivalent to the face value of all the Debentures and
accrued Coupon, due and payable as on the date of the Put Notice.

Call Option Date

Shall be the date falling on the completion of 36 (Thirty Six)
months from the Dcemed Date of Allotment being September 29,
2023,

Call Option

To exercise the Call Option on the Call Option Date, the Company
shall send a notice to the relevant Debenture Holder(s) for whom
the Company intends to exercise the Call Option, in writing (with a
copy marked to the Debenture Trustec) at least 4 (Four) Business
Days prior to the Call Option Date, communicating the intent of the
Company to exercise the Call Option on the Call Option Date
{("Call Option™). Upon issuance of such notice, the Company shall,
on or before the Call Option Date, redeem the relevant Debentures
as sct out in the notice thereto.

Call Option Price

Amounts equivalent to the face valuc of all the Debentures and
accrued Coupon, due and payable as on the date of the Call Notice.

Face Value

Rs 10,00,000/- (Rs. Ten Lakhs only) per Debenture

Minimum Application size and
in multiples of 1 thereafier

10 Debentures and in multiples of 1 Debenture thereafter

Issue Timing

Issuc Opening Date: September 25, 2020

Issuc Closing Date: September 25, 2020

Pay-in Dates: Scptember 29, 2020

Dcemed Date of Allotment: September 29, 2020

All documentation including, but not limited to, the Information
Memorandum, Board Resolution, Rating Lelter, Appointment of
Trustees to be completed 1 (One) business day prior to Issuc
Opening Date.

Issuance mode of the

Instrument

Demat only

Trading mode of the

Demat only

NMpstrument
A
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Scttlement mode of the | The pay-in of subscription menies for the Debentures shall be made
Instrument by way of transfer of funds from the bank account(s) of the Eligible
Investors (whose bids have been accepted) as registered with the
Electronic Book Provider into the account of the ICCL, as specified
in this regard below:
Name of Bank HDFC BANK
IFSC Code HDFC0000060
Account number ICCLEB
Name of beneficiary INDIAN CLEARING
CORPORATION LIMITED
Name of Bank ICICI Bank Ltd.
IFSC Code ICIC0000106
Account number ICCLEB
Name of beneficiary INDIAN CLEARING
CORPORATIONLTD
Name of Bank YES BANK
IFSC Code YESBOCMSNOC
Account number ICCLEB
Name of beneficiary INDIAN CLEARING
CORPORATION LTD
Cheque(s)/ electronic clearing services (ECS)/credit through RTGS
system/funds transfer to the specified bank account of the
Debenture Holder.,
Depositories NSDL

Business Days

Means a day (other than a Saturday, Sunday or a ‘public holiday’
for the purposc of Scction 25 of the Negotiable Instruments Act,
1881 (26 of 1881)) on which banks are open for business in
Mumbai, India and New York, United States of America.

Business Day Convention

If any Coupon Payment Date or the Principal Payment Date or the
due date for the performance of any cvent falls on a day thatis nota
Business Day, the payment shall be made on the immediately
succceding Business Day.

If the Maturity Date (also being the last Coupon Payment Date and
the last Principal Payment Date) and/or the Put Option Date and/or
the Call Option Date, in respect of the Debentures falls on a day that

T is not a Business Day, the redemption proceeds shall be paid on the
iﬂi’ NS immediately preceding Business Day.
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Record Date The date which will be used for determining the Debenture Holders
who shall be entitled to receive the amounts due on any Due Date,
which shall be the date falling 15 (Fifteen) calendar days prior to
any Due Date.

Security (Including | The Issue shall be secured by a charge created by the Issuer in

description, type of sccurity,
type of charge, likely datc of
creation of security, minimum
sccurity cover, revaluation,
replacement of sccurity)

favour of the Debenture Trustee (for the benefit of the Debenture
Holders) being an exclusive first ranking charge by way of
hypothecation over specific identified loan receivables / book debts,
present and future, representing amounts due from the various
borrowers of the Company at all times to the extent equal to an
amount aggregating to the total outstanding in relation to the Issuc
(“Seeured Property™) such that the value of sccurity shall be equal
to 1.10 (One Deeimal Point One Zero) times the aggregate amount
of principal amount cutstanding of the Debentures (“Asset Cover™).
The Issuer undertakes:

{a) to maintain the value of the Asset Cover at all times till the
obligations under the Issue are discharged;

(b) to create the security over the Secured Property by executing
a duly stamped deed of hypothecation (*Decd of
Hypothecation™) on or before the Deemed Date of
Allotment.

To register and perfect the sccurity created over the Sccured
Property by filing the rclevant form with the Registrar of
Companies immediately and no later than 30 (Thirty)
calendar days from the date of execution of the Deed of
Hypothecation.

In the event of any fall in the Asset Cover, additional
Secured Property shall be taken in the manfier as provided
for in the Deed of Hypothecation,

To provide a list, on a monthly basis, of specific loan
recejvables / identified book debt to the Debenture Trustee
and over Debenture Holders over which charge is created and
subsisting by way of hypothecation in favour of the
Debenture Trustee (for the benefit of the Debenture Holders)
and sufficient to maintain the Assct Cover (“Monthly
Secured Property Report™).

The selection criteria and the eligibility of the Sccured
Property shall be sct out in detail in the Deed of
Hypothecation.

(c)

(d)

(e)

(H

Transaction Documents Shall be as sct out in Clause 7.1 below
Conditions  Precedent  to|1. Execution of Debenture Trustee Agreement, Deed of
Disbursement Hypothecation and the Debenture Trust Deed.

2. Such other undertaking as may be required from the Company.
Conditions  Subscquent to Filing of the relevant documents infer alia Form PAS-3 for

Disbursement

return of allotment with the Registrar of Companies within the
timelines specificd under the rules under the Companics Act,
2013.

2. Completion of listing of Debentures on BSE within 15 (Fifteen)
calendar days from the Deemed Date of Allotiment,

3. Filing of the relevant forms with the Registrar of Companics for
the perfection of charge over the Secured Property with the
Registrar of Companies within and no later 30 (Thirty) calendar
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days from the date of execution of the Deed of Hypothecation.

4, Evidence that the Issuer has, within 30 (Thirty) days of the

DPeemed Date of Allotment, paid all applicable stamp duty in
relation to the Debentures.

S. Exccution of any other documents as customary for transaction

of a similar nature and size.

6. The Issuer shall also obtain a legal opinion on the enforceability

of the transaction documents.

Events of Default

As mentioned in Clause 7.4 below

Provisions related to Cross
Default Clause

The Issuer defaults under any other contract evidencing its financial
indebtedness and binding on its capacity as a company, borrower or
guarantor and such default or event of default permits or causes (or
with the giving of noticc or the passage of time or both would
permit or cause) the acceleration of any such indebtedness (whether
or not such right shall have been waived) or the termination of any
commitment to lend.

Role and Responsibilities of
Debenture Trustee

To oversee and monitor the overall transaction for and on behalf of
the Dcbenture Holders

Covenants

As mentioned in Clause 7.3 below

Representation and warranties

As mentioned in Clause 7.2 below

Ilustration of Bond Cashflows

Kindly refer to Annexure VI of this Information Memorandum

Governing Law

The Debentures and documentation will be governed by and
construcd in accordance with the laws of India and the parties
submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts in New Delin,
India. Provided that the Debenture Trustee, may, however, in its
absolute discretion commence any Proccedings arising out of the
Debenture Trust Deed in any other court and tribunal in India, and
the Issuer irrevocably submits to and accepts for itself and in respect
of its property, generally and unconditionally, the jurisdiction of
such court or tribunal, and the Issuer irrevocably waives any
objection it may have now or in the future to the laying of the venue
of any proccedings and any claim that any such proceedings have
been brought in an inconvenient forum.

Note:

1. The list of documents which has been executed or will be executed in connection with the issuc and
subscription of debt sceuritics shall be annexed.

2. The penal interest rates mentioned above as payable by the Issuer are independent of each other.
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SECTION 6: DISCL.OSURES PERTAINING TO WILFUL DEFAULT

In case of listing of debt sccuritics made on private placement, the following disclosures are required to
be made vide SEB! (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016 w.e.f. 25-03-
16:

A.  Name of the Bank declaring the entity as a Wilful Defaulter: NIL

B.  The year in which the entity is declared as a Wilful Defaulter: NIL

C.  Outstanding amount when the entity is declared as a Wilful Defaulter: NIL

D. Name of the entity declared as a Wilful Defaulter: NIL

E.  Steps taken, if any, for the removal from the list of wilful defaulters: NIL

F.  Other disclosures, as deemed fit by the Issuer in order to enable investors to take informed
decisions: NIL

G.  Any other disclosure as specified by the Board: NIL
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SECTION7: TRANSACTION DOCUMENTS AND KEY TERMS

Transaction Documents

The following documents shall be exccuted in relation to the Issue (“Transaction Documents™).

A,

D.

Dcbenture Trustee Agreement, which will confirm the appointment of IDBI Trusteeship
Services Limited as the Debenture Trustee (*Debenture Trustee Agreement”);

Debenture Trust Deed, which will set out the terms upon which the Debentures are being issued
and shall include the representations and warranties and the covenants to be provided by the
Issuer (“Debenture Trust Deed”);

Deed of Hypothecation whereby the Issuer will create an cxclusive charge by way of
hypothecation over the Secured Property in favour of the Debenture Trustce to sccure its

obligations in respect of the Debentures (“Deed of Hypothecation™); and

Such other documents as agreed between the Issuer and the Debenture Trustee.

The Debenture Trusice Agreement, the Debenture Trust Deed and the Deed of Hypothecation shall be
executed on or prior to the Issue Closing Date.

7.2

Representations and Warranties of the Issuer

The Issuer hereby makes the following representations and warranties and the same shall also be set out in
the Transaction Documents.

A,

B.

Authority and Capacity

i. The Issuer has been duly incorporated, organized and is validly existing, under
applicable law.

ii. The Issuer has the corporate power, authority and all material permits, approvals,
authorizations, licenses, registrations, and consents including registrations, to own and
operate its assets and to carry on its business in substantially the same manner as it is
currently conducted.

iii, The Issuer is in compliance with all laws for the performance of its obligations with
respect to this Issue.

v, The Issuer represents that all consents, and actions of, filings with and notices to any

governmental authority as may be required to be obtained by the Issuer in connection
with the Issue have been obtained or made and are in effect.

Corporate Matters

i, All the legal and procedural requirements specified in the constitutional documents
have been duly complied with in all respects in relation to the Issue.

ii. The registers, and minute books (including the minutes of board and sharcholders
mecting) required to be maintained by the Issuer under applicable law:
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a. are up-to-date and have been maintained in accordance with applicable law;

b. comprise complete and accurate records of all information required to be recorded
i1 such books and records; and

¢. no notice or allegation that any of them are incorrect and/ or should be rectified has
been received.

C. Organization and Authority

The Issuer is an NBFC-AFC duly incorporated and validly existing under the laws of India and
has the power to own its asscts, conduct and operate its business as presently conducted, and to
enter into, and comply with its obligations under the Debenture Trust Decd and the Transaction
Documents to which it is a party or will be a party.

D. Non-conflict with other obligations

The Issuc (or any of the obligations undertaken by the Issuer in relation thereto) does not and
will not conflict with any law or regulation to which the Issucr is subject, including but not
limited to any laws and regulations regarding anti-moncy laundering/ terrorism financing and
similar financial sanctions as well as any agreccment or instrument binding upon it or any of its
assets, including but not limited to any terms and conditions of the existing financial
indebtedness of the Issucr.

E. Validity and admissibility in evidence:

All approvals, authorizations, consents, permits (third party, statutory or otherwise) required or
desirable:

(1) 10 enable it lawfully to enter into, exercise its rights and comply with its obligations in
the Transaction Documents to which it is a party;

(ii) to make the Transaction Documents to which it is a party admissible in evidence in its
jurisdiction of incorporation; and

(iif)  for it to carry on its business

have been obtained or effected and are in full force and effect.

F. Accounts and Records

The books of accounts of the Issuer have been fairly and properly maintained, the accounts of
the Issuer have been prepared in accordance with law and in accordance with applicable GAAP,
s0 as to give a true and fair view of the business (including the assets, liabilities and state of
affairs) of the Issuer.

G. Taxation Matters

i The Issuer has complied with all the requirements as specified under the respective Tax
laws as applicable to it in relation to returns, computations, notices and information
which are or arc required to be made or given by the Issucr to any Tax authority for
taxation and for any other Tax or duty purposcs, have been made and are correct.
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ii. As on date, the Issucr has not received any written notice of any Tax disputes or other
liabilities of Taxes in respect of which a claim has been made or notice has been issued
against the Issuer.

Legal / Litigation Matters

i There arc no claims, investigations or proccedings before any court, tribunal or
governmental authority in progress or pending against or relating to the Issuer, other
than in the normal course of business, which would have a Material Adverse Effect on
the Debentures (or the holders thereof) or on the ability of the Company to make the
scheduled payments in relation to the Debentures.

ii. There are no unfulfilled or unsatisfied judgments or court orders of which the Company
has noticc and which is outstanding against the Issuer, which would have a Maicrial
Adverse Effect on the Debentures (or the holders thercof) or on the ability of the
Company to make the scheduled payments in relation to the Debentures.

ili. The Issuer has not taken any action nor has any order been passed for its winding-up,
dissolution or re-organisation or for the enforcement of any security over its asscls or
for the appointment of a liguidator, supervisor, receiver, administrator, adminisirative
receiver, compulsory manager, trustec or other similar officer for it or in respect of its
assels.

Asscts

Except for the sccurity interests and encumbrances created and recorded with the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (available using CIN U65923RJ1994PLCOO9051 on the website

http://www.mea.pov.in/meafoportal/showlndexOfCharges.do under the heading Index of
Charges), the Issuer has, frec from any security interest or encumbrance, the absolute legal and

beneficial title to, or valid leases or licenses of, or is otherwise entitled to use (in cach case,
where relevant, on arm's length terms), all material assets necessary for the conduct of its
business as it is being, and is proposed to be, conducted.

Employees

The Company is in compliance with all obligations under the applicable labour laws and other
laws in relation to its employces.

Pari Passu Ranking

Its payment obligations under the Transaction Documents rank at least pari passu with the
claims of all of its other unsecured creditors, cxcept for obligations mandatorily preferred by
law applying to companics gencrally.

Event of Defaunlt

The Issuer hereby represents that there is no event of default that has currently occurred or is
continuing as on the date hercof.
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Material Adverse Eifect

The Company hereby represents that there is no Material Adverse Effect existing and that there
arc no circumstances existing which could give rise, with the passage of time or otherwisc, to a
Material Adversc Effect on the Debentures (or the holders thereof) or on the ability of the
Company to make the scheduled payments in relation to the Debentures.

Audit

The annual accounts of the Company are audited by an auditer from a reputable firm of
independent chartered accountants.

Good Business Standard

The Company in its business transactions with its shareholders, partners, managers, staff,
affiliates or affiliates of such catitics or persons keeps within normal, good and acceptable
business standards, including transactions being on arm's length.

No Immunity

Neither, the Issuer nor any of its assets is entitled to immunity from suit, exccution, attachment
or other legal process in its jurisdiction of incorporation. This Issue (and the documents to be
executed in rclation thereto) constitutes, and the exercise of its rights and performance of and
compliance with its obligations in relation thercto, will constitute, private and commercial acts
done and performed for private and commereial purposes.

Security

Save and except the charge created to secure the Debentures (and any other charges disclosed to
the Debenture Trustec), the Secured Property hereinbefore expressed to be granted, conveyed,
assigned, transferred and assured unto the Debenture Trustee is the sole and absolute property
of the Company and is free from any other mortgage, charge or encumbrance and is not subject
to any attachment, or other order or process issucd by any governmental authority and that the
Company has a clear and marketable title to the Secured Property.

Infermation

All information provided by the Issuer is true and accurate in all material respects as at the datc
it was provided or as at the date at which it was stated.

Nature of Representations and Warranties

Each of the representations and warrantics set out above shall be true and accurate on the date
as on the date of the exccution of the Debenture Trust Deed, the Deemed Date of Allotment and
on each Coupon Payment Date and the Maturity Date.

Provided that the representations and warrantics as stated under Clause 7.2 above, sub-clausc(s)

(A), (B), (C), (D), (E), (G), (1), (§), (M) and (N) shall be repeated on each datc commencing
from the date of the execution of the Debenture Trust Deed until the Maturity Date.

63



Information Memorandum
Date: September 23, 2020

Private & Confidential
For Private Circulation Only

(This Information Memorandum is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

7.3 Covenants of the Issuer

The Issuer hereby agrees and undertakes as under and the same along with additional covenants
shall also be sct out in the Transaction Documents:

A. Informative Covenants

i. The Issuer shall provide / cause to be provided information in respect of the following
promptly and no later than 5 (Five) Business Days from the occurrence of such event (uniess
otherwise specifically provided):

a. As soon as practicable, and in any event within 5 (Five) Business Days upon the
occurrence of the following event(s):

A,

B.

J.

change in the sharcholding structure of the Issuer,;

change in the senior management officials including but not limited to the Key
Managerial Personnel of the Issuer, Chief Exccutive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer / Head of Finance, Treasury, Chicef Operations Officer/ Head of
Business and the Head of Audit;

approval by the Board of Dircctors of the annual business plan including a
detailed investment budget and forecast accounts for the following Financial
Year and financial projections for at least the next 5 (five) years,

after the Issuer obtains knowledge thercof or reasonably should have obtained
actual knowledge thereof, notice of the occurrence of any event or circumstance
that could be expected to result in a Matcerial Adverse Effect;

after the Issuer obtains or reasonably should have obtained actual knowledge
thereof, notice of any dispute, litigation, investigation or other procceding
affecting the Issuer or its property or operations, which, if adversely determined,
could result in a2 Material Adverse Effect;

after the Issucr obtains knowledge thereof, notice of the occurrence of any event
which constitutes in the opinion of the Issuer a potential Event of

Default or an Event of Default specifying the nature of such cvent and any steps
the Issuer is taking and proposes to take to remedy the same;

any prepayment or notice of any prepayment of any Financial Indebtedness of
the Issuer;

any alteration of constitutional documents of the Issucr;

if there is any fraud, amounting to more than 1% (One Percent) of Gross Loan
Portfolio; and

such other information, as may be required by the Debenture Trustee.

b. notify the Debenture Trustee in writing, of any notice of an application for winding
up having been made or receipt of any statutory notice of winding up under the
provisions of the Act or any other notice under any other law or otherwise of any
suit or legal process intended to be filed affecting the title to the property of the
Issuer.
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notify the Debenture Trustee in writing, if it becomes aware of any fact, matter or
circumstance which would cause any of the representations and warranties under
any of the Transaction Documents to become untrue or inaccurate or misleading in
any material respect.

notify the Debenture Trustee promptly in writing, of any event which constitutes an
Event of Default, specifying the nature of such cvent and any steps the Issuer is
taking and proposcs to take to remedy the same.

notify the Debenture Trustee in writing, of any proposed change in the nature or
scope or the business or operations of the Issuer or the entering into any agreement
or arrangement by any person that may materially affect the assets and liabilities of
the Issuer, at lcast 3 (Threc) Business Days prior to the date on which such action is
proposed to be given cffect.

provide to the Debenture Trustee such further information regarding the financial
condition, business and opecrations of the Issuer as the Debenture Trustce may
reasonably request in relation to the Payments due to be made on the Debentures;

notify the Debenture Trustee promptly of any revision in the rating provided by the
Rating Agency in the Issue.

inform the Debenture Trustee of any major change in the composition of its Board
of Directors, which may amount to change in ‘control’ as defined in SEBI
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers} Regulations, 2011.

inform the Debenture Trustce promptly about any failure to create Sccurity and
about all orders, directions, notices of court/tribunal affecting the Secured Property.

Inform the Debenture Trustee before declaring or distributing any dividend, unless
the Issuer has paid the amounts then duc and payable on the Debentures under the
Debenture Trust Deed.

inform the Debenture Trustee of one or more of the other creditors of the Issuer
accelerating its payment obligations on the grounds of (a) a material adverse effect
in the financial, operational or regulatory conditions governing the Issuer or (b} on
account of a breach of representation or breach of an information covenant} under
the terms of any other agrecment involving borrowed money or the extension of
credit or any other indebtedness under which the Issuer may be obligated as a
borrower or guarantor.

The Issuer agrees that it shall forward to the Debenture Trustee promptly, which
information can be forwarded in electronic form or fax:

A.  a copy of the Statutory Auditors’ and Directors’ Annual Report, Balance
Sheet and Profit & Loss Account and of all periodical and special reports at
the same time as they arc issued,

B.  acopy of all notices, resolutions and circulars relating to new issuc of debt
securities at the same time as they are sent to sharcholders/ holders of debt
securitics; and

C.  acopy of all the notices, call letters, circulars, ete. of the meetings of debt
sccurity holders at the same time as they are sent to the holders of debt
sccuritics or advertised in the media.

65



Information Memorandum Private & Confidential
Date: September 23, 2020 For Private Circulation Oaly

ii.

iii.

iv.

{(This Information Mcmorandum is neither a prospectus nor a statement in licu of a prospectus)

m. As soon as available, and in any event within 120 (One Hundred and Twenty)
calendar days after the end of cach Financial Year of the Issuer, the annual
reporting required and in form and substance satisfactory to the Debenture Trustee
and the Debenture Holders. Such reporting will include information detailing:

A.  certified copies of its audited consolidated and non-consolidated (if any)
financial statements for its most recently completed Financial Year, prepared
in accordance with Indian GAAP / Indian accounting standards (IND AS)
including its balance sheet, income statement and statement of cash flow. All
such information shall be complete and correct in all material respects and
fairly represents the financial condition, results of operation and changes in
cash flow of the Issuer as of the date thereof;

B, a certificate of the Chief Financial Officer or a Director of the Issuer
confirming that his or her review has not disclosed the existence of any
potential Event of Default or any Event of Default;

C. all annual information submitted to the RBI; and

D.  the corporate social responsibility report confirming adherence by the Issuer
to its corporate social responsibility policy.

The Issuer shall submit to the Debenture Trustee (and to the Debenture Holder(s), if so
requested), its duly audited annual accounts, within 120 (One Hundred and Twenty)
days from the closc of its accounting year.

The Issuer shall submit to the Debenture Trustee (and to the Debenture Holder(s), if so
requested), its provisional quarterly financials, within 45 (Forty-Five) days from the
close of each of its accounting quarters.

Give to the Debenture Trustee or their nominee(s) (and to the Debenture Holder(s), if so
requested), information in respect of the following within a maximum of 15 (Fifteen)
calendar days from the occurrence of such event:

Submit to the Debenture Holder (in a format which shall be provided by the Debeniure
Holder from time to time) such other information relevant to the Issue that the
Debenture Holder may reasonably request on a monthly, quarterly and annual basis or
pursuant to an annual diligence by the Debenture Holder, subject to such information
being available with the Issuer.

Submit to the Debenture Trustee, if so requested, a statement that the assets of the
Issucr which are available by way of sccurity is/are sufficient to discharge the claims of
the Debenture Holders as and when they become due.

As soon as practicable, and in any event within 1 (One) Business Day, upon the Issuer
having knowledge of any winding up proceeding including filing of any application
under the IBC or initiation of any insolvency resclution process against the Issuer under
the IBC.

Such information as the Debenture Holders may require as to all matters relating to the
business, property and affairs of the Issuer that materially impacts the interests of the
Debenture Holders and provide access to relevant books of accounts and records in
relation to this Issue and to enter into or upon and to view and inspect the state and
condition of all the Secured Property, together with all records, registers in relation to
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the Securcd Property as required by the Debenture Trustee.

As soon as available and in any event within 15 (Fifteen) Business Days after the end of

cach calendar month, furnish to the Debenture Trustee and Debenture Holders, an
updated List of Receivables constituting the Secured Property, sufficient to maintain the
Asset Cover.

Furnish quarterly (unless specified othenwise, in which case, reports shall be submitted
according to the specified timeline) report to the Debenture Trustee (and to the
Debenture Holders), containing the following particulars: -

A,

Pcriodical status/performance reports from the Issuer within 7 (Seven) days of the
relevant board meeting or within 45 (Forty Five) days of the respective quarter,
whichever is carlier;

Financials, opcrations, portfolio growth and asset quality, funding in formats
acceptable to the Debenture Holder(s)

the sharcholding structure and composition of the board of directors in the Issuer;

If applicable, the financial and other returns filed by the Issuer with the RBI
(including without limitation, the form NBS-7 filed by the Issucr with the RBI);

Updated list of the names and addresses of the Debenture Holder(s);

Dectails of the Coupon and principal payments to be made, but unpaid and rcasons
for the non-payment thereof;

The number and nature of grievances received from the Debenture Holder(s) and
resolved by the Issuer, and those grievances not yet solved to the satisfaction of
the Debenture Holder(s);

Certificate from the Director/ Managing Director of the Issuer, certifying the
value of the book debts/receivables underlying the Secured Property and stating
that thosc assets of the Issuer which arc available by way of sccurity are sufficient
to discharge the claims of the Debenture Holders as and when they become duc;

Certificate from an independent Chartered Accountant, certifying the value of
book debts/receivables underlying the Sccured Property,;

A statement, signed by an authorized signatory of the Issuer, at lcast on a

quarterly basis, certifying:

(a) the value of the book debts/receivables under the Sccured Property.
Provided that the statement under this sub-clause (a) above shall also be
supported by the independent chartered accountant of the Issuer {on a
quarterly basis) and shall be supported by the statutory auditor of the Issucr
(on a yearly basis);

(b) that the Issucr is maintaining the Asset Cover in accordance with the
provisions of the Debenture Trust Deed,;

(c) that the Receivables constituting the Secured Property have not been
charged or hypothecated in favour of any other party except the Debenture
Trustee and that they are free from any encumbrances; and

(d) that the Receivables comprising the Secured Property arg ‘standard asscts’
as defined under the applicable Reserve Bank of India regulations in the
books of the Issuer.
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K.  Promptly and expeditiously attend to and redress the gricvances, if any, of the
Debenture Holder(s). The Issuer further undertakes that it shall promptly comply
with the suggestions and directions that may be given in this regard, from time to
time, by the Debenture Trustce and shall advisc the Dcbenture Trustee
periodically of its compliance.

g. The Issuer shall provide to the Debenture Trustee such information as it may require for
any filings, statcments, reports that the Debenture Trustee is required to provide to any
Governmental Authority under Applicable Law.

Within 15 (Fificen) Business Days of receipt of a request from the Debenture Trusice,
the Issuer shall authenticate any information relating to the Debentures, to be submitted
by the Debenture Trustee with the Information Utility.

Affirmative Covenants

The Issuer hereby covenanis with the Debenture Trustee that the Issuer shall (except as may
otherwise be previously agreed in writing by the Debenture Trustee (acting upon the
instructions of the Majority Debenture Holders):

Utilisation of procecds of Debentures

The Issuer shall utilisc the monics received upon subscription of the Debentures solely
towards the Purpose and procure and furnish to the Debenture Trustee, a certificate from an
independent chartered accountant in respect of the utilisation of funds raised by the issue of
Debentures, within 60 (Sixty) calendar days from the Deemed Date of Allotment and from the
statutory auditors of the Issucr at the end of each financial year.

Validity of Transaction Documents

Ensure that the Transaction Documents shall be validly executed and dclivered and will
continue in full force and cffect and will constitute valid, enforceable and binding obligations
of the Issuer,

Further documents and acts

Exccute all such deeds, documents, instruments and assurances and do all such acts and things
the Debenture Trustee may reasonably require for exercising the rights under the Debenture
Trust Deed and the Debentures and for perfecting the Debenture Trust Deed or for effectuating
and completing the Security intended to be hereby created and shall from time to time and at
all times after the Sccurity hereby constituted shall become enforceable, excecute and do all
such deeds, documents, assurance, acts, and things as the Debenture Trustee may require for
facilitating realisation of the Sccured Property and in particular the Issuer shall exccute all
transfers, conveyances, assignments and assurance of the Secured Property whether to the
Debenture Trustee or to their nominees and shall give all notices and directions which the
Dcbenture Trustee may think expedient.

Malke the Relevant filings with the Registrar of Companies/SEBI

Pursuant to the Act and the relevant rules thereunder, the Issuer undertakes to make the
necessary filings of the documents mandated therein including the Form PAS-3 for return of
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allotment with the Registrar of Companies and/or SEBI within the timelines stipulated under
the Act and the relevant rules thercunder.

v. Compliance with laws
The Issucr shall comply with:

a. all laws, rules, regulations and guidelines (including the Act) as applicable in respect to the
Issue, and obtain such regulatory approvals as may be required from time to time, including
but not limited, in rclation to the following (i} the Sccurities and Exchange Board of India
(Issuc and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008, as may be in force from time to time
during the currency of the Debentures; (i) the provisions of the listing agreement entered into
by the Issuer with the stock exchange in relation to the Debentures including the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations), (iii) the
Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Sccurities) Rules, 2014 and the other notified rules
under the Act and (iv) the RBI Master Direction — Non Banking Financial Company-
Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as
amended from time to time;

b. comply with all the applicable provisions as mentioned in the Sccuritics and Exchange Board
of India (Debenture Trustec) Regulations, 1993, the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008, the Act, Issuance of Non-Convertible
Decbentures (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2010, and/or any other notification, circular, press
release issued by the SEBI/RBI, from time to time.

¢. The Issucr shall, while submitting half ycarly/ annval financial results to the BSE disclosc
inter alia the following line items along with the financial results accompanied by a certificate
from the Debenture Trustee confirming that it has taken note of the said content and the same
shall be communicated to the Debenture Holder(s) on a half-yearly basis:

Credit rating of the Issuc and change in credit rating, if any;

Debt- equity ratio of the Issuer;

Previous duc date for the payment of interest/ repayment of principal and whether the same
has been paid or not;

Next due date of payment along with the amount of interest/ principal along with the amount
of interest payable;

Debenture Redemption Reserve (if applicable);

Net worth;

Net profit after tax; and

Earnings per share,

Zamm O Owp

vi. Preserve Corporate Status

Diligently preserve its corporate existence and status and its license to conduct business as a
non-banking financial company-microfinance institution and any other rights, licenses and
franchises necessary for its obligations under the Debentures and the Transaction Documents
and continue to be a validly existing organization in good standing and at all times act and
proceed in relation to its affairs and business in compliance with Applicable Law.

vii. Asscet Cover

Shail maintain the Assct Cover as required under the Deed of Hypothecation at all times until
the Final Scttlement Date.
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Transfer of unclaimed Redemption Amounts.

Comply with the provisions of the Act relating to transfer of unclaimed redemption and
coupon amounts of Debentures to Investor Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF™), if

applicable to it.

Security

The Issuer hercby further agrees, declares and covenants with the Debenture Trusiee as
follows:

The Debentures shall be secured by way of a first ranking exclusive charge on the Secured
Property;

It shall perfect the sccurity over the Secured Property by filing Form CHG-9 with the
Registrar of Companics in relation thereto within 30 (Thirty) calendar days from the date of
execution of the Deed of Hypothecation;

Notwithstanding the above, the Issuer shall take all the necessary and requisite actions,
including the making of all filings with the relevant authorities, such as the Registrar of
Companies, in order to perfect the security over the Secured Property created or modified (by
way of addition or substitution or replacement of Receivables, as provided for in the Deed of
Hypothecation) by the Issuer, at least on a quarterly basis, commencing from the date falling
on the expiry of 3 (Three) months from the Deemed Date of Allotment and on every quarter
thereafier, The Issuer shall submit the requisite proof of such perfection of security to the
Debenture Trustee.

The Issuer covenants that it shall co-operate and shall provide all necessary assistance and
furnish such information or documents as may be required by the Debenture Trustee and/or
the Debenture Holders, to the satisfaction of the Debenture Trustee to enable it to make
necessary filings in connection with the creation of sccurity over the Sccured Property with the
Central Registry of Securitisation Asset Reconstruction and Security Interest of India.

Financial Terms and Conditions

At all times during the term of these presents comply with cach of the Financial Terms and
Conditions.

carry out subscquent valuation of the Sccured Property, at the request of the Debenture
Trustee;

The Issuer is awarc that in terms of Regulation 14 of the SEBI (Debenture Trusteces)
Regulations, 1993 as amended from time to time, the Trust Deed has to contain the
matters specified in Section 71 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Form No. SH.12 specified
under the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014. The Issuer hereby agrees to
comply with all the clauses of Form No. SH.12 as specified under the Companies (Share
Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 as if they arc actually and physically incorporated in the
Debenture Trust Deed;

Negative Covenants
The Issuer hereby covenants with the Debenture Trustee that the Issuer shall not {except as may

otherwise be previously agreed in writing by the Debenture Trustee, acting on behalf of the
Majority Debenture Holders):
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i. Merger, Consolidation, ctc.

Enter into any agreement to cffectuate any change of control, consolidate or amalgamate with or
merge with or into, or reccive all or substantially all the assets or obligations of, another entity.

ii. Constitutional Documents

The Issucr shall not make any amendments to its constitutional documents in a manner which
would prejudicially affect the interests of the Debenture Holder(s).

iii. Arrangement with creditors

Enter into any material compromise or arrangement or scttlement with any of its secured
creditors that would prejudicially affect the interests of the Debenture Holder(s).

iv. Payment of dividend

Declare or pay any dividend to its sharcholders during any financial year unless it has paid the
amounts then due and payable on the Debentures or has made provisions satisfactory to the
Debenture Trustee for making such payment,

v. Disposal of Assets

Scll, transfer, or othenwise dispose of in any manner whatsoever any material assets of the
Issucr, other than in ordinary course of business including any sccuritization / portfolio sale of
assets undertaken by the Issucr in its ordinary course of business.

vi. No Encumbrance Over Secured Property

The Issuer shall not, until the Final Settlement Date, create any further charge or encumbrance
over the Sccured Property, except as created in favour of the Debenture Trustee for the benefit
of the Decbenture Holders, under the terms of the Debenture Trust Deed and the Deed of
Hypothecation,

vii. Change of business

Change the general nature of its business from that which is permitted as a non-deposit
accepting or holding non-banking financial company-microfinance institution registered with
the RBIL

D, Financial Covenants

Within 45 (Forty Five) calendar days from the cnd of each quarter, the Issuer shall submit a
certificate signed by the chicf financial officer or an authorised signatory of the Issuer
confirming the Issuecr’s compliance with the Financial Covenants sct out hereinafter. The Issuer
shall ensure that as on the last day of cach calendar quarter, (unless specified otherwise), until
the redemption of Debentures:

i The Issuer shall at all times, until the Final Scttlement Date, maintain a ratio of Foreign-

Currency Assets minus Foreign-Currency Liabilities divided by Regulatory Capital comprised
between 150% (One Hundred and Fifty Percent) and -50% (Minus Fifty Percent);
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The Issuer shall at all times, until the Final Scttlement Date maintain a Non-Performing Loan
Ratio of less than or equal to 6% (Six Percent).

The Issuer shall at all times, until the Final Settlement Date maintain a ratio of Open Loan
Position 90 Days to the Issucr’s Regulatory Capital of less than or equal to 20% (Twenty
Percent).

The Issuer shall at all times, until the Final Settlement Date, maintain a ratio of Regulatory
Capital divided by the Risk Weighted Assets of whichever is higher: (a) eighteen percent (18%)
or (b) the minimum ratio imposed on the Issucr according to the Local Requirements.

For the purpose of this Clause, the following terms shall have the meaning ascribed to them as
provided below:

“Foreign-Currency Assets” shall mean the aggregate of all assets of the Issuer consisting of
loans, deposits, claims or other assets that by their terms are payable in any currency other than
the domestic currency. However, assets of the Issuer that are payable in domestic currency of
the Issuer but whose value is indexed to a foreign currency shall be considered as Foreign-
Currency Assets.

“Foreign-Currency Liabilities” shall mean the aggregate of all liabilitics of the Issuer consisting
of loans, deposits, claims or other liabilities that by their terms are payable in any currency other
than the domestic currency. However, forcign currency liabilities that arc indexed to the
domestic currency of the Issucr or that are hedged against exchange rate fluctuations with the
domestic currency of the Issuer shall not be considered as part of its Foreign-Currency
Liabilities.

“Gross Loan Porifolio” shall mean the aggregate outstanding balance of all the Client Loans
disbursed by the Issucr in the normal course of its activity.

“Loan Loss Reserves” shall mecan the total reserve cstablished to cover potential losses in the
Issuer’s outstanding loans or other credit facilities.

“Local Requiremenis” shall mean all national and local laws, regulations, and specific decisions
by any competent authority applicable to the Issuer.

“Open Loan Position 90 Days" shall mean Gross Loan Portfolio with clients that are overduc
with intercst or principal payments for morc than nincty (90) days, plus all Restructured or
Rescheduled Loans or refinanced loans less than ninety (90) days overdue minus Loan Loss
Reserve.

“Non-Performing Loan Ratio” shall mean the sum of the Issucr’s outstanding balance of loans
and other credit facilitics overduc for more than ninety (90) days, plus the outstanding balance
of loans and other credit facilitics Restructured or Rescheduled Loans or refinanced but not
overdue for more than ninety (90) days, plus the outstanding book value of assets repossessed if
not included in the loans overdue more than 90 days, plus the gross amount of loans wntten off
of the last twelve-month period, divided by the Issuer’s Gross Loan Portfolio.

“Restructured or Rescheduled Loans™ shall mean, with respect to the Company, the outstanding
principal balance of all past due Client Loans that have been renegotiated or modified to cither
lengthen or postpone the originally scheduled instalments of principal, or to substantially alter
the original terms, of such Client Loans. It does, however, not include any loans aircady
reported in the special category Volume of rescheduled/restructured/refinanced loans under
Covid-19 related rules.
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“Volume of rescheduled/vestructuredirefinanced loans under Covid-19 related rules” shall
mean the principal balance of all loans outstanding that have been rencgotiated or modified to
either fengthen or postpone the originally scheduled instalments of principal, or substantially
alter the original terms of the loans as a result of the impact of the Covid-19 Pandemic. Thesc
special rescheduling are either imposed, recommended or allowed by, inter alia, the relevant
local regulator and/or authorities under a regulation and/or framework enacted as a direct result
of the Covid-19 Pandemic for the period between 1st March 2020 and 31st August 2020.

“Regulatory Capital” shall mean the capital applicable to the Issuer, according to the Local
Requirements.

“Risk Weighted Assets” shall mean risk weighted assets according to the Local Requirements.
Events of Default

Each of the following shall constitute an Event of Default with respect to the Debentures and
shall be set out in the Transaclion Documents.

If any of the events listed below (each, an “Event of Default™) has occurred and pursuant
thereto, if so required in writing by the Majority Debenture Holder(s), the Debenture Trustee
shall, give notice to the Issucr that the Debentures are due and repayable.

The failure to pay any outstanding sum due and payable under the Debentures, including
Coupon/Redemption Amounts, on the Due Date(s) in full or in part, unless such failure to pay is
caused by administrative or technical error and payment is made within 3 (Three) calendar days
from the Due Date;

The material failure to comply with any reasonably monitoring and/or servicing requests from
the Debenture Holder(s), including its monthly, quarterly or annual reporting requirements as
required under clause 10.1 of the Debenture Trust Deed, including such requests arising from
the due diligence visits and documentation review of the Debenture Holder(s);

Any representation or warranty made by the Issuer in any Transaction Document or in any
certificate, financial statement or other document delivered to the Debenture Trustee/Debenture-
Holder(s) by the Issuer shall prove to have been incorreet, false or misleading in any material
respect when made or deemed made and such misrepresentation adversely affects the interest of
the Debenture Holders in the reasonable opinion of the Debenture Trustee (acting on the
instructions of the Majority Dcbenture Holders);

Failure of the Issuer to maintain the Asset Cover or top up the loan receivables within the
timelines stipulated under the Deed of Hypotheeation;

Failure of the Issuer to create, register and perfect the charge created over the Sceured Property,
within the timelines stipulated in the relevant Transaction Documents.

The Issuer is (or is deemed by law or a court to be) insolvent or bankrupt or unable to pay its
debts as they fall due, or makes a general assignment or an arrangement or composition with or
for the benefit of the relevant creditors in respect of any of such debts or stops or suspends
payment of all its debts, by reason of actual or anticipated financial difficultics or proceedings
for taking it into liquidation have been admitted by any competent court or any application has
been filed or proceedings have been initiated against the Issucr under IBC or a moratorium is
agreed or declared in respect of or affecting all the debts of the Issuer;
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G. A distress, attachment, exccution or other legal process is levied, enforced or sued out on or
against any matcrial part of the property, assets or revenues of the Issuer and is not discharged

or stayed within 45 (Forty Five) Business Days;

H. An order is made or an cffective resolution passed for the winding-up or dissolution, judicial
management or administration of the Issuer, or the Issuer ceases to carry on all of its business or
operations, cxcept for the purpose of and followed by a reconstruction, amalgamation, re-
organisation, merger or consolidation on terms approved by a Special Resolution of the

Dcbenture Holder(s);

L. The Issuer commences a voluntary proceeding under any applicable bankruptey, insolvency,
winding up or other similar law now or hereafter in effect, or consent to the entry of an order for
relief in an involuntary procceding under any such law, or consent to the appointment or taking
possession by a receiver, liquidator, assignee (or similar official) for any or a substantial part of

its property or take any action towards its reorganization, liquidation or dissolution;

L In the opinion of the Debenture Trustee, any of the Transaction Documents failing to provide
the security interests, rights, title, remedics, powers or privileges intended to be created thereby
(including the priority intended to be created thereby), or such security interests failing to have
the priority contemplated under the Transaction Documents, or the security interests becoming

unlawful, invalid or unenforceable;

K. If the Issuer, in regards to any financial indcbtedness: (A) defaults in any payment of any
financial indcbtedness beyond the period of grace, if any, provided in the instrument or
agreement under which such financial indebtedness was created or (B) defaults in the
observance or performance of anmy agrcement or condition relating to any financial
indcbtedness, the effect of which default or other event or condition is to cause or to permit the
holder or holders of such financial indebtedness to cause (with the giving of netice or the
passage of time or both would permit or cause) any such financial indebtedness to become due
prior to its stated maturity; or (C) due to any default or an cvent of default, any financial
indebtedness of the Issuer shall be declared to be due and payable, or required to be prepaid
other than by a regularly scheduled required prepayment, (whether or not such right shall have

been waived) prior to the stated maturity thercof;

L. One or more judgments or decrees shall be entered against the Issuer involving a liability (not
paid or not covered by a reputable and solvent insurance company), individually or in the
aggregate, exceeding 5% (Five Percent) of the total assets of the Issuer and such judgments or
decrees either shall be final and non-appealable or shall not be vacated, discharged or stayed

pending appeal for any peried of 90 (Ninety) calendar days;

M. There shall have occurred a change in the business, operations, property, assets, liabilitics,
condition (financial or otherwisc) or prospects of the Issuer since the date hereof that has
resulted in, or would result in, a Material Adverse Effect and such Material Adversce Effect has

not been remedicd or rectified for a period of 10 (Ten) Busincss Days;

N. The Issuer finances clients listed on:

i. any list of terrorists or terrorist organizations of the United Nations, the European

Union and any other applicable country; or
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ii. any Financial Sanctions list, being defined as lists of persons, groups or entities which
are subject to United Nations, Europcan Union and the US Office of Forcign Assel
Control (OFAC) sanctions;

Q. Any other Event of Default(s) as set out in the Debenture Trust Deed;

p. Other than as specifically provided above, the Issuer defaults in the performance of any other
covenants, obligations, representations or warranties on the part of the Issuer under the
Transaction Documents, unless such default is capable of being cured and is cured within 30
(Thirty) calendar days from the date of its first occurrence.

7.5 Consequences of Events of Default

Upon the happening of an Event of Default, the Debenture Trustee shall be entitled to exercise
any and all remedies in accordance with the terms contained in the Transaction Documents.
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SECTION 8: OTHER INFORMATION AND APPLICATION PROCESS

The Dcbentures being offered as part of the Issuc are subject to the provisions of the Act, the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer, the terms of this Information Memorandum,
Application Form and other terms and conditions as may be incorporated in the Transaction Documents.

8.1 Mode of Transfer/Transmission of Debentures

The Debentures shall be transferable freely; however, it is clarified that no Investor shall be cntitled to
transfer the Debentures to a person who is not eatitled to subscribe to the Debentures. The Debenture(s)
shall be transferred and/or transmitted in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act and other
applicable laws, The Debentures held in dematerialized form shall be transferred subject to and n
accordance with the rules/procedures as prescribed by NSDL and the relevant DPs of the transleror or
transferee and any other applicable laws and rules notificd in respect thereof. The transferee(s) should
ensure that the transfer formalities arc completed prior to the Record Date. In the absence of the same,
amounts due will be paid/redemption will be made to the person, whose name appears in the register of
debenture holders maintained by the R&T Agent as on the Record Date, under all circumstances. In
cases where the transfer formalities have not been completed by the transferor, claims, if any, by the
transferees would need to be settled with the transferor(s) and not with the Issuer. The normal procedure
followed for transfer of securitics held in dematerialized form shall be followed for transfer ol these
Debentures held in dematerialised form. The seller should give delivery instructions containing details
of the buyer’s DP account to his DP.

8.2 Debentures held in Dematerialised Form

The Debentures shall be held in dematerialised form and no action is required on the part of the
Debenture Holder(s) for redemption purposes and the redemption proceeds will be paid by cheque/fund
transfer/RTGS to those Debenture Holder(s) whose names appear on the list of beneficiarics maintained
by the R&T Agent. The names would be as per the R&T Agent’s records on the Record Date fixed for
the purpose of redemption. All such Debentures will be simultancously redeemed through appropriate
corporate action.

The list of beneficiaries as of the Record Date sctting out the relevant beneficiaries’ name and account
number, address, bank details and DP’s identification number will be given by the R&T Agent to the
Issuer. If permitted, the Issuer may transfer payments required to be made in any relation by EFT/RTGS
to the bank account of the Debenture Holder(s) for redemption payments.

83  Trustee for the Debenture Holder(s)

The Issuer has appointed IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited to act as trustee for the Debenture
Holder{s). The Issuer and the Debenture Trustee intends to enter into the Debenture Trustce Agreement
and the Debenture Trust Deed inter alia, specifying the powers, authorities and obligations of the
Dcbenture Trustee and the Issuer. The Debenture Holder(s) shall, without further act or deed, be deemed
to have irrevocably given their consent to the Debenture Trustee or any of its agents or authorized
officials to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things in respect of or relating to the Debentures as the
Dcbenture Trustee may in its absolute discretion deem necessary or require to be done in the interest of
the Debenture Holder(s). Any payment made by the Issucr to the Debenture Trustee on behalf of the
Dcbenture Holder(s) shall discharge the Issuer pro fanto to the Debenture Holder(s). The Decbenture
Trustee will protect the interest of the Debenture Holder(s) in regard to the repayment of principal and
coupon thercon and they will take necessary action, subject to and in accordance with the Debenture
Trustee Agreement and the Debenture Trust Deed, at the cost of the Issucr. No Debenture Holder shall
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to proceed, fails to do so. The Debenture Trustee Agreement and the Debenture Trust Deed shall more
specifically set out the rights and remedies of the Debenture Holder(s) and the manner of enforcement

thereof.
84 Sharing of Information

The Issucr may, at its option, but subject to applicable laws, use on its own, as well as exchange, share
or part with any financial or other information about the Debenture Holder(s) available with the Issuer,
with its subsidiaries and affiliates and other banks, financial institutions, credit bureaus, agencies,
statutory bodies, as may be required and neither the Issuer nor its subsidiaries and affiliates nor their
agents shall be liable for use of the aforesaid information.

8.5 Debenture Holder not a Sharcholder

The Debenture Holder(s) shall not be entitled to any right and privileges of sharcholders other than
those available to them under applicable laws. The Debentures shall not confer upon the Debenture
Holders the right to receive notice(s) or to attend and to vote at any gencral meeting(s) of the
sharchelders of the Issucr.

8.6 Modification of Debentures

The Debenture Trustce and the Issuer will agree to make any modifications in the Information
Memorandum which in the opinion of the Debenture Trustee is of a formal, minor or technical nature or
is to correct a manifest error.

Any other change or modification to the terms of the Debentures shall require approval by the Majority
Debenture Holders in the manner as provided for in the Debenture Trust Deed.

For the avoidance of doubt, the following matters require the consent of Majorily Debenture Holders,
either by providing their express consent in writing or by way of a resolution at a duly convened
meeting of the Debenture Holders:

A Creating of any additional security; and
B. Amendment to the terms and conditions of the Debentures or the Transaction Documents.

8.7 Right to accept or reject Applications

The Board of Directors/Committee of Directors reserves its full, unqualified and absolute right to accept
or reject any application for subscription to the Debentures, in part or in full, without assigning any
reason thereof.

8.8 Notices

Any notice may be served by the Issucr/ Debenture Trustee upen the Debenture Holders through
registered post, recognized overnight courier service, hand delivery or by facsimile transmission
addressed to such Debenture Holder at its/his registered address, e-mail or facsimile number.

All notice(s) to be given by the Debenture Holder(s) to the Issucr/ Debenture Trustee shall be sent by
registered post, recognized overnight courier service, hand delivery, email or by facsimile transmission
to the Issucr or to such persons at such address/ facsimile number as may be notified by the Issuer from
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time to time through suitable communication. All correspondence regarding the Debentures should be
marked *Private Placcment of Debentures™.

Notice(s) shall be deemed to be effective (a) in the case of registered mail, 5 (Five) Business Days after
posting via certified or registered mail, return receipt requested; (b) 1 (One) Business Day after delivery
by recognized overnight courier service, if sent for next Business day delivery (¢} in the casc of
facsimile at the time when dispatched with a report confirming proper transmission; (d) in the case of
personal delivery, at the time of delivery or (¢) or in case of e-mail at the time of the sending thereof
(provided no delivery failure notification is reccived by the sender within 24 hours of seading such

email).
8.9 Issue Procedure

Only Eligible Investors as given hercunder and identified upfront by the Issuer may apply for the
Debentures by completing the Application Form in the prescribed format in block letters in English as
per the instructions contained therein., The minimum number of Debentures that can be applied for and
the multiples thereof shall be set out in the Application Form. No application can be made for a fraction
of a’Dcbenture. Application Forms should be duly completed in all respects and applications not
completed in the said manner are liable to be rejected. The name of the applicant’s bank, type of account
and account number must be duly completed by the applicant. This is required for the applicant’s own
safety and these details will be printed on the refund orders and /or redemptions warrants. All payments
in respect of the Debentures shall be made by the Issuer into the bank account so specified by the
applicant.

The subscription to the Debentures shall be made by the Eligible Investors through the electronic book
mechanism as prescribed by SEBI under the EBP Guidelines by placing bids on the EBP Platform
during the Issue period. In case the Eligible Investors are not registered on the EBP Platform, they will
have to register themselves as investor on the said platform (as a one time exercisce) and also complete
the mandatory KYC verification process. The Eligible Investors should also refer to the operational
guidelines of the EBP in this respect. The disclosures required pursuant to the EBP Guidelines are sct
out herecinbelow:

Details of size of the Issue including | Rs. 70,00,00,000/- (Rupees Scventy Crores only) to

green shoc option, if any retain additional subscription on a private placement
' basis
Bid opening and closing date Bid opening date: September 25, 2020; and
Bid elosing date: September 25, 2020
Minimum Bid lot Rs. 1,00,00,000/- (Rupces One Crore only) and in

the multiples of 1 (One) Debenture thereafier ie.
Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakh only).

Manner of bidding in the Issue Closed Bidding

Manner of allotment in the Issue Uniform Yield

Manner of settlement in the Issue Pay-in of funds through ICCL.

Settlement cycle T+2,
where T refers to the date of bid opening date / issue
opening date

Process flow of settlement:

Eligible Investors whosc bids have been accepted by the Issuer and to whom a signed copy of this
Information Memorandum along with the Private Placement Offer Letter have been issued by the
Issuer and who have submitted/shall submit the application form (“Successful Bidders™), shall
make pay-in of subscription monies in respect of the Debentures towards the allocation made to

A
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them, into the bank account of the ICCL, the details of which are as set out below, on the Deemed
Date of Allotment:

Name of Bank HDFC BANK

IFSC Code HDFCQ000060

Account number ICCLEB

Name of beneficiary INDIAN CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED
Name of Bank ICICI Bank Ltd.

IFSC Code ICIC0000106

Account number ICCLEB

Name of beneficiary INDIAN CLEARING CORPORATION LTD
Name of Bank YES BANK

IFSC Code YESBOCMSNOC

Account number ICCLEB

Name of beneficiary INDIAN CLEARING CORPORATION LTD

The pay-in by the Successful Bidders will be made only from the bank account(s), which have been
provided / updated by them in the EBP system. Any amount received from third party accounts or
from accounts not specified in the EBP system will be refunded and no allotment will be made
against such payments. Upon the transfer of funds into the aforesaid account of ICCL and the Issuer
confirming its decision to proceed with the allotment of the Debentures in favour of the Successful
Bidders to the ICCL, the R&T Agent and the EBP and initiating the requisite corporate action for
allotment of Dcbentures and credit of the demat letter of allotment into the relevant demat account
of the Successful Bidders through the R&T Agent, the R&T Agent shall provide corporate action
file along with all requisite documents to the Depositories by 12:00 hours and also intimatc the EBP
of the aforesaid actions. Upon the Depositorics confirming the allotment of the Debentures and the
credit of the Debentures into the demat account of the Successful Bidders te EBP, the subscription
monies in respect of the Debentures from the aforesaid account of ICCL shall be released into the
Issucr’s bank account, the details of which are as set out below:

Beneficiary Name: Ess Kay Fincorp Limited
‘Bank Account No. 409001042376

IFSC CODE: ' RATNO0000038
BankName. . .| RBL BANK LIMITED
Branch Address: Lower Parel (West)

It must be noted that ali funds pay-in obligations need to be fulfilled in totality. Partial fund receipt
against any given obligation will be treated as a default and debarment penalties will be applicable as
specificd by the EBP Guidelines.

8.10  Application Procedure

Potential Investors will be invited to subscribe by way of the Application Form prescribed in the
Information Memorandum during the period between the Issue Opening Date and -the Issue Closing
Date (both dates inclusive). Subject to the EBP Guidelines, the Issuer reserves the right to change the
issue schedule including the Deemed Date of Allotment at its sole discretion, without giving any
reasons. The Issue will be open for subscription during the banking hours on each day during the period
covered by the Issuc Schedule.

G KAy
8.11  Tictitious Application { /_\/ﬁ
_ Z)

»

¥

+

k,%\ /;}‘: _' 79

,_.T\.y

Tl



e

[
7

Information Memorandum Private & Confidential
Date: September 23, 2020 For Private Circulation Only
(This Information Memorandum is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

All fictitious applications will be rejected.
8.12  Basis of Allotment

Notwithstanding anything stated elsewhere, Issuer reserves the right to accept or reject any application,
in part or in full, without assigning any reason. Subject to the aforesaid, in case of over subscription,
allotment shall be made on a “yield-time” priority basis in accordance with the EBP Guidelines. The
investors will be required to remit the funds as well as submit the duly completed Application Form
along with other necessary documents to Issuer by the Deemed Date of Allotment.

8.13. Payment Instructions

The pay-in of subscription monies in respect of the Debentures by the Successful Bidder shall be made
in accordance with the procedure set out in Clausc Error! Reference source not found. above.

8.14  Eligible Investors

The following categories of Investors, who have been specifically approached and have been identified
upfront, are cligible to apply for this private placement of Debenturcs subject to fulfilling their
respective investment norms/rules and compliance with laws applicable to them by submitting all the
relevant documents along with the Application Form:

Mutual Funds

Non-banking financial companics

Provident Funds and Pension Funds

Corporates

Banks

Foreign Portfolio Investors (FPIs)

Foreign Institutional Investors (FIIs)

Qualificd Foreign Investors (QFIs)

Insurance Companics

Investment holding companies of high net worth individuals
Any other person (not being an individual or a group of individuals) eligible to invest in the
Debentures

AETZOMmOOW

All potential Investors arc required to comply with the relevant regulations/guidclines applicable to
them for investing in this issue of Debentures and the Issuer, is not in any way, directly or indirectly,
responsible for any statutory or regulatory breaches by any investor, neither is the Issuer required to
check or confirm the same.

Hosting of the Information Memorandum on the website of the BSE / NSE should not be construed as
an offer or an invitation to offer to subscribe to the Debentures and the same has been hosted only as it
is stipulated under the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations read with the EBP Guidelines. Eligible Investors
should check their eligibility before making any investment.

All potential Investors arc required to comply with the relevant regulations/guidelines applicable to
them for investing in this issue of Debentures.

Note: Participation by potential Investors in the Issuc may be subject to statutory and/or rcgulatory

o :L}ij requircments applicable to them in connection with subscription to Indian securities by such categorics
sy

7 50
S




Information Memorandum Private & Confidential
Date: September 23, 2020 For Prvate Circulation Only
{This Information Memorandum is neither a prospectus nor o statement in liew of a prospectus)

of persons or cntities. Applicants arc advised to ensurc that they comply with all regulatory
requircments applicable to them, including exchange controls and other requirements. Applicants ought
to seek independent legal and regulatory advice in relation to the laws applicable to them.

8.15  Procedure for Applying for Dematerialised Facility

A. The applicant must have at least one bencficiary account with any of the DPs of NSDL prior to
making the application.

B. The applicant must nccessarily fill in the details (including the beneficiary account number and
DP - ID) appearing in the Application Form under the heading “Details for Issue of Debentures
in Electronic/Dematerialised Form"”.

C. Debentures allotted to an applicant will be credited to the applicant’s respective beneficiary
accouni(s) with the DP.

D. For subscribing to the Debentures, names in the Application Form should be identical to those
appearing in the details in the Depository. In case of joint holders, the names should necessarily
be in the same sequence as they appear in the account details maintained with the DP.

E. Non-transferable allotment advice/refund orders will be directly sent to the applicant by the
Registrar and Transfer Agent to the Issue.

F. If incompletefincorrect details are given under the heading “Details for Issuc of Debentures in
Electronic/Dematerialised Form™ in the Application Form, it will be deemed to be an
incomplete application and the same may be held liable for rejection at the sole discretion of the
Issuer.

G. For allotment of Debentures, the address, nomination details and other details of the applicant as
registered with his/her DP shall be used for all correspondence with the applicant. The applicant
is thercfore responsible for the correctness of histher demographic details given in the
Application Form vis-a-vis those with his/her DP. In case the information is incorrect or
insufficient, the Issuer would not be liable for the losscs, if any.

H. The redemption amount or other benefits would be paid to those Debenture Holders whose
names appear on the list of beneficial owners maintained by the R&T Agent as on the Record
Date. In case of those Debentures for which the beneficial owner is not identified in the records
of the R&T Agent as on the Record Date, the Issuer would keep in abeyance the payment of the
redemption amount or other benefits, until such time that the beneficial owner is identified by
the R&T Agent and conveyed to the Issuer, whercupon the redemption amount and benefits will
be paid to the beneficiaries, as identified.

8.16 Dcpository Arrangements

The Issuer shall make necessary arrangement with NSDL for issuc and holding of Debenture in
dematerialised form.

8.17 List of Beneficiaries

7 AN\ The Issucr shall request the R&T Agent to provide a list of beneficiarics as at the end of each Record
z&) ,'_'/'.‘Datc. This shall be the list, which will be used for payment or repayment of redemption monics.

i
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8.18  Application under Power of Attorney

A certified true copy of the power of attorney or the relevant authority as the case may be along with the
names and specimen signature(s) of all the authorized signatorics of the Investor and the tax exemption
certificate/document of the Investor, if any, must be lodged along with the submission of the completed
Application Form. Further modifications/additions in the power of attorney or authority should be
notified to the Issuer or to its agents or to such other person(s) at such other address(es) as may be
specificd by the Issuer from time to time through a suitable communication.

In casc of an application made by companies under a power of attorney or resolution or authority, a
certified true copy thereof along with memorandum and articles of association and/or bye-laws along
with other constitutional documents must be attached to the Application Form at the time of making the
application, failing which, the Issuer reserves the full, unqualified and absolute right to accept or reject
any application in whole or in part and in cither case without assigning any reason thereto. Names and
specimen signatures of all the authorized signatories must also be lodged along with the submission of
the completed Application Form.

8.19  Procedurc for application by Mutual Funds and Multiple Applications

In casc of applications by mutual funds and venture capital funds, a separate application must be made
in respect of cach scheme of an Indian mutual fund/venture capital fund registered with the SEBI and
such.applications will not be trcated as multiple application, provided that the application made by the
assct management company/trustee/custodian clearly indicated their intention as to the scheme for
which the application has been made.

The application forms duly filled shall clearly indicate the name of the concerned scheme for which
application is being made and must be accompanied by certified true copics of

A. SEBI registration certificate

B. Resolution authorizing investment and containing operating instructions

C. Specimen signature of authorized signatories

8.20 Documents to be provided by Investors

Investors need to submit the following documents, as applicable

Memorandum and Articles of Association or other constifutional documents
Resolution authorising investment

Power of Attorney to custodian

Specimen signatures of the authorised signatories

SEBI registration certificate (for Mutual Funds)

Copy of PAN card

Application Form (including EFT/RTGS details)

OMmoNw»

8.21  Applications to be accompanied with Bank Account Details

Every application shall be required to be accompanied by the bank account details of the applicant and
the magnetic ink character reader code of the bank for the purpose of availing direct credit of
redemption amount and all other amounts payable to the Debenture Holder(s} through EFT/RTGS.
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In the cvent of winding-up of the holder of the Debenture(s), the Issuer will recognize the liquidator or
such other legal representative of the Debenture Holder(s) as having title to the Debenture(s).

The Issuer may, in its absolute discretion, where it thinks fit, dispense with production of such other
legal representation, in order to recognize such holder as being entitled to the Debenture(s) standing in
the name of the concerned Debenture Holder on production of sufficient documentary proof and/or an
indemnity.,

8.23  Mode of Payment
All payments must be made through EFT/RTGS as set out in the Application Form,
8.24  Eifect of Holidays

In case any Coupon Payment Daie or the Principal Payment Date or the due date falls on a day which is
not a Business Day, the payment to be made on such Coupon Payment Date or the Principal Payment
Date, as the case may be, shall be made on the immediately succeeding Business Day. When the
Maturity Date (including the last Coupon Payment Date and the last Principal Payment Date) and/or the
Put Option Date and/or the Call Option Date, falls on a day which is not a Business Day, all payments
to be made on the Maturity Date (including accrued Coupon and outstanding prmclpal amount), shall be
made on the immediately preceding Business Day.

825 Tax Deduction at Source

Tax as applicable under the Income Tax Act, 1961, or any other statutory modification or re-cnactment
thereof will be deducted at source by the Company. For sccking TDS exemption/lower rate of TDS,
relevant certificate/document must be lodged by the Debenture Holder(s) at the office of the R&T
Agents of the Issuer at least 15 (Fifieen) calendar days before the relevant payment becoming due. Tax
exemption certificate / declaration of non-deduction of tax at source on interest on application money,
should be submitted along with the Application Form.

If any payments under this issuance is subject to any tax deduction other than such amounts as are
required as per current regulations existing as on the date of the Debenture Trust Deed), including if the
Company shall be required legally to make any payment for tax from the interest/coupon payable under
the Issue, (*Tax Deduction”), the Company shall make such Tax Deduction, and shall simultancously
pay to the Debenture Holders, such additional amounts as may be necessary in order that the net
amounts received by the Debenture Holders after the Tax Deduction shall equal the respective amounts
which would have been receivable by the Debenture Holders in the absence of such Tax Deduction.

8.26  Letters of Allotment

The letter of allotment, indicating allotment of the Debentures, will be credited in dematerialised form
within 2 (Two) Business Days from the Decmed Date of Allotment. The aforesaid letter of allotment
shall be replaced with the actual credit of Debentures, in dematerialised form, within 5 (Five) Business
Days from the Deemed Date of Allotment or within such timelines as permissible under applicable faw.

8.27 Deemed Date of Allotment

All the benefits under the Debentures will acerue to the Investor from the specified Deemed Date of
Allotment. The Deemed Date of Allotment for the Issuc is Scptember 29, 2020 by which date the
Investors would be intimated of allotment.

83



Information Memorandum Private & Confidential
Date: September 23, 2020 For Private Circulation Only
{This Information Memorandum is neither & prospectus nor a statement in licw of a prospectus)

8.28 Rcecord Date
The Record Date will be 15 (Fifteen) calendar days prior to any Due Date.
829 Refunds

For applicants whose applications have been rejected or allotted in part, refund orders will be dispatched
within 7 {seven) days from the Deemed Date of Allotment of the Debentures.

In case the Issuer has received moncey from applicanis for Debentures in excess of the aggregate of the
application money relating to the Debentures in respect of which allotments have been made, the R&T
Agent shall upon reeeiving instructions in relation to the same from the Issucr repay the moneys to the
extent of such excess, if any.

8.30  Intercst on Application Money

Interest shall be payable on the application monies received at the Coupon Rate of 11.40% (Eleven
Decimal Point Four Zero Percent) per annum, net of Taxes. Such interest shall be payable from the date
of realisation of application monics in the account of ICCL in relation to the Debentures by the Issuer
until the Deemed Date of Allotment and the same shall be paid to the relevant Investors within 7
(Seven) Business Days from the Decmed Date of Allotment.

8.31 PAN Number

Every applicant should mention its Permanent Account Number (“PAN") allotted under Income Tax
Act, 1961, on the Application Form and attach a sclf-attested copy as cvidence. Application forms
without PAN will be considered incomplete and are liable to be rejected.

8.32  Payment on Redemption

Payment on redemption will be made by way of cheque(s)/redemption warrant(s)/demand draft(s)/credit
through RTGS syster/funds transfer in the name of the Debenture Holder(s) whose names appear on
the list of beneficial owners given by the Depository to the Issuer as on the Record Date.

The Debentures shall be taken as discharged on payment of the redemption amount by the Issuer on
maturity to the registered Debenture Holder(s) whose name appears in the Register of Dcbenture
Holder(s) on the Record Date. On such payment being made, the Issuer will inform NSDL and
accordingly the account of the Debenture Holder(s) with NSDL will be adjusted.

On the Issuer dispatching the amount as specified above in respeet of the Debentures, the liability of the
Issuer shall stand extinguished.

Disclaimer: Pleasc note that only those persons to yhom this Infermation Memorandum has been
specifically addressed are eligible to apply. However, an application, even if complete in all
respects, is liable to be rejected without assigning any reason for the same. The list of documents
provided above is only indicative, and an investor is required to provide all those documents /
authorizations/ information, which are likely to be required by the Issuer. The Issuer may, but js
not bound to revert to any investor for any additional documents / information, and can accept or
reject an application as it deems fit. Investment by investors falling in the categories mentioned

- above are merely indicative and the Issuer does not warrant that they are permitted to invest as
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per cxtant laws, regulations, cte, Each of the above categories of investors is required to check and
comply with extant rules/regulations/ guidelines, etc. governing or regulating their investments as
applicable to them and the Issuer is not, in any way, directly or indirectly, responsible for any
statutory or regulatory breaches by any investor, neither is the Issuer required to check or
confirm the same.
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SECTION9: DECLARATION

The Issucr declares that all the relevant provisions in the regulations/guideline issucd by SEBI and
other applicable laws have been complied with and no statement made in this Information
Memorandum is contrary to the provisions of the regulations/guidelines issued by SEBI and other
applicable laws, as the case may be. The information contained in this Information Memorandum
is as applicable to privately placed debt securities and subject to information available with the
Issuer. The extent of disclosures made in the Information Memorandum is consistent with
disclosures permitted by regulatory authorities to the issue of securities made by the companies in
the past.

For Ess Kay Fincorp Limited

;l.},

L

Authorised Signatory
Name: Abhinav Gupta

Title: Assistant Manager-Finance
Date: September 23, 2020
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ANNEXURE I: TERM SHEET

AS PER CLAUSE 5.23 ISSUE DETAILS
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ANNEXURE II: RATING LETTER FROM THE RATING AGENCY
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ANNEXURE III: CONSENT LETTER FROM THE DEBENTURE TRUSTEE
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ANNEXURE IV: APPLICATION FORM

ESS KAY FINCORP LIMITED
(Erstwhile Ess Kay Auto Finance Private Limited)
A public limited company incorporated under the Companics Act, 1956
Date of Incorporation: November 21, 1994
Registered Office: G 1-2, New Market, Khasa Kothi, Jaipur, Rajasthan ~ 302001
Telephone No.: +91 141 4734016
Website: waww,skfin.in

DEBENTURE SERIES APPLICATION FORM SERIAL NOQ.

ISSUE OF UPTO 700 (SEVEN HUNDRED) SECURED RATED LISTED REDEEMABLE
TRANSFERABLE NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES OF ESS KAY FINCORP LIMITED
OF RS. 10,00,000/- (RUPEES TEN LAKHS ONLY) EACH AGGREGATING UPTO RS.
70,00,00,000/- (RUPEES SEVENTY CRORES ONLY), FULLY PAID UP FOR CASH AT PAR
TO THE FACE VALUE

DEBENTURE SERIES APPLIED FOR:

Number of Debentures In words
Amount Rs. /- in words Rupees
_ Crores only
DETAILS OF PAYMENT:
RTGS
No, Drawn on

Funds (ransferred to Ess Kay Fincorp Limited
Dated

Total Amount Enclosed
(In Figures) (In words}

APPLICANT’S NAME IN FULL (CAPITALS) SPECIMEN SIGNATURE‘

e
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APPLICANT’S ADDRESS

ADDRESS

STREET

CITY

PIN PHONE FAX

APPLICANT’S PAN/GIR NO. AAICM0721B IT CIRCLE/WARD/DISTRICT

WE ARE ( ) COMPANY () OTHERS ( ) SPECIFY

We have read and understood the Terms and Conditions of the issue of Debentures including the Risk
Factors described in the Memorandum and have considered these in making our decision to apply. We
bind ourselves to these Terms and Conditions and wish to apply for allotment of these Debentures. We
request you to please place our name(s) on the Register of Holders.

~ Name of the Authorised | - Designation ' - ~ Signature
~ Signatory(ies) ; ' - '

Applicant’s
Signature

We the undersigned, are agrecable to holding the Debentures of the Company in dematerialised form.,
Details of my/our Beneficial Owner Account are given below:

DEPOSITORY NSDL ()} CDSL( )
DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANT NAME
DP-ID

BENETICIARY ACCOUNT NUMBER
NAME OF THE APPLICANT(S)

Applicant Bank Account:

) (Scttlement by way of Cheque / Demand
L %Ay, Draft / Pay Order / Direct Credit / ECS /
“o KA PR

0 {4 'NEFT/RTGS/other permitted mechanisms)

A :
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FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
DATE OF RECEIPT DATE OF CLEARANCE

(Note: Cheque and Drafis are subfect to realisation)

We understand and confirm that the information provided in the Information Memorandum is provided
by the Issuer and the same has not been verified by any legal advisors to the Issuer and other
intermediaries and their agents and advisors associated with this Issue. We confirm that we have for the
purposc of investing in these Debentures carried out our own due diligence and made our own decisions
with respect to investment in these Debentures and have not relied on any representations made by
anyonie other than the Issuer, if any.

The Issucr understands and accepts that the Applicants' intention to subscribe to the Tssue is subject to
(i) the absence of material adverse changes in the availability of currency hedging accessible to it
between the Issuc Opening Date and the Pay-in Date and/or (ii) the hedging price being acceptable to
the Applicants.

We understand that; i) in case of allotment of Debentures to us, our Beneficiary Account as mentioned
above would get credited to the extent of allotied Debentures, i) the Applicant must cnsure that the
sequence of names as mentioned in the Application Form matches the sequence of name held with our
Depository Participant, iii} if the names of the Applicant in this application are not identical and also not
in the same order as the Beneficiary Account details with the above mentioned Depository Participant or
if the Debentures cannot be credited to our Beneficiary Account for any reason whatsoever, the
Company shall be entitled at its sole discretion to reject the application or issue the Debentures in
physical form.

We understand that we are assuming on our own account, all risk of loss that may occur or be suffered
by us including as to the returns on and/or the sale value of the Debentures. We undertake that upon sale
or transfer to subsequent investor or transferee (“Transferce™), we shall convey all the terms and
conditions contained hercin and in this Information Memorandum to such Transferce. In the event of
any Transferee (including any intermediate or final holder of the Debentures) suing the Issucr (or any
person acting on its or their behalf) we shall indemnify the Issuer and also hold the Issuer harmless in
respect of any claim by any Transferce.

Applicant’s
Signature

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
DATE OF RECEIPT DATE OF CLEARANCE

(Note : Cheque and Drafis are subject to realisation)

(TEAR HERE)
- ACKNOWLEDGMENT SLIP -
| (To be filled in by Applicans) SERIAL NO. ' T 1T 1T 0T T 1 [ 11

Received from
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Address
Cheque/Draft/UTR  # Drawn on for
Rs. on account of application of Debenture
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ANNEXURE V: LAST AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ANNEXURE VI: ILLUSTRATION OF BOND CASH FLOWS

S

-, Illustration of Bond Cash Flows:

Company

Ess Kaiy Fincorp Limited

Face Value (per security)

Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakhs only)

Issue Date / Date of Allotment

Issue Opening Date: September 25, 2020
Deemed Date of Allotment: September 29, 2020

Maturity Date

September 29, 2026

Coupon Rate

11.40% (Eleven Decimal Point Four Zero Percent) per annum
(computed on a simple interest basis), net of Taxes.

Frequency of the Coupon Payment with specified

Coupon payable semi-annually.

dates First Coupon on March 29, 2021, and subsequently on March
29 and September 29 of every calendar year until the Maturity
Date (subjcct to adjustments for Business Day Convention).
Day Count Convention Actual / Actual

Scenario 1¢ In case Put Option / Call Option is exercised on the Put Option Date / Call Option Date being
September 29, 2023 and Coupon Rate is not reset at the Coupon Reset Date

_ No. of Coupon " Principal

| * Coupon Accrual days in Payment Principal

Cash Flows -Date . |. C?“?‘_’]‘;iﬁﬂy.m“;'t._ Coupo A“Ei"n"-"-t 'Date(s) | Amount (in
' n " Rupees) - Rupees)
: Period P

1" Coupon | March 29, 2021 March 29, 2021 181 39,515,904
2" Coupon September
and Scptember 29, 2021 | September 29, 2021 | 184 40,227,945 29, 2021 8.75,00,000
Principal
3™ Coupon March 29, 2022 March 29, 2022 181 34,625,548
4" Coupon September
and September 29, 2022 | September 29, 2022 | 184 35,199,452 29,2022 8,75,00,000
Principal
50 Coupon March 29, 2023 March 29, 2023 181 29,679,041
6" Coupon Seotenb
and Scptember 29, 2023 | September 29,2023 | 184 | 30,170,959 zcg ;‘[‘)‘2;" 52,50,00,000
Principal ’
TOTAL 70,00,00,000
*After adjusting for Non-Business Days

Scenario 2: In case Put Option / Call Option is not excrcised and Coupon Rate is not reset at the Coupon Resct

Date
- No.of [ Principal
Coupon Accrnal - days Coupon Payment Princinal
Cash | Date Coupon Payment | in | Amount Date(s) rineipa
) A : : . : . _ Amount (in
Flows |=== Date .Coupo (in.
. KAY I . Rupees)
A: A n Rupees)
GERAY | Period
e EE
. C 98
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1* Coupon | March 29, 2021 March 29, 2021
od September 29, Scptember 29,
2™ Coupon 2021 September 29, 2021 2021 3,75,00,000
3" Coupon | March 29, 2022 March 29, 2022
" September 29, Scptember 29,
4" Coupon 2022 September 29, 2022 2022 8,75,00,000
5" Coupon | March 29, 2023 March 29, 2023
6" Coupon ggg;cmber 29, September 29, 2023
7" Coupon | March 29,2024 | April 2, 2024
8" Coupon gggzcmbcr 29, September 30, 2024
9" Coupon | March 29,2025 | April 2, 2025
10" Coupon | SSPE™OT 29 september 29,2025
11™ Coupon { March 29, 2026 March 30, 2026
2% Coupon Scptember 29, | 52,50,00,000
Scptember 29,
and 2026 September 29, 2026 2026
Principal
TOTAL 70,00,00,000

* After adjusting for Non-Business Days
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BSR&Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Sth Floor, Lodha Excelus, Telephone +91 {22) 4345 56300
Apollo Mills Compound Fax +91 {221 43455399
N. M. Joshi Marg,Mahalaxmi

Mumbai - 400013

tndia

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
Ess Kay Fincorp Limited

Repurt vn the Audit of the Financinl Statements

Opinien

We have audited the financial statements of Ess Kay Fincorp Limited (“the Company™). which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2020, and the statement of profit and loss {including other
comprehiensive income). statement of changes in equity and statement of cash lNows for the year then
ended. and notes to the financial statements. including a summary of the significanl accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred (o as *financial statements®).

In our vpinion and 1o the best vl our information and according (o the explanations given to us, the
aforesnid Nnancial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 {"Act™) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity wilh the accounting principles generally
accepled in India. of the state of affairs of the Company as at 3! March 2020, and profit and ather
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash lows for the year ended on that date.

Basis fur OQpinion

We condueted our audit in aceordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specitied under section
143(10) of the Act. @ur responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auweitor’s
Kesponsibnfities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
ihe Campany in accordance with the Code of Eihics issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of
tndia togethur with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other cthical
responsibilitics in accordance with these requirements and the Cade of Ethics. We believe that the audit
wvidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
Nnancial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw ailention 10 Note 57 1o the hinancial statements, the extent o which the COVID-19 pandemic
will have impact on the Company's financial performance is dependent on future developments, which

are highly uncertain.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the ahove matter.

B 5 A & Co1a partnerstep frmowith Regiered Qe
Hogesiratson Mo, LALI 27} dwnto Sci Floor, Loctu Excohs

0 4 A & Co. LLP [» Camwied Listabay. Pannesthip Ap08a Mdls Compourd
weth LLP Regetrgnon Mo, ASRE1ET) 14, M, Jogh Warg Mahadaeme

with 4ffect fracn Octobae 13, 301) Aburbo - S00 Oy Mchy
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Key Auctit Matters

Koy audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. ‘1hese mallers were addressed in the context of our
audit of the finangial statements as o whole, and in forming ovur opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

sepiirale opinion on these matters.

Peseription of Key Audit Matter

y Key ndit matter

| How the matter was addressed in our audit

‘Transition date accounting policies

" Refer tes the aeconnting policies in the Financial Statements: Significant Accounting Policies- ~Basis of
preparation ™ and “Note 25 to the Financial Steremenis: Transition date choices and application™

Adoption of new accounting framework (ind
AS)

| Eifective | April 2019, the Company adopted the
: Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS™) natified
| by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs with the
i transition date ol § April 2018,

|
|
| The following are the major impact areas for the
i Company upon transition;
- Classification and  measurement  of
financial agsets and linancial linbilities
- Measurement of loan losses (expected

i credit losses)
i - Business combination / common control
tritnsactions
- Accounting  for  sccuritization  and |
assigninent '

- Accounting lor loan fees and costs
| - Accounting for cmployee stock oplions
! The migration 1o the new accounting framework
i tind AS) is a complicated process involving
multiple decision points upon transilion. Ind AS
tn1, First Time Adoption prescribes choices and
- exemplions for firsl time application of Ind AS
i principles at the transition date.
We itentified transition dnte accounting s a hey
audit matter becavse of significant degree of
managemenl judgment and application on the
ireats noted above,

Our key audit procedures included:

Design / controls

Assessing  the  design, implementation  and i
operating effectiveness of key intemal controfs

over management’s evaluation of transition date .
choices and exemptions availed in line with the |
principles under Ind AS 101, '

We have also canfirmed the approvals of Audit
Commiltee for the choices and exemptions made
by the Company for compliance /acceptability
under INIJ AS 101.

Substantive tests ’

Evaluated management’s transition daie choives
and excmptions for compliance/acceptubility |
under Ind AS 101,

Understood the methodolopy implemented by
management o give impact on the transition.

Assessed the accuracy of the computations i

Assessed areas of significamt estimates and
management judgment in line with principles

under Ind AS.

Compared the industry practice for wvarious

assumptions used by management in areas such as
[Expected Credit Loss model, classification of

financial instruments, Employee Stock Options. |
elc).
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Key audit matter | How the matter was addressed in our audit

Impairment of loans and advances to customers

Charge: INR in Iakhs 8,997.98 for year ended 31 March 2020
Provision: INR in lakhs 11,759.47 at 31 March 2020

Statements: Loans and advances "

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 21 (o the Financial Statements: Impairment”, “Note 3 to the
Financial Statements: Significant Accounting Policies- use of estimates” and “Note 2F to the Financial

Subjective estimate

Recognition and measurement of impairment of
loans and advances involve significant
management judgement,

Under ind AS 109, Financial Instruments,
allowance for loan losses are determined using
expected credit loss (ECL) model. The
Caompany's impairment allowance is derived from
estimates including the historical default and loss
ratios. Management exercises judgement in
determining the quantum of loss based on a range
of factors.

The most significant areas are:

- Segmentation of loan book

- Determination of exposure at default

- Loan staging criteria

- Calculation of probability of default / Loss
given default

- Consideration of probability weighted
scenarios and forward looking macro-
economic factors

The application of ECL model requires several
data inputs. This increases the risk of
completeness and accuracy of the data that has
been used to create assumptions in the model. In
some cases, data is unavailable and reasonable
alternatives have been applied to allow
calculations to be performed.

Impact of COVID-19

On 11 March 2020, the World Health
Organisation declared the Novel Coronavirus
(COVID-19) outbreak to be a pandemic.

We have identified the impact of, and uncertainty
related to the COVID 19 pandemic as a key
element and consideration for recognition and

Our key audit procedures included:

Design / controls

Evaluation of the appropriateness of the
impairment principles used by management based
on the requirements of Ind AS 109, our business
understanding and industry practice,

Understanding management’s revised processes,
systems and controls implemented in relation to
impairment allowance process, particularly in
view of COVID-19 regulatory package.

Evaluating management’s controls over collation
of relevant information used for determining
estimates for management overlays on account of
COVID-19.

Testing the controls over ‘Governance
Framework’ in line with the RBI guidance,

Assessing the design and implementation of key
internal financial controls over loan impairment
process used to calculate the impairment charge.

Using modelling specialist to test the model
methodology and reasonableness of assumptions
used [(including management overlays)].

Testing of review controls over measurement of
impairment allowances and disclosures in
financial statements.

Substantive tests

+ Assessing the appropriateness of management
rationale for determination of criteria for SICR
considering both: adverse effects of COVID 19
and mitigants in the form of the RBI /
Government financial relief package.
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measurement
advances on account of’

of impairment of loans and

. Short and long term macroeconomic effect on
businesses in the country and globally and it
cansequential  first order and cascading
negative impact on revenue and employment
generslion opportunilies:

- impaet of the pandemic on the Company's
customers and their ability 10 repay dues: and

. application of regulatory package announced
by the Reserve Bank of Indin (RBI) on asset
¢lassification and provisioning.

Management  has  conducted a  qualitative
assessment of significant increase in credit risk
(SICR) of the loan portfolic with respect to the
moratorium benefit to borrowers preseribed by the
RRI and considered updated macrocconomic

. scennrins and the use of management overlays to

' reflect potential impact of COVID-19 on expecled

" eredit tosses on its loan portfolio.

Assessing the appropriateness of changes made
in macroeconomic factors and mnnagement
overlays o calibrate the risks that are not vet
Tully caplured by the existing model.

Corroborate through independent ¢heck and
enquiries the reasonnbleness of management’s

assessment of grading of severity of impact of

COVID-19 on segments of its loan portfolio and
the resultant impairment provision computed.

Focus on appropriate application of accounting

principles. validating completeness and accurncy |

of the data and reasonableness of assumptions
used in the model.

Test of details over of calculation of impairment
allowance for assessing the completeness.
aceuracy and relevance of dota.
Model calculations tesling  through  re-
performance where possible.

The appropriateness of management’s judpmenls
was also independently reconsidered in respuect

of calculation methodologies, segmentation, |

economic faclors, the period ol historical loss
rates used and the valuation ol recovery assets
and eollateral.

Assessing  the  factual  accuravy  and
appropriateness of the additional financial
statements disclosures made by the Company
regarding impact of COVID-19.

-
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[ Key audit matter

| How the matter was nddressed in our audit

" Information technology

-

IT systems and controls

The Company's key financial accounting and
reporting processes are highly dependent on the
automated controls in information systemns, such
| that there exists a risk that gaps in the I'T control
| environment could result in the financial

accounting and reporting records being materially
: misstated, The Company uses un IT application
for managing its loan transnetions which is key for
its overall financial reporting.

| Further, the prevailing COVID-19 situation, has
caused the required 1T applications to be made
accessible on a remote basis.

We have identified cInformation Technolopy

systems” as key audit matter beeause of the high
i level automation, significant number of systems

being used by the management, the complexity of

the IT architecture and the risks associated with
i remote access of key applications by a large
, Pupulation of staff at the year end.

We involved our IT Specialist to:

Understand General 1T Control (GITC) i.e.
Access Controls, Program/ System  Change.
Pragram Development, Computer Operations (i.c. |
Job Processing, Data/System Backup incident .
Management) over key fAnancial accouating and
reporting systems, and supporting control systemis
{referred to as in-scope systems);

|
|

Test the General IT Controls (or design nmi'
operating effectiveness for the audit period over !
the in-scope systems; I

Understand 1T application controls covering-

o user access and roles, segregalion of duties, |

and

o Key interfaces, reporis, reconciliations and
system processing.

]
|
Test the IT application controls for design aml
operating effectiveness for the audil period:
Test the conirols to delermine whether these |
controls remained unchanged during the audit
period ar were changed loliowing the standasd
change manzgement process; |
!
Understand [T infrastructure  ie.  operating |
sysiems and databascs supporting the in-scope

systenis;

Test the controls over the T infrastructure
covering user access (including privilege users). |

1
datn center and system change {e.g. patches) and |

Enquiry on data security controls in the contex! of |
a large population of staff working from remore
location at the year end.
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Other Information

the Company *s management and Board of Direclors are responsible for the ather information. The other
infonnation comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
financial statements and our guditors” report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial siatements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form ol assurance eonclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements. our responsibility is to read the other information
and. in.doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financinl
statements or our knowledge obinined in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. IF. bused
on the work we have performed. we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information.
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financinl Statements

The Company s Managentent and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 1333
of the Act with respect to the preparztion of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of afYairs, profit and other comprehensive income. changes in equity and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards ({Ind AS) specilied under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenanc.
of adequate aceounting records in accardance with the provisions of the Act for safeguardimg of the
assels of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable anc:
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls thal were
aperating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, refevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are sesponsible for assessing
the Company s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable. matters related to going
concern and using (he going concer basis of accounting unless the Board of Dircetors cither intends t»
liguidate the Company or lo cease operations, or has no realistic alternative bul to do so.

I'te Board of Dircetors is also responsible for oversceing the Company s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our abjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a wlole are free
from material misstatement, swhether due to fraud or error, and 1o issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guaranice that an audit conducted
m accordanee with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatemenis car arise
trom fraud or error and are considered materinl if, individually or in the aggregale, they could reasonahly
be expeeted to influence the econamic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audil in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
shepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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o Identify and assess the risks of materinl misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a matcrial
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for ane resulting from errar, as fraud may involve
collysion. lorgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumsiances. Under seclion 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financinl statements in place and the operating effecliveness of such controls.

« Fvaluate the appropristeness of accounting policies used and the rensonableness of accounting estimates
and reluted disclosures in the financial statements made by the Management and Board of Directors.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
reluted to events or conditions thal may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financinl statements or, if such disclosures are
madequnte, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audil evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s reporl. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company o ¢ease to
continue as o going cancer. '

o Evaluale the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial stalements, including the
disclosurgs, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fiir presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governanee regarding, among other matters, the plunned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our andit.

We also provide those charged with governance with & statement that we have complicd swith relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safepuards.

From the matters communicated with those chuarged with governance, we determine those matiers that were
of most signilicance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audil matters. We describe hese matters in our auditors® report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances. we deternmine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Other Matter

!he comparative financial information of the Company for the iransition date opening balance sheet as
at 01 April 2018 included in these Ind AS financial statements, are based on the previously issued stalutory
financial statements prepared in secordance with the Companics (Accounting Standards) Rules. 2006
audited by the predecessor auditor whose report for the year ended 31 March 2018 dated 03 May 2018
expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial siatements, as adjusted for the differences m the
accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS, which have been audited by us.

{ur apinion is not modified in respect of above matter.

Report an Other Legal sind Regulatory Requirements

. As required by the Companies (Auditors” Report) Order, 2016 {“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A™ a slatement on the
inatters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 10 the extent applicable.

a)

b}

2. (A)As required by Section 143(3) of the Acl. we report thot:

We have sought and obtaincd all the information and explanations which to the best ol aur
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Compiny so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The baiance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income). the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash tlows dealt with by this Repen are s
agreement with the books of account

ki our opinion, the afuresaid tinancial statements comply with the Ind AS specilied under section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the writien representations reccived from the directors as an 31 March 2020 taken
on record by the Board of Direetors, none of the directors is disqualificd as on 31 March 2000
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer o our separate
Report in “Annexure B™,

(13} With respect to the ather matters to be included in the Auditors” Report in accardance with Rule

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in vur opinion and 16 the best of our
information and according 10 the explanations given lo us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2020 on as
financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note 39 1o the financial staterments;
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1. The Company has made provision. as regnired under the applicable faw or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, il any, on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts- Refer ote 39 to the linancial statements;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required 10 be transferred, to the Investor
Fducation and Prolection Fund by the Company.

wv. The disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in specified
bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 1o 30 December 2016 have not heen
made in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year ended
31 March 2020.

(C) With respect 1o the malier 10 be included in the Auditars” Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the remuneration
paid by the company 1o its direciors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of
Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any direcior is not in excess of the limit laid down
under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate AlTairs has not prescribed other delails
wunder Section 197(16) which are required to he commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Cu. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Finn's Registration No. 101 248W/AWV- 106022

(*{f[/, -

Ashwin Suvaena

Puriner
Place: Mumbai {(Membership No. 1009303}
Date: 16 June 2020 UDIN: 20109503AAAAATIRST
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Ess Kay Fincorp Limited
Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on financial
statements of Ess I{ay Fincorp Limited

()

{ii)

(iif)

fiv}

)

{vid

i

. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

b. Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no
malerial discrepancies were identified on such verification.

c. According to the infonpation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties
included in property. plant and equipment are held in the name of the Company.

The Company is in the business of providing services and does not have any physical inventories.
Accordingly. the provision of clause 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Accerding to the information and explanations given to us. the Company has not granted any loans.
secured or unsecured 1o companics, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in
the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act™). Accordingly. the
provision of clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable 1o the Company.

1n our optniun and according to the infonmation and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans. made investments or provided guarantees under section 185 of the Act and has
complied with the provisions of section 186(1) of the Act. The Company being a NBFC. nothing
contained in Section 186 is applicable. except subscction (1) of that Scction.

The Company has not accepted any deposits fram the public within the meaning of the directives
issticd by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Section 73 to Seclion 76 of the AcL or
any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under apply.

The Central Government has nol preseribed the maintenance of cost records under sub seclion (1)
of section 148 of the Act for any of the services rendered by the Company. Accordingly, the
provision of clause 3{vi) of the Order is not applicable.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutary dues including provident fund, employees™ state insurance, income-tax.
gouds and services 1ox. cess and other material statutory dues have generally been regulasly
deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us the Company did
not have any dues on account of sales lax, duly of customs or duty of excise,

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident (und. employces® slate insurance, income tax, goods and services tax, cess
and other material stwutory dues were narmears as a1 31 Morch 2020 for a period of more than
six munths from the date they became payable.




B SR &Co. LLP

Ess Kay Fincorp Limited

Annextre A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on financial
statements of Ess Kay Fincorp Limited (Continued)

b} According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of income
1ax. services tax, value ndded 1ax or goods and service tax whicl have not been deposiled an
account of dispute except as given below:

INumc of the | Nature of dues Amount Period to | Forum  where  dispute  is
stutute ([s.)* which the | pending

wmount

relates

|Financc Act, | Service tax liability 52974061 | AY 2014- | Custom, Excise, Income Tax

19494 2016 Appellate Tribunal
i Finance Act. | Service tax liability 41,643,303 | AY 2016- § Custom, Excise. Income Tan
1994 2018 Appellate Tribunal
{ income  Tax | Income Tax Liability - ; 1,56.431 AY 2017- | Commissioner of Income-tax \
¢ Act, 1961 TDS Credit disallowed 20138 {Appeals) |

—_—

*These amounts are net of amount paidiadjusted under prolest Rs. 5,110,875,

{viin

{in)

{x)

{xi)

t(xii)

{xiii}

In our opinion and according ta the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
detisulied in the repayment ol loans or borrowings to financial institutions, banks or debenture
kolders. The Company did not have any outslanding leans or borrowings from Government during
the year.

In our opinion and according 1o the information and explanations given 1o us, the lerm lozns taken
by the Company have been applied for the purpose for which they were rised. The Company has
not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public olier during the year.

To the best of our knowledge and according o the information and explanations given to us; no
material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employces has been noticed
or reported during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations give to us and based on aur
cxamination of the records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial
remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion. the Company is not a
nidhi company as prescribed under Section 406 of the Act. Accordingly, the provision of clause
3(xii) of the Order ts not applicable to the Company,

According to the information and explunations piven to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, all the wansactions with the related parties are in complianee with
section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details of such transactions have been
disclased in the financial statement, as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standard,

3 oy H’i_f\'x"‘ _
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Ess Kay Fincorp Limited
Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on financial
statements of Ess Kay Fincorp Limited (Continued)

{xiv)

{xv)

{xvi)

Place: Mumbai

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records ot the Company, the Company has complied with the provision of Section 42 of the Actin
respect of the preferential allotnent of equity shares during the year. According 1o the information
and explanation given 10 us. we report that the amount raiscd, have been used for the purpose of
which funds were mised. As explained. the Company has not made any fully or parily convertible
debentures during the year.

According 1o the informalion and explanations given o us and based on our examination of the
records, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him and hence the provision of Section 192 of the Act is not applicable,

The Company is required 10 be registered under Section 43-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act.
1934 and it has obtained certificate of registration dated [6 (Jctober 1998.

For BS R & Co. LLP
Chariered Accountmng
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

Ashwin Suvarna
Partner
Membership No: 109503

Date: 16 June 2020 UDIN: 20109503AAAAATTES7
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Anncxure B to the Independent Auditor’s report on the financisl statements of Ess Kay Fincorp
Limited for the year ended 31 Marel: 2020,

Report on the internal financinl controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-scction 3 of Section 143 ol the Compunics Act, 2013

(Referred to Jn paragraph (1) under *Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements® section
of our repurt ol even dote)

Opinion .

We have audited the internal Bnanciul controls with reference to financial statements ol Ess Kay Fincorp
Limited ("the Company™) as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of

the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our apinion, e Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
1o financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating cffeetively as ar 31 March 2020,
based on the internal financial contrals with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financiul Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India ¢the “Guidance Note™).

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Emphasis of Matter parngmph of our report to the financial statements, the extent to
which the COVID-19 pandemic will have impact on the Company's intemal financial controls with
retenence 1o financiak statemnents is dependent on future developients, which are highly uncertain.

Our opinton is nol modified in respect of the above matier.
Management's Responsibility for Internal Financinl Conirols

The Company*s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criterin established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
inteenal financial controls that were operating cffectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business. including adherence to company’s policies, the salfepguarding of its assets, the prevention nnd
detection of fravds und errors. the accuracy and completeness of the nccounting records, und the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafier
referred Lo as “the Acl™),

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial stitentents based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accerdance with the Guidance Note and
the Stundards on Audiling, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, 1o the extent applicuble to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requinements and plan and perform the audit to oblain reasonable
assurange about whether adequate internal finaneinl controls with reference to financial stalements Were
established and mointaincd and whethier such controls operated effectively in all materinl respects,
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Our audit involves perfarming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
finanginl controls with reference o linancial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of
imernal Hnanein controls with reference to financiul statements included obtaining un undersianding of
such interanal financial controls, assessing the risk thata material weakness exists. and lesting and evaluating
the design and operaling effectiveness ol internal control based an the assessed risk. The procedures
sclected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessmet of the risks of material misstatcment
of the financial statements, whether due 1o fraud or error.

We belicve that the audit evidenee we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Mueaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financtal Statemeats

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed w
provide reasunable assurance regarding the relisbility of finangial reporting and the preparation of tinancial
statements Tor external purposes in aceordance with gencrally aceepted accounting principles. A company's
internal linancial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reficet the
irnsactions and  dispositions of the assets of the company: (2} provide reasonable assurance that
trmsactions are recorded as necessary 1o peril preparation of financial statements in accordance with
penerally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are beiny made
oaly in aecordance with authurisations of management and direclors of the company: and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unuuthorised acquisition. use. or
disposition of the company’s assels that could have a material eflect on the financial statements.

taherent Limitations of Intersal Financial controls with Reference o Financial Statements

Beciuse of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
ineluding the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due 10 error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
finaneinl contrals with reference 1o finangial statements te luture periods are subject to the risk that the
wernal finaneial controls with reference to tinancial statements misy become inadequale because of
changes in canditions. or that the degree of compliance with the palicies or procedures may deterivrate.

For BS IR & Co. LLY
Chariered Accountants
Firnv's Registration No. 101248 W/W-100022

Aslhiwin Suvarna

Parimer
Place: Mumbai (Membership No. 109503)
Date: 16 June 2020 UDIN: 20109503AAAAATI357
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Charterod Accountants

5th Floor, Lodgha Excelus. Talophone +91 |22] 4345 5300
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N, M. Joshi Marg.Mahalaxmi

Mumbai - 300 011
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Aunditors' Additional Report
To the Board of Directors of

Ess Kay Fincorp Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

In addition to the report made under section 143 of the Companics Act, 2013 (*the Act’) on the
financial statements of Ess Kay Fincorp Limited {*the Company’) for the year ended 31 March
2020 and as required by Master Direction on Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditur’s
Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 vide Master Direclion DNBS. PPD.03/66.15.001/2016-
17 dated 29 September 2016 (the *Direction’), we report as follows on tive matters specified in
paragraph 3 and 4 of the said Directions 1o the extent applicable.

Management'’s Responsibility for the financiol statements

rd

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs, profitfloss and other compreliensive income, changes in
equity and eash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indinn Accounting Standards (Ind AS) speeified under section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenanee of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguwitrding of the ssscts of the Compuny
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies: making judgments and estimates that are reasonuble and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate  internal  financial
controls that were operating cffectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records. relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The Company’s management is responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with the
requitements of the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically
Important Non-Deposit (aking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank)
Dircctions, 2016 (the ‘Master Direction'). This responsibility includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the compliance with the Master
Directions.

Aaiitor's Responsibility

ER

:’/ with LLP Biogistraton 56, AAL1011 14, 1L Joctw Wary, M
‘\\’u.,-./}-} with affect from October 16, 2012 Moreha - 00 0y xka

Pursuant 1o the requirements of the Directions, it is our responsibility o provide reasonable
assuranee on whether the Company has complied with the matters specified in the Directions w
the extent applicable to the Company.

We conducted our examination in accordance with the “Guidance Note on Reparts or
Certifientes issued for Special Purposes (Revised 2016)° issued by the Instilute of Chartered
Accountants of India. The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements
of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institue of Chartered Accountants of India.
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6. We have complied witl the relevant applicable requirentents of the Standard on Quality Control
(SQC) 1. *Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial
Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engogements,’

Conclusion

7

Based on our examination of the financial siatements as at and for the vear ended
31 March 2020, books ol accounts and records of the Company as produced for our examination
and accarding to the information and explanations given to us we further report that.

-

The Company is engaged in the business of non-banking financial institution and it has
obtained a certificate of registration from Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI") under registration no.
B-10.00080 dated 16 October 1998. Subscquent to name change of the Company to Ess Koy
Fincorp Limited, the Company received a fresh registration no. B-10.00080 dated 26 Oclober
2016, granting the Company permission to carry en the business of non-banking finaneial
institution;

The Company is entitled to continue to hold such certificate of registration in tenms of it
asset/ income pattern s on/ for the year ended 31 March 2020;

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given io
us. the Company is meeting the required net owned fund requirement as laid down in the
Master Direction.

The Board of Directors of the Company has pussed a resolution in its meeting held on 22 Apnil
2020 for non-acceptance of public deposits during the year ended 31 March 2020.

The Company has not aceepted any public deposits during year ended 31 March 2020,

With effect from | Apri! 2018, as per the roadmap issted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
for Non-Banking Finunce Companies vide notification n0.G.S.R 365(E} dated 30 March 2016.
for financial reporting purposes, the Company has followed the Accounting Standards issued
by the ICAI specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013, read with Rule 3 of the
Companics (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 (Ind AS). In our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given 10 us, the Company has complied
with the income recognition, accaunting standards. asset classification and provisioning for
bad and doubtlul debis as per Ind AS in the preparation of the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2020;

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explinations given
us. the Company being 8 Systemically Imporant Non-deposit toking NBFC as defined
paragraph 3 (xxxi) of the Master Direction. for the year ended 31 March 2020:

a) the capital adequacy ratio as disclosed in the Note 1.1 of the financial statements For
the year ended 31 March 2020 has been correctly arrived at and such ratio is
compliance with minimum capital to risk asset ratia ("CRAR’) prescribed by RBI
Furthier, as informed 10 us. the Company is yet to file the annual return with RBI in the
form NBS -7 as at 31 Maech 2020; and

b} the Company has fumished to RBI, the provisional annual statement of capital funds.
risk assels/exposures and risk asset ratio (*form NBS-7°) for the year ended 31 March
2020 on 27 April 2020 within the stipulated period.
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viit. Based on the criteria set forth by RBI in paragraph 3 (xix) of the Master Direction for
classification of N BECs as NBFC -~ Micro Finance Institution (*NBFC-MFI"), the Company
does not meet / meets the criteria to be classified as NBFC-MFI as defined in the aforesaid
Master Direction, with reference to the business carried on by it during the year enced

31 March 2020.

Rustrictions of uye

8 ‘This Report is addressed to and provided to the Board of Directors solely to comply with the
aforesaid Direction and for submission to RBI. if required and may not be suitable for any other
purpose. Accordingly, our Report should not be quoted or referred to in any other document o
made available to any other person or persons withoul our prior written conseat. Also, we neither
accept 1or assume any duty or liability for any other purpose or to any other party to whom our
Reporl is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 101248WV-1 00022

Ashwin Suvarna

Purtner
Place: Mumbai (Membership N o. 109503)
Date: 16 June 2020 UDIN: 20109503AAAAASSTRY




{:ss Koy Fincorp Limited

Halanve Sheet
wsar Aanct 31, 2020

LAamosen i Ry a lakling

) A1 ar Asar Arml
Vartiralars NoteNG gprch$1 20 March3LINY  Aprik 120K
WSNETS
binanciak aveets
Cach aml vash eyguis aleiu 4 b,130.85% TARG N KRl os
Hanly bularwe ctfi 1lian el gl waads eqans atoms . 310400 T FE ] 0t xn
Huecensaldes
1 nher wepenahblen I‘n 0.30 2068 nm
[ ki sankng eNT e 10712731
hngaments 3 1IR30 1,504 ot LR
Thhiey finangial 2ascis v dASLIn 141021 6%7.19
Twlal Guuncinl avets pILE NS 4T 113586017
Seti+financind afaets
Crzeciu 13y asscis{Ne) 93.0% M in
Drefeisd (2 #35¢18 {Netd M Lann 8042 T80
Propery plant sind gt 10 4.150,1% s oy
L Jpal wark - ORIV 11 LI 6\ 9 Bt
Tt aasete anden Jesglopmeen 7 ELAu - -
A nben antangihide aszers [A] ANAX 941 nm
il paednanceal Ry 1 411K Jatul M4 T
I':ual Autefnnneinl daels 707164 4.41).7h JARLAL
IR I MQ'} 119.075.46 Hé Al
EoaBILITIES AN EQUITY

[RRYLTRTRLS ]

Foanrial hiabitities

Bernainga linaaceal insTrsnenls LH LIRS 40 AT Ay
Papables

trade pnables
td tkal padanding duet of ancro entcqmizes and small enteiprics -

ook 1owad wnataimdingg dows oF rcid o adlet 1H3D a0ETD clpeipiises ain) . . -
il gulgayA e

e weconmen 16 126a s 7147203 1VARS MY
Nloreo sges CRINy Lhan Jila secumies) 1? 1355717 RSN K2 BLADY 11
Silwstilinaied hatuliigs [} 3 4047112 1845 119263
LAl tmangal lanlings 1] 110047 7.60%.07 501200
Fraul fingncsal Balsililics 263379467 T61.916.63 LI Th
Soefimaneial iabilitio

Canvern eas hatebires (Neth Jnl.cx G613 LA
Fros vz o 003 ST5 A8 5%
Beicracd 1ay habnhoes ANg1} 3 . - .
1wt pwirlinamgial fabhilies H pEVRE] Lin i A3
Tutal supsfinancint liabitistes 119158 714,32 711,18
EQUIY

I'quns tlare capiad b xd ). 40 32 LL{ A
Ol equty n LYATUEN $5.474.13 1a0my 65
Eiglal o ATRT1IS 633145 Jutou dn
Dol liatititics wk cypuity ISLE4) 99 HIITE 40 116122 M
Sigrafy ¥ pol 1.3

The #evasneonying thites fonn 20 adegral gt of the fimanoal flatanents

e 1 o nepiut wF gven g aliagleel

ler st & Co LLE Tee mrd an dwlialf af the Baard of Prevgross of
1 fmarrereid Tagosadsenis Lg Kay Yingwrp limmnnd

Loy’ Regraraman Noo JUTT IEWAY. 100022

‘;X’{,f T K-:-, N S ]z

pbwin Sunaena Hajrodda huncr Setka wipliol Mo
Parstirer fAkzantpiinr Marca sor) tHinsds Frase dure, oo
H™ Ak Manlsrdnp S (D950 FUN - (iwsTirs NN - 02nd

Mave  Mmnba Aol Arwra Avagha Battkor
Dare 16 hime 2070 A lown il €01 ey i Koy AN

Mace . Janur
Dare . 16-2ane- 2010

e

s
't
o




Zss Kay Fincorp Limited

Statement of Profit and Luss
for the vear eaded Marvh 18 2020

Ao 1 Kx o iakhsy

Pariigulars

Revenwe fran operalion

Ineredt Mmooy

Fees and commutfign inemne

Net it ou [air salue changes
Hr  Total revenue Trom gpersliens

{11} THhcr income
11y Tatalincome ([+11)

Eapoascs
Finance eosts
Net 1033 oo Far value chinges
Igraseent un lindieial sstiainenis
Tanplnyee benelirexpenses
Depreciation and anigruzalion
Chbwr eapenscs

11y} lolal exprenses

V1 I'rofin before tas (HL-EY)

1V} lasevpense
11 Curment tan
12 Defenal tas
Talnd iy erpense

NI Penbt Tar dhe year (V<V}

VN Other comprchensive dncenie £ [eapenamd
fiens 1 wall nar be eeclassificd 1o probit or 1pss
« emeasyements of the delined benefie plans
Nuli-daizl
Tnewime 1a% relanng 10 e that will ned be reclassifiead 1o mofivof fpss

her comprehenslye Incomedferjicnes)

tix] Votal comprehensive Income for dhe year (VI+Y I (comprising
prefn amd viber contprelienslve Incamef{eapenseal for the year)

(N haraings per equlty share
Hawe (K5 )
Diluted (B3

Saprufieant ageounbing policics

10¢ acommpanyIng 1otes losm an otegal pan of tw G
As et un sgpuat uf oven Jate ataghed

Fod (18 K& Ca. LI
€ nirterad dycauaniuors
Furn Repitirstion Mo EOE2EWAW- 10UTY

cﬁf/[; T

Aalivon Sivarna
Faerteet
CCAL Mymbership Moo L0250

Place - Muimtas
Dawe 10 June 1020

. )J ST

Far Llig year cuilfed For the yoar cadod

Note No. March 3, 20120 Atarch 31, 20114
n S1LEELS0 36808 02
r 195182 sk 14
:o 75294 .

T7.248.96 XIS
» 9L 4330
SR 25017 1%.0%0.19
— ——
m 23.248.48 1433703
0 . 00l
10 B.9%1u 307 50
3 b{OE T I T30t
” 175 s 35
n 1.054.83 1480 27
4160001 X9 0KX 30
10.650.47 i
b4
JAnn 158
£1,172.83) T
269040 FITITY]
T.8583.67 [BEYA ]
»
0] 130433
qa {3naly
(oY) % X0
st (2L57)
T.H%59,67 rIAT
i
Jon nw
Mo M2
1

Far und on Bebalf of the Iloard of Rireeters of
Eas Kay Fincarps Lmited

74 R

Shatinl Netia
fIF 0ty Tome d Dovcteay
PR 2] A

Hajeiflrn kimar Seha
FAkiynine Larvediis)
DIN « (e STI7e

Anapha Bhpur
L sy dpn i)

Atul Arera
8 heek Famacaud Officer?

Plage  Jazpur




ss Khy Fincorp Limited

Stutement of Cash Flaw
For e whir ended Maecly 31, 2000

[
1 Ansunt fn Rz in fabhs)

Fartireiars

Cash Oing feom aperating acliviiles

Profithefore 1ax
Adjustmegnts for

1Pruties heos an il of fued asset

Fimmce ¢t incurred
1atere o accied

Imipaet oaf derecognition of loang sold usdee Jduoet assipament fransaction
v ipainf boss on FYTPL investzneins and demsatnes
Tegmermxcg an finaticsal swstiinents

Employed share based payancht expxnscs

[epreceajon awd amastzalion

Uperwiing canh Aan before working capital changes

A jusiments for working ¢apltal changes:

cerease bn wrade recenables
Ingreass 1 foins

Ihxrene Inerzase) 1n other Enznciad nsseis

Incrcase s itier nem-financial assets

Incrouse (Hecicase 1 in otlicr Ananaal ablimes

ICTEAse 1) proriuany

femivase i other noselinzncial latalnes

Frame it pud
infrzest ifjoatee roorived

Cmah gerteraded from operatlons
Dhees s Gayes poid cnet ol reluds)

Nt cavh vl in operatlng aetivitles (A)

st Mow [rom knsesting golivitles

Fuiglune | prog
I

+ prand and equip

s and other i

i)

). aptal work n prog

1
Brevdedds Fiot tate of peoperty plam and compinent

angstimehr i Frued depxossry

Frareds o radeng of finved deyp

un B Pl g suients

" ! me femg ol
el cand ased i fmesting netivitics (13}

Cah I'Inv; from financing activities

Irserals frinn avuse of shares and securitics premnem
Dieln segilnbies nsied
kel vearibies eepaid
Iorowings other than debt secuntics taken

Aot cavh peneraind from financing activilles (€}

Il.momnt: other than debt secunihies eepand

Net incaedawe |udectease) in cash and cash equinalenis (A+B+C)

Add cash and cash en

ingof the yexr

vl prsljeasds exqunalents as a1 1he end of the yeyr=

*Coenporionts of cash and cash cqumvalent
Malances pauth banis
Fonedd clejpadls an hand
Lashi oo lamd

Y

WL

| i
& !

assgly

For the xear enied For 1he year endcd
XMarch 31, 2020 March M, 2019
10,550,487 AL
iy 34
21.821.69 LI L ER
152.03.53) 132,908 2ny
{13721 o] Jiek ot
175194 mal
3.997.9% £ An
178.63 824}
A5 01 M
{11.504.74) (3.343.01}
pALI e
{t0%.346.15) 173 M 03
626,18 (212300
(69.67) + 18293,
(#0540 XL LR
149,20 18w In
1044 116 52
12402244 19425 A%y
SH.1KL26 v 3w e
(R A89.97) {61204
{3.4:30.55) 2 8614y
(1oe 119050 (6413065
(L1644} e AN
4.4 LAl
(E3,022.010) 1K Flaeen,
15418 UK T
i.110.6m NNTLILTN
PLISS 08 4
(24.598.21) (20,610 243
13,500,010 Tt -
'Jﬂ.lsn.oﬂ [L1X) 4 [X0 1]
(35.316.66} RERLAYRES
$7,130.0] 3887 Gl
(40,1200} Lt b Ky
125,559.20 TLALEL
(116944} a%id
T.406,29 8o us
£,310.95 7,400 19
S, 13508 ISR
LIP3 o in
62,68 i Ax
[R]85 2 i 2




' 7[;20 -9
BSR & Co. LLP 701

Chartered Accountants
Eth Floor, Lodha Excelus, Telephono +91 {22} 4345 K300
Apollo Mills Compound Fax +91 {22} 4345 5399
N, M. Joshi Marg, Mahalaxmt
Mumbai - 400 D11
India

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
Ess Kay Fincorp Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial stalements of Ess Kay Fincorp Limited {“the Company™), which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2019, the statement of profit and loss. and cash flow
stalement for the year then ended, nnd notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
the significant accounting palicies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 1o us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act™) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity will: the accounting principles
generally accepled in India, of the stale of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2019, and profit
and its cash Mows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Aunditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auwditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Charfered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to aur audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other cthical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sulficicnt and appropriate to provide a basis for

our opinion.

Emphasis of matter

We draw atiention to Note 43 to the financial statements, which describes regrouping /
reclassification of cernain items reported in the financial statemments for the year ended 31 March
20138 10 confirm to current year's classilication,

Our opinion is not modified in respeel of these matter.,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matiers thal, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, und
we de not prowdc a scparatc opinion on these matters.
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BSR&Co.LLP

Independent Auditors® Report (Continueid)

Ess Kay Fincorp Limited

Key Audit Matters (Continned)
Deseription of Key Audit Matters:

Key Audit Matter

| How the maiter was adidressed in our audit

Gross NPAs: INR 585,959,322 at 3t March 2019

Charge: INR 65,529,197 for year ended 31 dlarch 2019
Closing Provisions on NPAs: INR 147,051,195 at 31 March 2019

[dentification af Non Performing Assets (NIPA) and adequacy of provisions

Refer to the accounting policies in the Financial Statements: Significant Aecounting Policies, 2.2 = Use of Estimates,
2 23 — provisioning on receivables from financing activiy™, “Notw 17 to the Financial Statowenir: Loans and
advances " amd “Note: 7 1o the financial statement: Long-term amd shorl-term provisions ™

Significant aren of estimate and judgment combined
with autamated and manual processes to identifly
MPAs

Identification of NPPA's is undertaken in sccordance
with the Prudentia] Norms on Income Recognition,
Asset Classification & Provisioning. Provisfons in
respeet of non-performing advances fprovisioning on
loans and advances) are made based on management’s
assessmen of the degree of impaimmeni of the sdvances
subjeet 1o the minimwn provisioning levels preserihed
under the RBI guidelines with regard to the Prudential
Narms an Ineome Recognition, Assel Classification &
Provisioning, preseribed from time ta time as applicable
to NBFCs and as per polices cpproved by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

We have identified NPA {demtification and provision as
a key audit matter beeause -
1) It is an aren which involves significant
management judgement;

21 The Company uses a combination of
automated and manual processes to identily
overdue status and tagging of NP'As; and

3} Availability end voluntion of collnteral is on
imponant clement in determining the extent
of provisions required. Provisions are also
depcnent on having n clear unencumbered
title on the collateral and an estimate of
colfateral value,

Qur key audit procedures incluildel:

Design / controls

«  Assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls  over
monitesing process of recoverability of loans, timely
Identification of NPA accounts, mcasurcment of
collateral value, nssessment and quantifiestion of

provisions and nsscssing the relinbility of
managetnent  infarmation,  including  overduc
reports.

+  Testing of monogenicnt’s controls over application
of Company*s NPA provision policy and presenting
appropeiate disclosures in financial statements.

*  Through involvement of information system
specinlists  pain  assurance  ond  evidence  of
management controls aver data imegrity, sulomated
computations and inter-sysiem reconcilialions.

Substantlve tests

= Testof details over of exlculatian of NPA provisions
as at 31 March 2019 for assessing the completeness,
accuracy and relevance ofdata and Lo ensure that the
saing is in complinnoe with the REBI guidelines with
regard 10 the Prudentinl Nomms on Income
ftccagnition. Asset Classification & Provisioning.

+«  Test of delils over appropriate opplication of
aecounting principles and velidating completeness
and aceuracy of the data used in the idenliffcation of
NPA’s aml measurement of provision amounts,

*  Test of denils over assessing extermal collneral
saluer's  credentinfs  and  comparing  external
saluations to wohwes used in management’s
assessments.

A

2
NGme




B S H&Co. LLP

Independent Auditors’ Report (Coutinued)
Ess Kay Fincorp Limited

Key Audit Matters (Continned)

Description of Key Audit Matters: (Continued)
Key audit prajter | Htow the matter was ndilressed in our audit

Information technology (IT)
IT systems and controls

The Company's key financla)l accowting and | Our gudit procedures o ussess the T system access
reporling processes are highly dependent on the | management included the following:

automaicd contrals, such that thene exists o risk that
£3ps In the IT cantrol environment could result in & General IT controls / user xceess management
the finunciel nccoenting and reporting records being
materially misstated. The Company primarily uses § o Wy tested n sample of key controls operating over the

three systems for its linancin] reporting. information technuology In relutfon to financial accounting

and reporting systems, including sysiem access and system
We have focused on user access anagenient. change management, program development and computer
change management. segregation of dutics, system operations.

recancilistion controls and  system  application
controls over key financial accounting and reporting | . e esied the design and operating cffectiveness of key
systems. conlrols over user access mtanagement which includes
gronting aceess Aght, new user creation, removal of user
rghts and preveniative controls designed | to enforce
segregation of dutics.

+  For a seleeted group of key controls over financial add
reparting system, we Independently performed procedures
fo determine that these controls remained unchanped
during the year or were changed following the standard
change managemen! process.

* cvaluating tic design, implementolion ond eperating
effectiveness of the significant accounts-related  IT
automated controls which are relevant to the accurncy of
sysiem calculation, and the consistency of data
transmission.

*  Other arcas that were independently assessed included
password policies, system configurations, system interfiee
conlrols, controls over changes to applications and
datobases and that business users, developers and
production support did pol huve access to change
applications, the operming sysiem or databises in the
preduction environment.

Othier Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Company’s Annual Report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The other information is expecied
to be made available to us after the date of this andlitors® repont.

Qur opinion on the financinl sintements does not cover the other information and we do nol express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Independent Auditors® Report (Continued)
Ess Kay Fincorp Limited

Othier Information (Contined)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is 10 rend the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be malerially misstated. 1f, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 10 report that

facl.

Management's Responsibility for the Fioancial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are respousible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financinl statemcents that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility alse includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act, for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and delecting [rauds and other irregularitics; selection and application
of appropriate accaunting policics; making judgments and estimates that arc reasonable ond
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial conirols
that were operating ellectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness ol the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statemenis that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue ns o going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends 1o liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alierative but to do so.

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors® Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasenable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether duc to fraud or error, and to issuc an auditors” repont
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducied in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when i
exists. Misstatements can arise from fratd or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the cconomic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these Mnancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we cxercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e idemify and assess the risks of material missiatement of the financinl statemems, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 1hose risks, and obtain audil
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinjon. The risk of not
detecting 2 material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from crror.
as frud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of intermal control.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
Ess Kay Fincorp Limited

Auditors’ Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Financial Stxtements (Continued)

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
{inancial controls with reference to financial slatements in place and the operating effectivencss

of such controls’.

» Evaluate the sppropriateness of accounting policics used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

= Conclude on the appropriateness of nnnngement’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtaincd, whether a material uncertainly exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concem, If we conelude that a mnaterial uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditors® report. However, [tture events or conditions may cause the

Company to cease (o continuc s o going concern,

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and centent of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial siatements represent the underlying transactions and
evenls in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencics in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemnanee with a siatement that we have complied with relevant
cthical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged wilh governance, we determine thase matiers
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We deseribe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circuinstances, we
determine that a motter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benelits of such
commuttication.

Other Matter

Altention is drawn to the fact that the comparative figures as reported in the financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2018 were audited, by the predecessor statutory auditor who expressed an
unmodified opinion on those financial information vide their reports dated 8 May 2018.

Our opinion is not modificd in respect of this matter,
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Independent Auditors® Report (Continued)
Ess Kay Fincorp Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors” Report) Order, 2016 {*the Ordes™) issued by the
Central Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “*Annexure A™ a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

n)

{A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought ond obtained al} the infonmation and explanations which 10 the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) 1 our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examinalion of those books.

¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, and statement of casl: flows dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

¢} On the basis of the wrilten represenlations received from the directors as on 3)
Mareh 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualificd as on 31 March 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

P With respect te the adequacy of the intemal financial controls with reference to
financinl statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(BY With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors® Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Campanies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in aur opinion and 1o
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 3] March 2019
on its financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note 31 to the financial
statements;

ii. The Company has made provision. as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for inaterial foreseeable losses, if any, on long-tern contracts
including derivative contracts- Refer Nale 33 to the lnancial statements;

iit. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.,

iv. The disclosures in 1he finnncial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in
specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016
have not been made in these linancial siatements since they do not pertain to the
Mnancial year ended 31 March 2019.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
Ess Kay Fincorp Limited

Report an Qther Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Contined)
{B) With respeet 1o the matter to be included in the Auditors® Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according 1o the information and explanation given to us, during the
current year, the remuncration paid by the Company to its directors is in accordance with
the provisions of Scction 197 of the Act. The remuncration paid to any director is not in
cxcess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. Tiie Ministry of Corporate
Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16} which are required to be

commented upon by us.

ForBS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 101248W/W.100022

Mangj Kumar Yijai
Parmer

Place: Jaipur
Membership No. 046382

Date: 3 May 2019
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on financial
statements of Ess Kay Fincorp Limited

(i #. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of lixed assels.

b. The Company has a regular program of physical verification to cover all the items of
fixed asscts in a phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the
sizc of the Company and the nawure of its asscts. Pursuant to the progeam, certain fixed
assets were physically verilted by the manngement during the year. According 1o the
information and explanation given 1o us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

¢. According to the informalion and explanalions given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of the immovable property
is held In the name of the Company,

(ii) The Company is in the business ol providing services and docs not have any physical
invenories. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(ii) of the Order is nol applicable to the
Company.

(iii}  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not grmnied
any loans, secured or unsecured (0 companies, firms, limited liability parinerships or other
parties covered in the register maintaincd under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly. the
provision of clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

{iv)  According to the information and explanations given to us. the Company has not granted
any loans, made invesiments or provided guarantees under section 185 and 186 of the Act.
Accordingly, the provision of clausc 3{iv) of the Order is not applicable.

{v) According to the information and cxplanations given 1o us, the Company has not accepled
any deposits from the public to which the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and
the provisions ol Section 73 to Scction 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and
the rules framed there under apply.

{vi)  The Central Government has not prescribed the mointenance of cost records under sub
section (1) of scction 148 of the Act for any of the services rendered by the Company.
Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii)  8) According to (he informntion and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examinalion ol records of the Company, amounis deducted / accrucd in the books ol account
in respect of undisputed statutory ducs including provident fund, employces® state insurance,
income-tax, goods and services tax, cess and other matcrial statutory dues have generally
been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authoritics. As explained to
us, the Cempany did not have any dues on account of sales tax, duty of customs, goods and
services tax or duty of excise.

According (o the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respeet of provident fund, employces’ state insuranice, income tax, goods itnd services tax,
cess and ather material statutory dues were in arrears as nt 31 March 2019 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors® Report of even date on financial
statements of Ess Kay Fincorp Limited (Continued)

b} According Lo the information and explanatiens given to us, there are no ducs in respect
of income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, goads and services tax, value added
tax or duty of excise which have not been deposited on account of dispute cxcept as given
below:

J ? 3 } '
Name of the Nature of dues | Amount (Rs.) Period to which the . Forun.1 W hcn‘:
statute amount relates dispute is pending
Finance Act, Service (ax 55,037,596 AY 2014-2016 Custom, Excist,
1994 liability [ncome Tax
Appelate Tribunal
Finance Act, Service tax 44,689,643 AY 2016-2018 Custom, Excise,
1994 linbility Income Tax
Appelate Tribunal
_J

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 10 us, the Company
has not defnulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions, banks,
Government or debenture halders.

(viii)

In our opiinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, term loans
laken by the Company have been applicd for the purpose for which they were raised. The
Company has not raised any moncy by way of initial public offer or further public offer
during the year.

(ix)

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carricd out
in accordance with the generally eccepled auditing practices in India, and according to'the
explanation and information given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our
audit.

(x)

According to the information and explunations give to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for menagerial remuneration
in accordance with Lhe requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read
will Schedule V 1o the Act,

{xi)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not & nidhi company. Accordingly. the provision of elause 3(xii) of the Order is nat
applicable.

(xii)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the rclated parties arc in
compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been
disclosed in the linancial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards,

(i)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has complied with provisions of Section 42 ofthe
Companies Act, 2013 in respeet of the preferential allotment of equity shares during the

(xiv)

Company has not made any fully or parily convertible debentures during the year. S Hive
Aple st
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BSR&Ca LLP

Anncxure A to the Independent Auditors® Report of cven date on
financial statements of Ess Kay Fincorp Limited (Continued)

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
dircctors or persons connected with him and hence the provision of Section 192 of the Act
is not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 and it has oblained certificate of registration dated 16 October 1998,

ForBSR & Co. LLYP
Chuartered Aceownniants
Firm's Registration No: 101248\W/WV-100022

Vanoj Kemav Vijai
Place: Jzipur Partner
3 Moy 2019 Membership No: 046882
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Ess Kay Fincorp Limited

Anncxure - B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the
financial statements of Ess Kay Fincorp Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Scetion 143 of
the Compunies Act, 2013 (the “Act™)

{Referred to in paragraph (I) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements® scetion of our report of even date)

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Ess Kay Fincorp
Limited (the “Company™) as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

According to the information and cxplanations given 10 us and based on our audit, the following
materin! weakness has been identificd as at March 31, 2019:

We noted lack of control relating to timely recording and muaintaining contemporancous
documentary cvidence for cash collections from borrowers towards loan interest / instalments at
year end, which could potentially impact recording of cash collection and conseguently impact
loans balances and related accounts at reporting period.

A *material weakness® is o deficiency, or a combination of deficiencics, in internal financial
control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or
detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the effects/possible effeets of the material weakness deseribed above
on (he achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has maintained
adequate internal (inancial controls over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as of March 31, 2019, based on “the internal
control over financial reporting crileria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issucd by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india”.

We have considered the material weakness identificd and repored above in determining the
nature, timing, and extent of audil tests applied in our audit of the financial statements of the
Company, and the material weakness do not affect our opinion on the financial stalements of the
Company.

Management's responsibility for internal fnancial cantrols

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criterin established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI™). These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls thal were
opcrating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, includin
ndherence to the Company's policies, safeguarding of ils asscls, prevention and detection
frauds and crrors, accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and timely preparat
of reliable financial information, as required under the Act,
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Ess Kay Fincorp Limited

Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the
financial statements of Ess Kay Fincorp Limited (Continued)

Auditor's responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in aceordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing. issucd by the ICA] and preseribed under section 143(10)
of the Act. to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial contraols, both applicable to
an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI, Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the andit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material

respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal linancial controls aver financial reporting, nssessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selceted depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessiment of the risks of material missiatement of the fnancial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s intemal financial controls system over financial

reporting.

Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed 1o provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for cxternal purposes in accordance with generally accepled accounting
principles. A Company's infernal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and proeedures that (1) pertain 1o the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preporation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepled accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and dircclors of the Company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance reparding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financinl statements.




BSR&Co. LLP

Ess Kay Fincorp Limited

Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the
financial statements of Ess Kay Fincorp Limited (Continued)

Inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limbations of internal (inancial controls over financial reporting.
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstalements due to crror or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the intermal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
10 the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of complinnce with the policics or procedures

may detcriorate.

For BSR & Co. LLDP
Chartered Accountants
Fimm’s Registration No: 101248 W/W.100022

Manok Kumar Vijai
Jaipur Purtner
3 May 2019 Membership No: 046882
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Balznco Shoot as at Mareh 31, 2019

{AmountinRs ) |
Nolo As at Asat
Particulars No. Maseh 31, 201D fMarch 34, 2018
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders” funds
{n) Shato copltal 3 4,80,32,258 3,50.01,800
L) Restives 3ad sueplus 4 5,50,58,13.950 2.02.79.10,175
555,18,46.213 2,06,30,08.075
Hon-curran| Kahlilliss
{a) Long-lerm befrowings 5 $.02,81.79.33D 428,515,840
{b) Defemed {x Kab¥ilies {not} i2 - .
e} Cihee long-erm Eabkles 6 31.4045.763 143048378
{8) Long-lerm provisions ? 10.24.80.047 5.94,11321
8,44,27,05.440 $48,09,73,537
Current lablikles
{a) Short-derm bomowings 8 65,04 57288 05,23.07.264
() Trace payables 9
1) da! outstanding dues to micro and small enlorpitses; and . .
11y total outstanding cuas of craditore athar than migro and enrall enlstprises 20.95,82,327 30,37.50.322
() Otheraurent Kateiles 10 4,70,03,18,782 435472220
{d} Shixt-term piovisions 7 16.05,97470 15,52.50.730
5,83,69,45, 867 £,58,80,39.853
TOTAL 10,93,14,98,226 12,21,00,21,145
ASSETS
Nonscurrant asscls
(a) Flxed pssais
{0 Tang'Lls nssols n 17,0376 667 12,20.86.722
{i) Inlang e asscts " 59 ,42.078 27.03.701
{Te) Capital work-n-progress 1 6,29.562 06,85,434
(b} Noa-current rvasimards 15 (3} 480 66,788 4,66.63,708
() Deferrad {ax sssels {nel) 2 82423230 6,23,03.505
{d} Loang-tosm loans and advances 17 .91.72,66,530 6,69,02 84,236
(o) Olber non-current a3sels 13 16.66,10.375 12,931,053
40,39,29,18,017 T7.05,95,22,933
Curort assils
{2) Cwrenlimesinents 150 11.00.00.000 .
{b) Trade recelvablos 14 2.85,143 2384111
{c} Cashand bank batanca L[] 2.77,60,86.660 20375.247
{d) Shortdem loans ond advences 17 0.46,23,65,60% 4.83,81.58943
{2) OCihet oxrent assels 1 1B.40,84.405 20,681,053
,53,85,62,148 5,14,00,£4,222
TOTAL 19,93,14,98, 225 42,21,00,21,165
Significant sccounting policias and noles lo the fnancial slatemania 244

Tha notes rafermed (o above fom on tegral part of tho Knanclal s{atemants.
As por our toport of even dala allached
ot BSRA&COLLP

Chartered Accouniants
Flirmy’ Reglsimbion No: 101240WAN-100022

hianc) Kumar
Pariner »
N. Ho.: 048382

Flace,; Jalpwr 7 .
Dale : Maydd. 2019 (/_ N
) E/\

Fot and on behalf of tho Boora of Directors of

Ees Kay Fincorp Limitod

p\s \rti_[r.

infundrd Kumar Sotld

Manag|

Dicectcr

DIN- 00357374

oy

Wl Arora

Chiel Flnancial Officer

Place . Japur
Oew : May 03, 2019

i
Shalinl Solla

Compeny Scarelary
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ESS [KAY FINCORP L IMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2018

fArmount in Rs. )
Nots | Forthe yoaraended Forthe your endad
Particulars Mo. | March 31,2019 March 31,2018 |
Revenvo kom dperations 19 2.49,34,20,220 2208387225
Other heome 20 15,55.25,688 6.48,92.101
Tolal Rovanue 3,64,97A8,008 2,27,3299,326
Exponsa:
Employee beneli exponsos 24 70.84.45.411 50,02,04,879
Flnancs cosls 22 1.3846,21,714 B0AL08.407
Doproclation and amarfzalion oxpansas 23 3.21,24,475 22362425
Provirions and wike offs 24 20,13,00,049 2156.79.313
Olher expenses 25 47,74,40,628 30,81.01,175
Total oxpentos 2,8944,36,675 1,94,40,84,269
Profil bafore tax 7649,10,333 324245037
Tax Expanses
. Cument tex 2549,07.427 14,10.68,102
b. Deferad Lax, 12 2,00.48.660) {1.00.51.848)
. Taxas tor carlier yeat 1649012 {1,:31.81,530
Total {ax axpense 23,28,08,059 10,97,22,724
Promi fortha yaar 52,23,01,974 21,96,22313
Baslc aamings perequily shara (Face value Ry, 2 cach) g 1832 15,08
Dihded easnings per aqlity thate (Faca vohie Rs. 2 epch) 28 6.2 15.08
Signiicant accountng pelicies and notes 10 the fnanclal slatemants 244
The noles refered 1o above form an Integeal part of the Mnanglat stalaments,
As per our repor of sven date attached
forBSRLCo.LLP For atd on bahalt of (he Board of Oveciors of
Chartered Accounteants Ezx Kay Fincorp Limlted
Fumyy' Regisirallon No: 101248W/W-100022
2. bl
Vilal Ha[ondm Kumar Satls SHallnt Setln
Pamet #anaghyg Dicector Diector
L Ho, : 046382 DIH-0D357IT4 DIMN « 02B17624
s $7v
/4 ("9 P
Alul Arors .-_/
Chiel Financiat Oticer (ﬂ%) J/Jﬁ

Placa: Jalpur Place: Jnkur ?\\ -~

Oats @ May03,2019

Dale : Moy 03, 20109

\\\ . -
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ESS KAY FINCORP LIMITED

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

{Amountin Rs )

s030805ffEr S ¢
40,00,23, f:“m

Particulers Fraret 33, 2018 | | Mistepst. 208
A Cash flow from cperating wetivitias
Profit betore tax 75,49,10,333 32.92.45,037
Adjustmantfor
Interast expentes 1.30,99,28,208 84,78,65.500
inlerest incoms {2,80,45,20,237) {1.65,60.90,335)
Dapraciallen and amoritzation expanses 3.21.24,575 2,33,62.425
Provisiens and write offs 26,18.00.049 21,658,79,313
Loss on sala of fixed assels 94,527 41,110
Proviston for omployco benefits 2,39,89,734 1.62,79,018
Gain on spla of Invostmants {4,18,652) {7,95,505)
Oporating cash Novr belore working capital changes [45.24,91,063) [22,32,21,672)
AdJustmont for working capital changes
{Incrense)  docraase ba rade receivablas 21,18.968 1,85.40,400
(Increase) I decrease in shorklarm kans ond sdvances {2,02,94,67,384) {2.12.18,13,038)
{Incraase) / dowieasa in long-tesm loans and advances (3,21,76,11,764) (3.00,31,20,509)
(ncreass) 1 decreasa In other pon-current assets {4,28,79,316) 14745491
{Intreaso) 1 decreaso In olher currenl assels {1.17,22,637) 200548284
Incroase ¢ {decraase) i othar curent Kab&ties {27.41,20,572) 223862496
Incrapsae f {detrensc) in other long-tarm llabiltios 17,09,99,307 8.16,57,019
Increaso / (decranso) in olhor shoti-term provisions 79,71,198 {1.199)
Incrense / (decrense} In olher long-tarm provisions {20,00.683) {16,14,853)|
Imn:r‘:nl;:fn[m:;)‘g’l;am deposits (having original maturity (4.83.14,62,970) (4,34.30,308)
Interast paid {1.07,26,34,751) [81.99,73,600)
Inlereal racelved 2,09.45,88,501 1,61,22,84,473
Cash generatad from operations (5,88,11,52,028) {4,08,82,85,014)
Diroct taxes pakd (nat of refunds} 128,65,12.688} {11.58,67,540)
Kot cash lfow ganeratod fram f {used In} pperzling aciivilns (A) {614,78,64,714) {4,18,41,52,553)
B Cash flew from [nvesting activitles
Pwechazoe ol invastmenis {50,00,00,000) -
Salo of lnvestments 39.04,18.652 11,91,78.946
Puschasao of fived 235015 (7.51.84,344) {5,54,67 435}
Sala of fvad assels 13,862,602 4,70,000
Hot cash (low genaratad from / {uged In) invoaling activitles (B} {18,2,73.100) 6,41,81,511
€ Cashflow from finaneing aclivities )
Procaeds from issua of share capital 1,09.40,256 £0,21.000
Procaeds from share premium 2,85,55,65,812 97.27.52.840
Amount received from issuance of non-convertibls dabanlures 6,00,60,00.000 1.85,060.00.000
Ropaymen of noa-converible dabentures {$,41,54,61,362) {76,21,96,669)
Amounl recelved from long-lerm bormowings 1.05,07.00.000 5054670045 |
Repaymend of long-torm borrowings (1.:441,80,28,572) {3.70,48,95,750)
Shart-term barrowings (nat) {20,18,39.976) 19,25,90.225
Dividond tax pald . {251}
Mat cash flow genorated from/ {usod in) financing activities (C} 6,98,18,86,257 3,84,00,40,140
Net increass { (decrease) In cash and cash equivalent (A+B1C) £5,08,58,443 {30,90,30,8
Add:- Cosh and eash aquivatent at the beginning of the year 9,10,92,940
Cash and cash oguivalant at tha end of he year* 74,275,383 9,18,024
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*Components of cash 2nd cash oquivzlents
fatences with banks S4A888405 12879200
Fixed doposits (having orginal maturity Jess than 3 months} 70,0788 2 AN
Cosh on hond !.02,58.301 7|593M|2‘°
Total 74,27.61383 9,18,02.940
As per out teport of gven dala attachoed
ForBSR&Co.tLP Porand on bohalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartersd Accountanty Ess Kay Fincorp Limited
Fimns' Reglstration Not 101248WAN-100022
U »
27,
Mano] Kurinrljal Rajondra Kumar 8elia Shalinl Sotin
Parngr Maraging Diractor Diractor
M. No. : 046882 DIN-00F5TIT4 DIN - 03817624
M Anagha Bangur
Chiaf Financisl Officec Company Secrotary
Place: Jalpur Flaca: Jaipur

Daly : May 03, 2019

Dals : May03,201%
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To

The Members

Ess kay Fincorp Limited

(Erstwhile Esskay Auto Finance Private Limited)

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ess Kay Fincorp Limited ((Erstwhile
Esskay Auto Finance Private Limited) (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at
March 31, 2018, the statement of profit and loss, cash flow statement for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial
statements, that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules,2016. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent, and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial contrals, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting retords,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion an these financial statements based on our audit.
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and

matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act, Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
diz<losures in the financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financia!
control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
bzsis for our audit opinion on the financial staterments,

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018, and its profit and its
cash-flows for the year ended on that date,

Renort on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order?, as amended, issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the “Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

{-) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

(b)' In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
/’ - -__-"""'\ ..
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=)

{d)

(e)

)

(9)

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this report are in agreement with the books of account,

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 {(as amended) and the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,2016.;

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B".

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the bast
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial position in
its financial statements - Refer note 28 to financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For 5.5. KOTHAREI MEHTA & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Harish Gupta \\ e
Partner e

2T\
Ny

A
3

iMembership No.: 098336
Place: Jaipur

Date; Naﬁ 08;2‘0]6
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“Annexure A" to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure as referred in paragraph (1) ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements of our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of Ess Kay Fincorp Limited
(Erstwhile Esskay Auto Finance Private Limited) on the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2018, we report that:

(a)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b)The Company has a phased programme of physical verification of its fixed assets which in

. our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its

fixed assets. In accordance with this program, certain fixed assets were physically verified by
the Management during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification as compared to the books of accounts.

{c)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, The Company does not hold any immovable
properties. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) (c) of the Order are not applicable.

The company does not have any inventory, Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the
order are not applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanations given te us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has granted unsecured loans to

. the parties covered in the Register maintained under section 189 of the Act.

{b) In our opinion, rate of interest and other terms and condition an which the loan had been
granted to the parties covered in register maintained under section 185 of the Campanies
Act, 2013 were not prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(c) The ioans were repayable on demand. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(jii) (b) &{c)
of the order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company have complied with
the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the loans,
investments made.

According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company
has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the

" Companies {Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 {as amended). Accordingly, the provisions

b

of clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to(ie-ct_impany.
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vii,

viii,

To the best of our Knowledge and as explained, the central Government has not specified
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of
Company's services. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not
applicable.

{a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
examination of the records of the Company, the company has been generally regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
sales-tax, wealth tax, income tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess
and any other material statutory dues with the appropriate authorities to the extent
applicable, though there has been a slight delay in a few cases and further, there are no
undisputed statutory dues payable for a period of more than six months from the date they
become payable as at 31* March 2018,

{b} According to the records and information and explanations given to us, there are no dues
in respect of income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of excise, duty of custom, or value added
tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute except as given below:

Name of the | Nature of [ Amount Period to | Forum where dispute is
Statute the dues (Rs.) which the | pending
amount
relates
Finance Act | Service Tax | 53,027,956 | December 2010 | Joint
1984 and Penalty to March 2015 Commissmner(Appeals),
Jaipur

In our opinion, on the basis of audit procedures and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loan or borrowing
to any banks and financial institutions and dues to debenture/bond holders. The Company
does not have any loans or borrowings from the government.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not raised
moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year. Further, monies raised by the Company by way of debt instruments and
term loans were applied for the purpose for which they were raised, though idle/surplus
funds which were not required for immediate utilisation were gainfully invested in liquid
assets payable on demand.

During the course of our examination of the baoks and records of the Company carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come
across any instance of fraud on or by the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor
have we been informed of such case by the Management

»~ «':_:O,g’i{}’c,\}
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i,

xii.

xifi.

Xiv,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration
in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisicns of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Companies Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company

. is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on cur examination of
the record of the company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has made private placement cum preferential
allotment of equity shares for Rs.9999.99 Lacs during the year under review and has complied
with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013. The funds raised have been utilized for the
purposes for which they have been raised.

- According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of

the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him, Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company is required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 and such registration has been obtained by the company.

For §.5, KOTHARI MEHTA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. : 000}?‘/5@_1\1-;.-,,--..‘

Harish Gupta \;i::':f
Partner

Membership No.: 098336
Place: Jaipur

Date: Mﬂa o8 ,}OIQ
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Firancial Statements
of Ess Kay Fincorp Limited (Erstwhile Esskay Auto Finance Private Limited)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") as referred to In paragraph 2{f) of ‘Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Ess Kay Fincorp Limited
{Erstwhile Esskay Auto Finance Private Limited) ("the Company”} as of March 31, 2018 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, bath applicable to an audit
of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting. included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial cantrols over financial reporting._aséesslng the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and aperating effi ctivenéps of internal control based on the
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assessed risk, The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or errofr.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial

reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generaily accepted accounting principles, A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Innerent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
interhal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
systern over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

F¢ S.S. KOTHARE MEHTA &8: CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No, : 00075¢

Harish Gupta ..

Partner
Membership No.: 098336 .
Place: Jaipur f“}ﬁz}\:
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Report in terms of “Non-Banking Financial Company's Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016"

To

The Board of Directors
Ess kay Fincorp Limited
(Erstwhile Esskay Auto Finance Private Limited)

We have audited the accounts of the Ess Kay Fincorp Limited (Erstwhile Esskay Auto Finance
Private Limited) ("the Company”) for the year ending 31st march, 2018 and we report in respect
of the matters specified in “Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor's Report (Reserve 8ank)
Directions, 2016" issued by the Reserve Bank of India to the extent they are applicable to the
company as follows:

a. The company is engaged in the business of Non-Banking Financial Institutions and is
registered with the Reserve Bank of India as provided in section 451A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) and it has obtained the registration certificate from the
Reserve Bank of India.

b. The company is entitled to continue to hold the certificate of registration in terms of its
assets/income as on March 31, 2018.

¢. The company has been correctly classified as asset Management Company.

d. The board of directors of the company has passes resolution on May 8, 2018 resolving not
to accept any deposit from public.

e. The company is meeting the required net owned fund requirement as laid down in master
direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Non-Systemically important Non-Deposit
taking company (Reserve bank) directions, 2016 and master direction — Non-Banking
Financial company - Systemically important Non-Deposit taking company and Deposit
taking company (Reserve Bank) directions, 2016.

f.  As per the certificate received from the practicing company secretary, the company has not
accepted any deposits from public during year under audit.

g. According to information and Explanation given to us, the company has duly compiled with
prudential norms relating to the income recognition, Accounting Standards, assets
clarification and provisioning for bad and doubtful debts,

-
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h. In respect of Systemically important Non-Depaosit taking NBFCs as defined in paragraph
2{1) (xix) of the Non-Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) companies
Prudential Norms {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2015.

» The capital adequacy ratio as disclosed in the return submitted to the Bank in form
NBS-7, has been correctly arrived at and such ratio is in compliance with the minimum
CRAR prescribed by the Bank.

¢ The company has furnished to the Bank the annual statement of capital funds, risk
assets/exposure and risk asset ratio (NBS-7) within the stipulated period.

For 5.5. KOTHARI MEHTA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.:

Harish Gupta TUAAS
Partner | & "/"/
Membership No.: 098336 \;Tf 4
Place; Jaipur

Date: M% 08;‘2‘9 }’5’



_ESS KAY FINCORP LIMITED, JAIPUR

CIN - U65923RJ1994PLC009051

( Erstwhile Ess Kay Auto Finance Private Limited)

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31sT MARCH 2018

F)’ 201717

NOTE AMOUNT AS AT AMOUNT AS AT
S.No.  PARTICULARS RO. 31-Mar18 31-Mar47
| 1A
1 SHAREHOLDER'S FUNDS
SHARE CAPITAL 3 3,50,91,500 2,70,70,900
RESERVES AND SURPLUS 4 2,02,79,16,175 B3,56,41,022
MONEY RECEIVED AGAINST SHARE WARRANTS - -
TOTAL {1) 2,06,30,08,075 86,27,11,922
2 SHARE APPLICATION MONEY PENDING ALLOTMENT 8 .
3 NON.CURRENT LIABILITIES
LONG TERM BORROWINGS 5 4,26.45,15.840 3.01,97,50,623
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 6 11.53,20.821 6.13,60,357
LONG-TERM PROVISIONS 7 5.57.20.200 3.03.22.926
TOTAL (3) 4,45,25,72,870 3.11.14,53,916
4 CURRENT LIABILITIES
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 8 85,22,07.264 45.97,17.039
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 9 4,88,31,89,114 3,22,79,15,025
SHORT TERM PROVISIONS 7 15.89.33,842 9.34,27.655
TOTAL{4) 5.69,44,40,220 3,78,10,59,719
TOTAL{1424344) 12,21,00,21,165 7,75,52,35,557
f SSETS
1 NON-CURRENT ASSETS
FIXED ASSETS
() PROPERTY PLANT & EQUIPMENT 11 (a) 12,29,88,722 10.16,25,311
B) INTANGIBLE ASSETS " 27,03,701 21.71.405
B) CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS 1(c) 96,868,434 .
v} INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT - .
NOM-CURRENT INVESTMENTS 14 (a) 4,66,68,7086 -
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET) 10 6.23.63,995 4,32,72,147
LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES 16 6.69,89,96,237 3,69,60,59.281
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 12 5.70.51.357 14.06,76.550
TOTAL{1} 7,04,04,57,212 3,95,38,04,654
- 2 CURRENT ASSETS
CURRENT INVESTIENTS 14 (b} - 16,50,50,163
INVENTORIES - .
TRADE RECEIVABLES 13 23,684,111 1,89,24.511
CASH AND BANK BALANGE 15 29,37,15,247 5542,57,842
SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES 16 4,40.35,78,200 2,66,80.43,993
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 7 46.95,88,375 38.51,54.352
TOTAL{2) 5.16,95,63.933 3,77.14.30,663
TOTAL{1+2) 12,21,00,21,165 7,75,52,15,557

Ovendew and significant eecounling palices
The accompanying notes are an Iniegral ports of the financlal Stolemenls
As por our report of even dote

For §.5. Koiharl Mehta & Co.,

142

For and on bohalf of the board of Diroctors of

Chartered Accountants Ess Kay Fincorp Limltod
Firm Reg.

R 1’ o- N , - - / %
{HARISH GUPTA) {RAJENDRA KUMAR SETIA) {SHALINI SETIA)
PARTHER MANAGING BIRECTOR WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR
{ M. Ho - 088326) { DIN- Q0357274) {DIN -D2017624 )
Place: Jaipur TUL ARORA}) {AHAGHA BANGUR)

Dato : 8ih May, 2018 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER COMPANY SECRETARY
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ED, JAIPU

CIN - UG59ZIRIIG54PLOOIINEH
[Eratwhllo Ess Kay Auto Flnanca Private Limited}

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 318t MARCH 2018

HOTE FOR THE YEAR ENDED  FOR THE YEAR ENDED

S. No. PARTICULARS NO. 21.Mar18 31.Mar47
REVENUE
1 Revenue from Qperations 18 2,24 53,50.414 1.49,97,22,355
I Other Income 19 27048012 7,23.30,478
] TOTAL REVENUE {I+1} 2,27,32,99,326 1,67,20,60,833
v EXPENSES:
Employee Bonefit Exponses 20 50,02,04,879 31,87,12,458
Flnanca Cost A §9,45,08,457 69,15,53,389
Deprecialion And Amortization Expenses 22 2,33,82,425 1,61.32,389
Provisions and bad debts wiitten off 2 13,70,23.809 5.59,92,900
Other Expenses L 38,83,56,679 30,34.48,636
v TOTAL EXPENSES 1,94,40,64,255% 1,30,3838,152
v PROFIT BEFORE TAX {ll1-V) 32,92,45,037 18,82,22 681
vi TAX EXPEN3E
{1). CURRENT TAX 14,16.86,102 9,08,04,002
{2). EARLIAR YEARS TAX {1,31,51,530) 207,280
. (3). DEFERRED TAX {1,50.91,848) __{2.55.74,881)
VIl PROFIT AFTER TAX 21!“522'313 12,23,88,600
XVl EARNING PER EQUITY SHARE 25
{1}. BASIC 754 €08
{2). DILUTED 754 454
Hominal Valua of Equlty Sharos 100 100
Overvlew and significant accounlng policles 1&2
Tha accompanying notes am an Integral pans of the finangdal Statements
As per out reperl of even dale
For 8,5, Kotharl Mohta & Co. For and on hohall of the board af Dlractors of
Chartored Accountants Ess Kay Fincorp Limitod
Firm Rop. Ho, 00
r |§ , r " _r P
7S % Z
{HARISH GUPTA) f et _--\ [RAJENDRA KUMAR SETIA) {SHALINI SET1A)
PARTNER :_“},\ AR ‘;" S j MANAGING DIRECTOR WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR
“{M. No-093338) \\\.\ e { DIN- 00957374) { DIN - 02817624 )

T .

Place: Jalpur
Balo : 8th May, 2018

{ATUL ARORA)

CHIEF FIMAHCIAL OFFICER

{ANAGHA BARGUR)
COMPANY SECRETARY




E33 KAY FINCORP L|MITED, JAIPUR
CiN - 22RJ 5
ilo Ess Ka iml

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31st, 2018

{y wl7-1§

1. No PARTICULARS FOR THE YEAR EHDED FOR THE YEAR EXDED
J1-Mar-18 MMar-A7
1 | CA3H FLOW ARISIHG FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit Befora Tax 329245007 18,52.22.601
ADJUSTMENT FOR:
Deprociation and Amortisation 23362425 1.61,22,288
Provisions and bad debts writtan off 13,15.22.809 5.53.92.500
Loss on Sa%e of Firod Aszaty 41,108 285457
Cpenating Profit Balere working capltal Changaa 43,02,72,320 2507, 0,427
MOVEMENT IN WORKING CAPITAL CHAHGES
{Incransa} f Deacrease in Trade Receivabies 1,65.40,400 {68.76.348)|
{Incroaca) f Dacreass In Short torm Loans and Advances {1.60.59,48,780) (48.92,42,017)
{Incrassa) 7 Docreass In Long tem Losns and Advances {2,00,28,34,510) {1.28.15,72.078)
(Incroasa) J Decroass kn Other Non «Cutrend Assets 4,38,25,193 (10.63,80.578)
(Increas) f Decrense [n Other Curront Assets (10.47,32,022) {14.43,32,251)
Irerease f {Decreaso) in Other Current Liabifity 21547170 32.31,15,%%8
Inerease  {Doctease) In Other Long term Liabiities 5,35, 20464 5,62,37.580
Increase f [Decrease) In Othar Shert lerm provision 18,83,354 (1,268,695
Increase f [Decreasa) n Other Long term provitlon 1,26,69.612 58,52, 789
incronsaf Decrease) in Bank Deposlis{ Having Maturity mere than
thry months whown n Cash snd Bank Balence) {4,84,60,308} 5,01,64.63%
Cuaah ganeratsd from Opsrations bafors tax {4.00.74,29.484) (1,28,50,34,432}
Net Taxes Paid {41,58,67.540)] (11,50,67,.540) ({6,85.08.083)| (5.65,08,023)]
Hat Cash Flows from Oporaling actlvitias (A) {4,18,33,56,984) {1,35,18,40,51E)
2 | CASH FLOW ARISING FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES;
Purchzse/Sale of lnvestmentls 11,83,83,377 [19,50.50,183)
Acquisiten of Prepeity, Plant & Equipment Intangitia Avselx and Capital
Work In Prograss {5.54.67,439)| {6.95,21,014}
Sala of Property,Plant & Equipment 4,70,000 9.54,000
Hetcash fiowin cawes of Investing Activitios[B) 8,32,85,942 {2338.30.077)
3 | CASH FLOW ARISIHG FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Amount recatved from lssuance of Hon Convertible Debenturos 1,85,00,00,000 T0.00,00,000
Repayment of Hon Convariibia Debontures {55,21,86,969) (13,41,86,585)
Amount recatesd from long lerm borrowings 5.05.48,70,045 3,70.27,04,000
Repoyment of bemowings {3,90,48,88,750) {2,08,21,32.458)
Short Tenn Bomowings {Hel) 29,25,90,225 [27.23,65.650)
Corporale dividend tax pald (251) {251)
Equity shares frsued £0,21,000 .
Share Premium recshved (Not of lasua axpenses) 97,27.52,540 -
Hot Caah Nlow In casas of Financlng Activites {c) 3,81,09,40,140 1,9),25,18,592
Hel increasaf{Decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalent (A+B+C) (20.80,20,802) M.T200.408
cazh and cash equivalent as a] the beginning of the yesr 4£0,09,23,842 5,358,25.428
Cashand Ceah Equivalent atthe End of the yesr a» par bocks B.18.52.940 40,09,22.842
Note: Cash and cxsh equivalents Incluced In the Cash Flow Statemant compiiae of tha oliowlag:e
1] CashBalanca on Hand 7.59.61.24% 481,854,424
il) Balance with Banks ;
+In Currant Ascounts 1,28, 79,200 0410, 767
4n Flxed Depcslis| Having Maturity less than 3 Mornths) 30,22.401 1,43.59,621
Tatal 9,18.92.840 40,039,231 342
Summary of signifiexnt accounting policles 2
The accampanylng netes wro an Integral parts of the firanclal Statemants
As par otir report of aven dats

For 8.5, Kotharl Mahts &Co.
Chartared Accountants

{HARISH GUPTA)
PARTHER
{M.Ho-035336 }

Placa: Jalpur

Date : 8ih May 2018 CLIRARN

Ean ¥ay Flncorp l.lml!:d

-
[

{RAJEHCRA KUMAR SETIA)

MAHAGING DIRECTOR
{ DiN-00357374)

ATUL AROHA}
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

For and on behall of the Bosrd of Dlyectamm of M)

i3 SETIA}
WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR
{ DIN - 02817624 )

-
I
ANAGHA BARGUR)
COMPANY SECRETARY




